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Corporate Information (Continued)
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www.ccnewlife.com.cn

Shareholders’ Information

Share listing

The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Ordinary Shares (as at 31 December 2020)
Shares outstanding: 1,246,215,000 shares
Nominal value: HK$0.01 per share

Investor Relations Contact
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CORPORATE PROFILE
NSV

Central China New Life Limited (hereinafter referred to as “CCNL" or
the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries hereinafter referred to
as the "Group”, stock code: 9983.HK) was incorporated in the
Cayman Islands on 16 October 2018 as an exempt company with
limited liability, the shares of which were listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on
15 May 2020 (the “Listing Date”).

We are the largest property management service provider in central
China region (being a geographical region that covers the central area
of China, including the provinces of Henan, Hubei, Hunan, Jiangxi,
and Anhui) by total GFA under management as of
2019 and total revenue for the year ended
31 December 2019. Throughout more than two decades of operating
history, we have significantly grown our business and operations. We
believe our prospects and the pursuit of better living experience and
lifestyle by the people in Henan are inseparable. We believe our well
established operating history affords us a trusted and reputable brand
which in turn enables us to continue to offer a full spectrum of

Shanxi
31 December

services that can satisfy our customers’ diverse needs and effectively
improve their living quality.

As of 31 December 2020, our property management and value-added
services covered all 18 prefecture-level cities (and also 97 of the 104
county-level cities) in Henan as well as Haikou, Hainan, Korla,
Bayingolin, Xinjiang and Hengshui, Hebei and we served more than
1.5 million property owners and residents in 427 properties. We
manage a diverse portfolio of properties, including
properties, shopping malls, cultural tourism complexes, commercial
apartments, office buildings, schools, hospitals,

factories and properties of government authorities. We were ranked

residential

urban services,

13th and 12th among the Top 100 Property Service Enterprises in the
PRC in 2019 and 2020, respectively.

We focus on serving our customers’ diverse needs and enriching the
list of goods and services within the geographic areas which we
cover: where they stay, where they travel, what they eat and how
they relax. We believe our competitive edge is the extensive network
of lifestyle services we offer, coupled with our deep understanding of
market demands and our capabilities in data analytics. Through
frequent interactions with our customers, we have gained a deep
understanding of customer needs and preferences. Combined with our
strong resource consolidation, online-to-offline synergy and cross
selling capabilities, we are able to identify and deliver desirable
services and products within our network and constantly refine our
offering to better satisfy customer needs. By providing these services,
we are able to aggregate significant consumer information which
helps us cater to our customers with more tailor-made services.
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Corporate Profile (Continued)
NS INE)

We believe our three main business segments, namely property
management and value-added services, lifestyle services and
commercial property management and consultation services, echo with
the Group's philosophy, which is to enrich the living experience and
lifestyle of all the people in Henan (Bt Fm 2 m AR B
o HEE).
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MAJOR EVENTS
A=

On 3 April, Central China New Life and the Tianyi Project (XZEIE B) of

—— u
A rl I Zhengzhou Future Property Group Co., Ltd. signed a strategic cooperation
agreement.
A AAZH  BEMEFRHBMNAREESEEERAFKREZIERE#ZHURKESEHZE -

May

On 1 May, Yichuan Jianye Green Base ({FJIIi£ZF 4k EMH), the first mountain-like
pastoral complex of Agricultural Development Company under Central China New
Life, opened for guests.

SAVE  BEFEEETNRERREAAE —ELMRBARSGEE — FIEES
EEMARNE -

On 15 May, Central China New Life (stock code: 9983.HK) was officially listed on
the main board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

5A158 » BEHAE (RERE : 9983.HK) EXEETBHMA L ST EREE L -
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Major Events (Continued)

RER(8E)

August

NR

On 13 August, at Shenzhen Huawei headquarters, the signing ceremony of the
strategic cooperation between Central China New Life and Huawei Technology
Co., Ltd. was successfully held.

8HI3H  RINEREE  BENETFEFELSRMEAR A GBS IEROEKD
8217 o

On 26 August, Central China New Life and Huimei Huakang Health Management
(Beijing) Co., Ltd. (EEFEREREEIE (b)) AR A F]) signed a strategic
cooperation framework agreement.

8H26H @ENEFHEGERMERER (R BERABIETEB A EERD

E=3
A °

September

A

On 7 September, Central China New Life officially entered the Hong Kong Stock
Connect market, reflecting that the Company’s business performance was highly
recognized by the capital market.

IA7H  EEHAETEAAREBRBENS BALAREXBRRESEATSR

JERT -

On 9 September, the signing ceremony of the strategic cooperation between
Central China New Life and JD Group was successfully held.

9AIR  BEMATEERREEBRE S FROERAMINET -

L

On 21 and 22 September, Central China New Life successfully held the first
investor reverse roadshow after its listing in Zhengzhou, with a total of more than
30 investors participating. Wu Po Sum, the controlling shareholder of Central
China New Life, and Wang Jun, its chairman of the board of directors, attended
the seminar with the Company’s management team.

9H21-22H » @EMEFREMAINER ETEERIREARMBEEES - H5t
B0RMAIIRE AL - BEMAFERRRMAERR EFRITEBELAREREBK

HF SRR E -

On 24 September, Central China New Life signed a cooperation agreement with
the financial capital operation center of China Pingmei Shenma Group.

9A24R BEFERRPEFEMSEESRENELT LR AIERE

On 25 September, Central China New Life and Jiyuan City Zhongbang
Environmental Sanitation Co., Ltd. successfully held the signing ceremony of
equity cooperation in Jiyuan.
9A25H  BENAFRBERTRERERZARAT - EERKINEBITHRES
BEHER -
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Major Events (Continued)

RERL (&)

November
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On 17 November, “Please Answer 2020", the release conference of New
Gentleman Plan (¥7%& T5t2l) of the Central China Consumers Club was
successfully held in Yanling Jianye The Mist Hot Spring Hotel.

1MA178  [EE%2020] — EXFZHSFE FHEEMEREEEFELE MR
ROBEEmERT -
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On 19 November, the grand opening of Gongyi Jianye Baicheng Tiandi (E&EZEZ
B KH) was held, and the number of visitors reached 60,000 on that day.

TMAE  EREZXAMRMBRAFNE  EATREEZE AR -

On 23 November, Central China New Life and Ruipeng Pet Healthcare Group Co.,
Ltd. signed a strategic agreement.

MA23A  ZEFEEENGBEENEREEARAFDRSIHRGE
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Major Events (Continued)

RER(8E)

December

+=A

On 23 December, the signing ceremony of the strategic cooperation between the
First Affiliated Hospital of Zhengzhou University, Central China New Life and
Central ChinaeBlue Sea Zhengfeng was held at the Blue Sea Zhengfeng Good Life
Experience Center. The three parties will work together to write a new chapter of
healthy life.

12A238  BR—kt - @EMEE  B¥« ERHRAMBAEFENEAEES
BREFEERRTOET ZHABEFATREEENEE

In December, Central China New Life and Taihua Jinye Life Service Co., Ltd.,

a subsidiary of Taihua Group, successfully held the signing ceremony of equity
cooperation in Hengshui.

A BENMEEEREEBE TREREEEREERLF - LEKKIET
It & EZ KR o
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AWARDS AND HONOURS

$IE I S

On 8 January, Henan lJianye Real Estate Management Co., Ltd. was awarded the
honorary title of “2019 Advanced Member Unit of Property Services in Zhengzhou
City".

1TH8R  AMEEWEERERRAREFN2019FEEMTYERBELEGEE
iz J SRETESR -

On May 8, Central China Film Town won the “Best Tourism Town"” award in the
ITIA Awards, an authoritative platform of the tourism investment industry in
China.

S5H8H BEEF/NHEEPRKERETERBTEMNAN T RAFEDES
[ B /N 58

In May, Henan Aiou Electronic Technology Co., Ltd. passed the certification of
“Small and Medium-sized Enterprises with ‘Specialty, Excellency, Uniqueness and
Innovation’ in Zhengzhou City".

S5A - AEXBEFRRERABEBIEMMC(EBEHRPNEEIRE -

On 13 May, China Index Academy solemnly announced the research results of the
2020 China Top 100 Property Service Enterprises in Beijing. Central China New
Life ranked 12th in the “Top 100 Property Service Enterprises in China”, Central
China Triumph Plaza managed by Henan Central China Property Service
Management Co., Ltd. was awarded the title of “2020 China Five-star Property
Service Project”, and Central China Chuntianli Court was awarded two titles of
“2020 China Five-Star Property Service Project” and “2020 Model Base in China
Property Service Industry”.

S5A13E » hiEMRRAEILREEEM 2020 Y ERB AR EMITMR - 2%
AEEREIPENERGABREESE | F 120 THEEVERBEEARA
AAEENREINRESRE20207ERERMERKIAR] - BEEREREKE
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Awards and Honours (Continued)

BRIA N SRE ()

On 3 July, at the 2020 Semi-annual Real Estate Market Trend Report Conference
of China Real Estate Index System jointly sponsored by China Real Estate Index
System and China Index Academy, Central China New Life was awarded the first
among the “Leading Property Service Enterprises in Henan in terms of Service
Quality” and the “Leading Property Service Enterprises in China in terms of
Diversified Operation in 2020" (ranked 9th nationwide).

7H38 EEEPJ;E%im?%%(?« B PR A TP EE AR R 582020
FEEFHEMSBERE S EXENMEAREMERBEEALLCETHRE
£ FZOZOEPI%%HEAWyETt LRECERIBFRZEEN) -

On 12 August, at the “2020 Boao Real Estate Forum”, Henan Central China New
Life Service Co., Ltd. was shortlisted for the “2020 China Top 10 Influences in the
Capital Market” and the “2020 China Top 30 Influential Property Service”.

8H12H - 2020 X FERE | L - WmEZEMLETREARLQFAEN2020
FREFEEATHZENTOPI0] 20200 B FEH & N WERIETOP30 | M AE

$°

During 11 August to 12 August, at the Property Management Forum of the 4th
New Gravity Summit, Henan Central China New Life Service Co., Ltd. was listed in
the “2020 China Top 50 Property Service Influences”, and the “Jianye +" platform
was awarded the title of “2020 China Quality System of Property Service”.
BHNMBEZE8AI12A - EFMEMSI NigE — MEETERE L  AmEENE
BRI AR A RALE 20209 B ERF H5058 ] - R+ FREE20209
MEBE RIS R TR

.5(: It*aw

LD R L ET L]
L

HNFEREEENE

i
EREREA

REETH- “RE.T T
ol

natEREEREEER

[ LTEE R T

At the “2020 Top 100 Blue Chip Property Summit”, Henan Central China New
Life Service Co., Ltd. won the title of “Enterprise with Excellent Investment Value”
and “2020 Top 100 Blue Chip Property Enterprises”.
FEI2020EEEMERRES | L THEEENEERBERAFKESHKRER
ERXIM2020E B WEXRREEITHR -
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Awards and Honours (Continued)
HEIE R SR (8B)

On 26 August, at the 2020 (third) Leju Finance Annual Forum, Central China New
Life Group was awarded the title of “2020 China Emerging Enterprise in the
Capital Market".

8H26H ' 2020(E=JE) £EVKFEmiE BENEFEELE2020FFBF
RG] -

On 17 September, Central China New Life won the “Operation Management
Award” in the “Golden Intelligence Award” of Real Estate Enterprise Value
Selection (2020) in the financial industry.

9R17H  ZEFEFNCRA B RIFHECXBEAENEQQ0200TENTEE
EERE] -

In September, “5G+ Intelligent Zone Solution” of Aiou Electronic won the
Excellence Award of Henan Division in the third “Blooming Cup” 5G Application

Contest.
9A  NEERISG+EERE SR EEE =B LM ISGERABEABTES
EEFE-
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Awards and Honours (Continued)

BRIA N SRE ()
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On 29 September, at the “2020 Property Management Industry Development
Index Report Conference” hosted by China Property Research Association, Central
China New Life won the titles of “2020 Leading City Service Enterprise”, “2020
Leading Commercial Property Service Enterprise”, “2020 Top 500 Property Service
Enterprises with Comprehensive Strength”, “2020 Top 100 Property Service
Enterprises with Brand Value” and “2020 Top 10 Branded Property Service
Enterprises in Central China”.
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In November, the “5G+loT New Type of intelligent Community” project of Aiou
Electronic won the Excellence Award in the “2020 Excellent Application Cases of
Smart City Pioneer List".

1A XERHE(SGHoTH M e B Bt [E) B RE20208 B MM A B EES
JERZEDIBFHE-

On 16 November, Central China New Life was awarded the title of “Most
Promising IPO of the Year” in the “2020 Best Listed Companies in Greater China”
ceremony organized by Gelonghui.

1MTA16E - FEHEEE RO APERKE T AR 2020 18 - BENE
EEREFEHEKKANIPO] ¢
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Awards and Honours (Continued)
HEIE R SR (8B)

In December, Aiou Electronic won the “2020 Intelligent Community
Demonstration Project Award”. Aiou Electronic was selected as one of the “2020

=, . Top 10 Internet Enterprises with the Most Potential in Henan Province”. Aiou
'g ® o A g v‘a‘ Electronic was awarded “China Real Estate Smart Home Award/Consultant Unit of
HateatAnnad China Smart Home and Smart Building Expo”, the “2020 Excellent Project with
P iatinas it China Real Estate Smart Home Award” and the “2020 Excellent Smart
Construction Enterprise with China Real Estate Smart Home Award”.
. AN 128 U 2008 BB AR ) - SR AR 202057 M4

EMBCERAENI0%R] XEBHREE[FEMESER HTHEERERE
REREEESREMBEA  KEI2020P B ER EREFIEL ] - 12020 B E
EEREFEHEERLE -

’

On 3 December, at the “2020 China Real Estate Big Data Annual Conference and

w 2021 China Real Estate Market Trend Report Conference”, Central China New Life
-qyﬂ--._-_-;-'gp- was awarded “2020 Leading Enterprise in the Property Service Market of Central
China".
rmm— 12838  [2020F EIEHEARBFELE2021FEEHETSBEREE] - 2
PETTTE Tt
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
RS

Dear Shareholders:

2020 is an extraordinary year with challenges, opportunities,
contributions and gains. Facing the sudden outbreak of COVID-19,
enterprises faced unprecedented challenges in their survival and
development. At the same time, the first-line property management
personnel responded quickly and actively took actions, and obtained
more recognition from property owners and the government in terms
of service ability, community governance ability and anti-epidemic
standard in the fight against the epidemic.

Leveraging on the excellent industry value, unique business model and
the brand building in Central China for years, CCNL successfully
completed its listing in 2020, a special historical milestone, against the
odds. In addition, with the strategic support of the Company, the
growth of the Company has been rapidly released and the
performance of the Company has exceeded expectation. On behalf of
the Board, | would like to express my gratitude to all employees for
their dedication, and to all shareholders and investors for their trust
and support for CCNL!

CCNL has three characteristics. The first is our core value of “taking
root in Henan and contributing to the society”. CCNL has also been
able to accumulate rich customer resources based on such original
intention. Secondly, the Group will continue to upgrade its diversified
services, from version 1.0 of property basic services to version 2.0 of
value-added services such as online “Jianye+"” platform and offline
community service station center, and further to version 3.0 of The
Central China Consumers Club organised by the owners of the
service industry. CCNL will provide value-added services and
customised services based on the needs of customers. Thirdly, the
unigue service system, such as the Central China Cultural Town series,
the Central China Hotel series, the commercial complex and the rural
complex, is also the exclusive competitive strengths of CCNL.

In addition, from the perspective of business development, the
Company’s two main competitive advantages are: firstly, its large
project density. On the basis of high-density coverage of projects, the
Company continued to improve customer satisfaction by connecting
more lifestyle service resources and creating shared service centers
based on property management services. Secondly, it has a
comprehensive lifestyle service platform — “Jianye+”. “Jianye+" is
service-oriented which integrates users with resources to provide
customised and personalised lifestyle services to customers.

EBMB LR

2020FRBAFAN—F S FHEHIB - AH
B BN BAE Y - 5 7R a0 R 3 b A
B EENEFEREERAMAREOKE - [
—RRYMEANREEE  BERER  EREBHNM
FHRRBEEN NRIAEEN MARKFETEE
BTEIMBFEZHRA -

BHRRIFTENEE BEOBERR - AR
FIRZFH MR - R AR 202045 E R
TR E AR - WML KR ET - WEE
REEESHT  RANKEESIREER ¥
BERBERM -AEE AAZERRESTS &l
BEETIHMNE  BIWEMLBER  REAHREN
ERBEEMSE |

BEFEEFA-_AREE  —RIREFR  EFA
HINZOEER  LERERERNTL - EEH
EEERTEENTFER —ETEHRNZ T
PRTS - MR RIS .OMRA - 2R EIE+]F
A BN EERBH O FIRERB2.0MRE - B
MBEETEEBNEHSI0RE - BEFETES
EPHBFIRMBERS - EHRY  ZRBEMAK
G A - i R/ NERT - BEEE R
BELGAE HREGARESS  EHhREEMLER
BANGFEE

BRitbzsh (EBEERAEKRE - ARHNMARF
B F— HEREA HEBRZEEENE
B2z L REAERMERGREEZLERBER
TEHAERBPL THRSEFPMEE -F -
BE-AGAaMNEERETFE — [EE+] [
E+IURBA/TE  SHAPMER  REPIRM
TE BB AL B 408 AR

Annual Report 2020 & [Z &

15



16

Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
FEHmE (&)

Review of 2020

In 2020, the three major business segments of CCNL, namely
property management and value-added services, life services, asset
management and consulting services, maintained rapid growth, and
the advantages of “Jianye+” platform, cost control, epidemic
prevention and control, etc. were frequently realised, leading to the
continued rise of our industry position and brand value.

I.  Property management and value-added services
maintained high growth and market expansion
capabilities continued to strengthen
As of 31 December 2020, the GFA under management and
contracted GFA of the Company’s property management
services and value-added services reached approximately 100
million sg.m. and 187 million sq.m., respectively, representing
an increase of 75.5% and 62.7%, respectively, as compared
with the GFA under management and contracted GFA of
approximately 57 million sgq.m. and 115 million sg.m. as of 31
December 2019. The GFA under management of third-party
property developers accounted for approximately 45.1% of the
total GFA under management, representing an increase of 14.0
percentage points from 31.1% as of 31 December 2019.

Since the commencement of market investment and expansion,
CCNL has won market trust and customer recognition by virtue
of its good brand reputation and ever-improving comprehensive
strength, and has expanded its investment scope from Henan to
six provinces in Central China. By continuously accelerating the
pace of signing contracts, strategic cooperation and mergers
and acquisitions, the market expansion capability of CCNL has
been continuously enhanced.

Central China New Life Limited Z¥£# 4 FER 2T
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2. “Jianye+" platform has strong monetization

capability and growth potential

In 2020, the accumulated number of registered users of the
“Jianye+" platform was 3,670,000, and the number of newly
registered users was 1,490,000, representing a year-on-year
increase of 30.3%. It is also encouraging to note that the
"Jianye+" platform does not only serve the property owners but
also has great influence over non-property owners, reflecting
that the continuous expansion of the user base of the platform
has created commercial value which surpasses the property
ecosystem. According to the data, the gross merchandise
volume (“GMV") from property owners/non-property owners in
2020 was RMB580/200 million, respectively, and the GMV from
non-property owners has taken up a significant share, fully
demonstrating the strong external extension capability of the
“Jianye+" lifestyle service platform. At the same time, the
Company focused on optimizing the supply chain and
continuously optimizing the product selection mechanism. We
established a four-level product selection mechanism of
“property owners + platform + third-party institutions + big
data” online, created a special zone of “secure purchase and
closed eye purchase”, and increased the purchasing power and
repurchase ratio of new and old users. We will expand our
offline service outlets, accelerate the expansion of our service
centers and merchants in provincial, municipal and key business
circle alliances, and improve user purchase trust and delivery
efficiency.

It is worth noting that “Jianye+” has established a membership
system on the platform based on the core concept of “special
rights, exclusive and customised” services for its members.
Under our membership system, users pay membership fees to
obtain price concessions and membership privileges for products
and services within our network. With the increase in the
number of orders, it is easier for us to negotiate with our
suppliers for lower prices. In 2020, the accumulated total
transaction amount of “Jianye+” community group purchase
business was RMB30,291,000, and the accumulated revenue
was RMB26,405,000. In 2020, the accumulated total number of
transactions of “Jianye+” community group purchase business
was 518,000, with a total of 96,000 purchasers, the unit price
was RMB51 per order, the average revenue per user was
RMB276 per person, and the repurchase rate was 46.3%.
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The “Jianye+" platform adopts a low-risk online marketplace
business model: the platform usually places purchase orders
before receiving corresponding orders from customers, which
are usually more popular items based on data analysis of users’
past shopping habits. As a result, excessive inventories are
usually not kept and hence the inventory risk is reduced. In
2020, the accumulated total transaction volume of the platform
amounted to approximately RMB780 million, representing a
year-on-year increase of 83.9%.

Commercial property management and consulting
services to accelerate growth in revenue and
overall profitability

Commercial property management and consulting services
increase revenue and reduce costs by repositioning properties
and streamlining operations to maximize property value. As a
result of our capabilities and experience in commercial asset
management, we have higher pricing power, which has
contributed to a stronger growth in our revenue and overall
profitability. The portfolio of assets under management
comprises shopping malls (including 7 managed shopping malls,
namely Zhengzhou Central China Triumph Square, Zhengzhou
Central China Triumph Center, Luoyang Central China Triumph
Square, Nanyang Central China Triumph Square, Gongyi
Baicheng Tiandi, Xincai Baicheng Tiandi, Linzhou Baicheng
Tiandi, with an overall occupancy rate of 88%), hotels
(including internationally renowned branded hotels such as
Marriott, InterContinental Hotels and Argos) and cultural
tourism complexes. Pursuant to the strategic cooperation
framework agreement between the Group and Central China
Real Estate Limited (“CCRE”) and its subsidiaries (the “CCRE
Group”), 12 cultural tourism complexes, 19 shopping malls and
6 hotels will be within the Company’s future management
service plan.
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4. Technology Empowerment, Cost Reduction and

Efficiency Enhancement, and Innovative
Operation Methods to Consolidate Market
Position

CCNL adheres to the core concept of “Customer Building for
Central China and Sharing Resources with the Society”.
Through the brand empowerment of Central China, which has
been cultivated in Central China for more than 20 years, it has
brought CCNL its natural customer acquisition ability and
resource expansion advantage. Based on the support of CCRE,
we have built a “N+1+N” closed loop of customer side,
platform side and resource side, and successfully realised the
deep coverage in Henan Province and the continuous expansion
of the market outside Henan.

Technology empowerment is the only way to reduce costs and
increase efficiency. On one hand, the application of property
informatization improves service quality and reduces labor costs.
On the other hand, we will enhance the quality of our property
management services by promoting the centralization and
standardization of our services through technology. At the same
time, through the automation level of smart properties, the
service efficiency will be improved to improve the satisfaction of
residents.

The Company will further explore its potential by focusing on
technology empowerment and management empowerment, so
as to boost its performance. The Company’'s high-density
project management layout will also allow for easier synergy
and achieve cost reduction and efficiency enhancement. For
example, building shared service centers, promoting resource
integration and pooling and forming a fast-linkage service
system with one-to-many positions, which help to reduce costs.
Under the premise of high-quality services, it links all
possibilities to form a strong gathering force to jointly provide
lifestyle services for owners and people from Central China. This
measure has enhanced customer satisfaction and further gained
market recognition for us.
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5. All employees take social responsibilities against I+ ZENRBEHESET REEEEY

20

the epidemic and our brand value steadily
increase

During the fight against the epidemic in 2020, numerous CCNL
personnel were in the first line of epidemic prevention and
control, and the “last mile” of epidemic prevention was upheld
with dutiful and selfless dedication to build a defense line for
1.5 million property owners, reflecting the value of CCNL's
services and brand. Under the epidemic, CCNL established a
three-party linkage mechanism between property owners,
properties and communities, explored a standardised prevention
and control system, guaranteed the normal supply of residents’
life, and protected the life, safety and health of property
owners with practical actions. In order to fight against the
epidemic, all business companies under CCNL actively undertake
social responsibilities to support and actively carry out public
welfare activities.

In 2020, with its profound brand accumulation, in-depth
market penetration and extensive corporate management
experience, CCNL has been widely recognised by the society
and the industry, and has successively obtained many honors,
while its brand value has become increasingly apparent. It was
ranked 12th among the “China Top 100 Property Service
Enterprises List” by China Index Academy, the first among the
“Leading Property Service Enterprises in Henan in terms of
Service Quality”, and the “Leading Property Service Enterprises
in China in terms of Diversified Operation in 2020" (ranking
9th nationwide). At the “2020 Boao Real Estate Forum”, the
Group was shortlisted for the “2020 China Top 10 Influences
in the Capital Market” and “2020 China Top 30 Influential
Property Service”. At the “2020 Property Management Industry
Development Index Report Conference”, the Company was
awarded “2020 Top 500 Property Service Enterprises with
Comprehensive Strength”, “2020 Top 100 Property Service
Enterprises with Brand Value” and “2020 Top 10 Branded
Property Service Enterprises in Central China”. On the “2020
Best Listed Companies in Greater China” ceremony, the
Company was awarded the “Most Promising IPO of the Year”.
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The journey to victory is long yet we have to fight hard. In the
prosperous year of 2021, we are standing at a new starting
point and will continue to expand, increase market share and
improve our performance. We shall make full use of the refined
management of internet technology to reduce costs, enhance
effectiveness and improve service quality. We will leverage on
innovative, technological and digital means to expand our
service scope and develop our “lJianye+” platform to increase
the number of users. We will strengthen the cooperation with
our partners through cooperation with the best players and
continue to innovate, so as to make great progress in the new
year.

In 2020, due to the impact of the epidemic, the basic level
management of the property management industry faced great
challenges, but at the same time, the value of property services
has been quickly recognised by the public and professional
fields in the macro environment. As the property management
industry is growing rapidly, there are still great opportunities of
changes both internally and externally. The epidemic has
allowed more entities to see the wide applicability and non-
substitutability of the services provided by properties, and can
be seen as the continuous penetration of properties in the field
of living services, and the importance of the property
management industry in the whole social service function is
further increased. We are optimistic about the development
prospects of the property management industry, as well as the
significant business opportunities brought by a series of positive
changes such as industry scale growth, increased concentration,
boundary expansion, value-added innovation and technology
empowerment.

Outlook for 2021

In 2021, the property management industry ushered in a number of
popular key policies, creating a better development and policy
environment for property management companies.

. New property policies: to inject new momentum
for the long-term development of the industry
On 28 May 2020, the Civil Code of the PRC ((FFiE AR AN
B R%A#H)) was promulgated and became effective on 1
January 2021. The Civil Code regulates and adjusts property
management activities from different perspectives, laying a civil
legal foundation for property management. The impact of the
Civil Code on the industry will gradually deepen, and more
changes will be brought to the industry at the micro level.
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In October 2020, the “The Work Plan for Expanding Domestic
Demand and Promoting Consumption In the Near Future” ({iT
HIBAFTREBHN TIEAR) was issued with special emphasis
on promotion of integrated online and offline development of
property services, built an intelligent property platform,
promoted the connection of property service enterprises with
various commercial services, and built an online and offline
lifestyle service circle to meet the diversified lifestyle service
needs of residents.

On 5 January 2021, 10 departments jointly issued the Notice
on Strengthening and Improving the Work of Residential
Property Management ({EER IS8 FMBCGEEEMEEIE TIENR
%1)) (hereinafter referred to as the “Notice”), which provides
solutions and directions for the issues currently restricting the
development of property companies. The room for imagination
of “Property Services + Living Services” was further expanded.

The attention of government departments on community
infrastructure reflects the importance of people’s livelihood and
social services, while it is reflected in the community services
that property developers should pay more attention to the
diversity, service efficiency and transparency of services, the
improvement of management details and property owners’
loyalty in carrying out property services, so as to optimize the
efficiency of community services.

The introduction of a series of new policies will enhance the
overall operational efficiency of CCNL, which has a unique
business model and brand advantage, and will lead to stronger
Matthew effect within the industry.

CCNL is located in Henan Province with abundant property
resources, and according to the forecast of the National Bureau
of Statistics, the residential GFA under management in Henan
Province will be 1.23 billion sq.m. in 2021. As of 31 December
2020, the GFA under management and contracted GFA of
CCNL were 100 million sq.m. and 187 million sg.m.,
respectively. Together with the strategic upgrade of the
Company in 2021, the scale of services will be expanded to the
greater Central China area, which means that the Company has
huge room for growth in the future.
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As the largest new lifestyle service provider in the central
region, CCNL is not simply a property company, but a
comprehensive solution provider for smart community. Jianye's
road to technological transformation is up-to-date with the
intelligent Jianye service, and the Internet + Company “Central
China New Life": service come first and the links are important.
The modern “social internet + company” model is more visible
in the attributes of CCNL. Under the premise of high-quality
services, it links all possibilities to form a strong pooling force
to jointly provide lifestyle services for owners and people from
Central China.

The Notice states the improvement of the coverage of property
management communities and accelerates the establishment of
property owners’ committees, which is in fact promoting the
marketisation of the property industry, breaking the previous
difficulty of property owners being dissatisfied with but unable
to replace their properties. The marketization of the property
industry has prompted CCNL, which possesses good competitive
advantages, to grow rapidly in terms of market share.

Strategic upgrade: Expand our base to serve
Greater Central China

Since 2021, the Company has resolved to extend the radius of
its strategic base from 300 km to 500 km, going out of Henan
and moving towards the Greater Central China to provide
services.

Serving Greater Central China is our original aspiration. When
determining the corporate vision at the establishment of the
Company, we put forward “taking root in Henan and
contributing to the society”. It is strategic to serve Greater
Central China. We spent 20 years in Henan to implement the
"Provincial Strategy”, from provincial capitals to cities, county
cities, towns and rural areas, and achieved full coverage of 122
cities above county level in the province in 2019.

With the continuous improvement of the comprehensive ability
of the enterprise, the continuous expansion of brand influence,
the continuous enhancement of team confidence, the
continuous consolidation of Henan's base, expanding to Central
China is another milestone upgrade of the provincial and
regional strategy, and also an inevitable choice for the
enterprise to expand and strengthen the sustainable
development.
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Serving Greater Central China is our mission. Over the years,
our personnel are down to earth while keeping our vision and
We consciously connect our lives with national
revitalization, and follow the pace of China’s urbanization. We
take one step at a time and root in Henan to create many
“Number One”. With Zhengzhou's great goal as a national
central city and the formation of a national hub city supported

mission.

by rice-shaped high-speed rails, the pace of integration and
development of Tongcheng, Zhengkai and Xuchang, Zhengzhou
will continue to accelerate. Zhengzhou will no longer be the
capital of Henan only, and its core position in the Central
China economic zone will continue to improve. As the most
brilliant brand in Henan, the “Central China” brand will go out
of Henan and serve Greater Central China. This is not only our
own responsibility and mission, but also a strong proof of our
ability to expand from Zhengzhou into Greater Central China.

Service extension: Participating in city operation
to seize the opportunity

This is a good time for property management to participate in
urban governance. Construction of new type of cities and
towns, urban moulding, public service and protection are closely
related to property services. Property management industry has
been given more important responsibilities and continuously
consolidated its fundamental role in the society.

Since the outbreak of COVID-19, property management
companies have become the main force of joint prevention and
control in the community, highlighting the important value of
the property management industry in social
Property management enterprises are based on the smallest unit

governance.

of urban governance and serve the “last mile” of cities and
towns. The digitalization of smart property management has
accelerated the reform of service capabilities and service
methods, which has helped to build an urban management
service platform supported by informatization and shared by the

public, and participate in urban governance more efficiently.

CCNL will position itself as a new lifestyle service provider.
Based on community services, it will deeply participate in urban
services and integrate social governance. With the help of
intelligent technology,
businesses,

it will consolidate its diversified
constantly break the scope and boundary of
services, realize the transformation from small to large, from
weak to strong, and inject freshness and energy into the new
neighborhood of the city, so that the people of Central China

can live better!
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Steady expansion: Continuous growth in property
management scale and management efficiency

In 2021, the affiliated companies of CCNL, namely CCRE,
recorded steady growth in contracted sales and considerable
size of land reserve. With the gradual delivery of project
development, it is expected to constantly contribute a stable
increase in property management area for CCNL in the future.

Regarding property development, the Company deeply
cultivated the Central China region and continued to exert its
regional influence. Through strategic cooperation with regional
property management companies and governments, the
Company replacement and sharing,
continuously expanded the area of property management,
increased the scale of property management, and accelerated
the strategic layout of the Great Central China.

realised resource

In 2021, the Company will continuously enhance management
efficiency, constantly improve digital reform, empower efficient
business operation, implement measures to improve quality and
efficiency, achieve optimization and efficiency enhancement,
cost reduction and efficiency enhancement, management
efficiency enhancement and technical efficiency enhancement,
and promote the continuous

expenses.

reduction of administrative

“Jianye+" Platform: It will be one of the main
drivers of the Company’s revenue growth

From the perspective of the “Jianye+" lifestyle service platform
of the lifestyle service segment, the rapid growth of platform
users and transaction amount in 2020 reflected the continuous
development of the Company’s ecosystem built around property
management services and the formation of strong commercial
monetization capability by gathering traffic resources.
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CCNL connects resources and customers through the “Jianye+”
platform and makes use of its services to meet customers’
needs. We are creating an ecosystem that brings added value
to customers, regularly recording users’ accumulative data on
activities and transactions through the
application, analyzing customers’ needs and preferences, and
forming good customer interactions and exchange experiences.

“Jianye+"” mobile

Through the diversified business forms, “Jianye+” happiness
ecosystem satisfies people’s pursuit of a happy life in multiple
dimensions and levels through new lifestyle such as real estate,
property, technology, tourism, commerce, hotel,
education, sports, and the Central China
Consumers Club, which clothing,
accommodation, learning,
sports and other life-related aspects.

cultural
rural, tourism,
involves people’s food,
shopping,

travel, entertainment,

Increase investments in IP Projects: Asset
Management Operation is expected to create
new performance

In 2020, affected by the epidemic and economic growth, the
cultural and tourism business such as hotel, tourism, business
management and characteristic cultural town faced growth
pressure and challenges. In 2021, with the relief of the
epidemic, we are optimistic towards the economic growth in
the long run. The Company will achieve new breakthroughs in
the operation and management of projects.

The hotel and commercial, rural complex and cultural town
projects under CCNL will continue to rely on the "Jianye+”
platform, actively leverage the synergies of the lJianye large
actively internal and external
resources, build a resource sharing platform,
development momentum, and generate business growth in
terms of volume and create revenue streams.

service system, introduce

inject new

At the same time, the new cultural and tourism IP project
“Unique in Henan” jointly created by CCRE Group and a
famous director, Wang Chaoge (E#), will be launched. This
represents a Type-A Key Construction Projects in Henan and has
attracted attention across the country during the preparation
stage. In 2021, it will lead the cultural and tourism business to
create new performance.

Central China New Life Limited 2 ¥4+ FER QT
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
FERE (B)

Conclusion e

At present, CCNL has established a high-density resource coverage, a BBl BEHFAECEY T SHENEREEZ 5
high-quality service system and a highly loyal customer base. In 2021, HEEHREEZULRSHENTFEE - 20214 -
CCNL will continue to focus on customer needs, guide customer BEEMEFBEBEHRTFF R SIERLFNR
needs, create a better new life, continue to lead the new lifestyle of  BlE&EIFEFHAE  HESIBTFRARFHATF N -
Central China people, and strive to create higher quality and HFEIEFSLEE  AJHBENLEEE-
sustainable corporate value.

When a fresh wind blows, it's time to raise our sails. From the B/ XFE - HWNIEE K o (& L8RS Bl KH R
provincial strategy to the greater Central China strategy, CCNL  BkEE - Rk BEHEEAGAECHHLEEE .
personnel will make good use of their diligence and intelligence, AIFTEEE  ERERS  FPRARLB LITFLE
innovation and responsibility, products and services to let people in & !

Central China to live a good life in the future!

Chairman FE
Wang Jun EXC 3
26 March 2021 202143 826 H
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

B 751 &

Summary of Comprehensive Income THRRRBE
For the year ended 31 December BEI12H3THIFFE
2020 2019 Changes
20206 20194F 2%
Revenue (RMB’000) WA (ANEETIT) 2,654,499 1,754,402 51.3%
Gross profit (RMB’000) ENARBTFT) 860,717 576,284 49.4%
Gross profit margin EH = 32.4% 32.8% -0.4%
Net profit (RMB’000) FEMEARBTT) 440,744 227,785 93.5%
Net profit margin FFE = 16.6% 13.0% 3.6%
Profit attributable to equity REELFIE(ARETT)

shareholders (RMB’'000) 426,587 233,954 82.3%
Basic earnings per share BRERBN(ARE)

(RMB) 0.38 0.26 46.2%
Diluted earnings per share BREEAEMN(ARE)

(RMB) 0.37 0.26 42.3%
Final dividends per share TR AR BARR B (L)

(HK cent) 18.0 = N/A & A

Summary of Balance Sheet EEEEBEREE
As at 31 December R12A31H
2020 2019 Changes
20204 20194F )
Total cash (including cash and wRe(EREEeRBEEEE

cash equivalents and restricted WA T 5 PR IR 1T 17 50)

bank deposits) (RMB’000) (AREBTT) 2,218,819 585,107 279.2%
Total assets (RMB’000) BEENRETT) 4,249,979 1,463,444 190.4%
Total liabilities (RMB’000) wEE(ARETT) 1,532,629 1,081,795 41.7%
Total equity (including non- B (RIS R ER)

controlling interests) (RMB’000) (ANR®EFIT) 2,717,350 381,649 612.0%
Equity attributable to R AR R E(RRE =

shareholders of the Company (AREBTT)

(RMB’000) 2,691,344 369,442 628.5%
Current ratio® i B b 2= 2.7 timesfZ 1.3 timesf& 1.4 timesf&
Net asset value per share (RMB) BREEFE(AREIT) 2.18 9.95 -78.1%

Note: MiET -

(1) calculated based on the Group’s total current assets divided by the

Group's total current liabilities

Central China New Life Limited 2 ¥4+ FER QT
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B IR B 5 A B AT

Business Review

Over the years, we have successfully expanded our business from
property management and value-added services to lifestyle services
and commercial property management and consultation services. Our
business now consists of three major segments. In 2020, with rapid
growth in its business, the Group continuously optimized its income
structure and steadily enhanced its operating efficiency. During the
period, the Group’s revenue amounted to RMB2,654.5 million,
representing an increase of 51.3% as compared with RMB1,754.4
million in the 2019. Net profit was RMB440.7 million, representing an
increase of 93.5% as compared with RMB227.8 million in the 2019.

Property management services and value-added services. We
have provided traditional property management services such as
security, cleaning and greening services since 1994, and over the
years, we have expanded our service offerings to include value-added
services aimed at elevating the living quality of the residents in the
properties we manage. To build modern interactive and intelligent
environments in communities, we provide intelligent community
solutions to property developers as well as residents. Furthermore,
utilizing our strong network of property buyers with purchasing
power, we provide property agency services to property developers
found within buyers and sellers. Further, as part of our value-added
services,
community solutions to VIPs of the Central China Consumers Club,
who are an exclusive group of high-net-worth customers. As of 31

we also provide personalized services and intelligent

December 2020, our property management and value-added services
covered all 18 prefecture-level cities (and also 97 of the 104 county-
level cities) in Henan as well as Haikou, Hainan, Korla, Bayingolin,
Xinjiang and Hengshui, Hebei and we served more than 1.5 million
property owners and residents in 427 properties. We manage a
diversified portfolio of properties, including residential properties,
shopping malls, cultural tourism complexes, commercial apartments,
office buildings, hospitals,
properties of governmental agencies. As of 31 December 2020, the
GFA under management and contracted GFA reached 100.0 million
sq.m. and 186.6 million sq.m. respectively, representing a respective
growth of 75.5% and 62.7% as compared with that as at 31
December 2019.

schools, city services, factories and

XK ERE

ZENR - BRI EEBHERDEERERIEE
RGEREEERELEEEEEE RBEHARE -
BMMEBHSE A= EEEDIPMHEMK - 2020F + &K
FEEBRBRBEE  RALBFENRS  £8
MBI - BN AEBRABARE2,654.5
BET R2019F ARM1,754.48 8 L& M
51.3% o FFHAARE440.7EETT » B2019F A
R#227.8 8 BTiEMN93.5% °

MEEERBERIGERS - M E1994F Hiaied
TR CBRERREICREEERMEEERS  2F
RATEEMRAEELE  MABERARMAEEY
ENFPNETEESMNEERY - ATHERER
BRRXERNGEIRE  BMODEREAREPIR
MEBHERATR - 1IN RMFARANES
BEINBEREERLG PAREFREAFFRIND
EMEEREDEREBRS - N (EARFEE
RFEH—5D BPTMAEEEMBEAVIPES (F
iwlm@ﬁ%}f ZEE) REMAECRSE RS

EHEMRTTE - N20205612 4318 » RANYE
ﬂi&i‘fﬁﬂ&ﬁﬁ = EE R 18EAT (AR
1041 85 AR T R W97 B B AR I ) /B R & /8 K
W HEEMERS™ - AL EKT - BRMRE
RTEYMEFEISOEREEREF - RMEESE
MEMRE  PIEEEDE ®B5  ULREGEE -
EEANE - WAL - B BB - MRS - BE
DI - 1R2020F12 A31 80 » £EmiaE
/\A@Wi/‘ﬁljfﬂzowiuﬂm H % £75.5% &
62.7% ' ZH100.0BBFHKKR186.6BEEFHK o
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
BEEIwmES T ()

Lifestyle services. Lifestyle services include products and services we
offer on our Jianye+ (EZ+) platform, travel services, and
management services we provide in Cuisine Henan Foodcourts (&%
KRE). The Jianye+ (EZ+) platform is an 020 one-stop service
platform which integrates our internal and external, online and offline
resources in order to provide our customers with more convenient
and more affordable goods and services. The Jianye+ (33 +) platform
provides three main online services: (i) membership benefits; (ii)
concierge services; and (iii) goods and services from One Family
Community (—ZFK 2 %k). As of 31 December 2020, we were
cooperating with over 730 suppliers, some of which were well-known
brands that were listed on NASDAQ or the Stock Exchange. We also
offer a wide range of benefits, including exclusive offers with hotels,
malls and restaurants in Henan. Our travel services offer four distinct
types of tours to customers, namely leisure tours, corporate tours,
sports and health tours and educational tours. The nine Cuisine
Henan Foodcourts (22 KR %) we manage hosted over 453 vendors
as of 31 December 2020, offering a wide variety of food options to
consumers.

Central China New Life Limited ¥ # 4 FER AT

EERE c EERBEERMNEE+FARENE
mERE  IRERBEUARREEAREREENEE
RS - BE+FER2—H020—WARKEFE - £
ATHRMOANITRING - B ERETER - BEAM
NEFIRHUTEFHE FTEENRRLERE - 2¥+F
ERH-BEIZHEERE : VSEER HBELE
KR R(i)RE —RAEH R MRS © 72020
F12A318  HMEBB7IOREEFETEE
H o AEMNNMERSBR ETHAERE -
BAMRE—RAER - BEEAEAEE - §i5
MEEZXBRER - HMNKEREERARP
R TEB IR IR - BRI IREE - ARIER
BB RERERMAE KD - 2020612 A31
B ZMBEENONREERRE ABB4S3IEHS -
BEEERESEXR -



Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EIRE R AT (48)

Commercial property management and consultation services.
Unlike property management services where we offer a series of
traditional property management services to property developers,
property owners and property occupants, our commercial property
management and consultation services focus on enhancing the value
of properties by streamlining operations of a property to reduce costs
and attracting business to increase income. Our commercial property
services comprise (i) hotel
management, (i) commercial asset management and (iii) cultural

management and consultation

tourism complex management. For hotels, we manage a hotel’s
overall operations, supervise hotel operations performed by an existing
operator and provide consultancy services. For other commercial
assets, we provide pre-opening consultation and post-opening
management services. For commercial asset management, our
Company primarily manages shopping malls by providing two main
categories of services: (i) pre-opening consultation, which includes
services such as market research on vendor and clientele
demographics, financial analysis, vendor solicitation and management
and strategic planning; and (ii) post-opening management services,
which includes services such as vendor management, sales and
operation management, and training management. As for cultural
tourism complex management, our Company’s services include the
branding and overall operations management, consultancy services,
technical support on technology research and promotion (including
the selection and assessment of seeds to be used), agricultural
product sale, agricultural product planting and project planning. For
cultural tourism complexes, our services include overall operations and
consultancy services. In each area, we strive to help our clients
achieve asset value appreciation and sustainable development. As of
31 December 2020, our portfolio of commercial properties under
management consisted of three cultural tourism complexes (with an
aggregate site area of approximately 10.1 million sq.m.), seven
shopping malls (with a total GFA of approximately 0.6 million sq.m.)
and nine hotels (with a total GFA of approximately 0.3 million
sq.m.).

BEEEEERBZARE - TRARKMAMERAE
B EEIRFEPRE-RINERAMEETEREOY
XTERE  BMANBEEEETBERAZAREET
PRI IB (L ) 318 & DABR KA AN R 1B 18 5 75 LASE hn
WA - MR AMEEE - RPIONIEEEEER
BARBEEOVEEER  (IBEEETE : &)
MAbIRFEGEREER -WBEME - RMEEBEE
MEREY EEAALCEEERMNAEELERIE
HEBEARY -EMAEEENS - KPIRMHAE
AR ARAEEREERE HEEEETEMS -
ARG EZ@EBREMAEREREERS : ()A
¥R (BREYRPREPYERTEITTSEA
B BN BREFREREEARKKAIER
%) RNAXREERE (BEEFEE  HEX
EEEBUNEIIEBERE) - LXLiREEER A8
EEME  ARANREEEREEIREREY
B HRRG BT RiEEESEN R
B(EEEELRTEBERANET)  BERHEE
BEREBERIBEBME - ibRELREEmS -
BMOREREREELE REHARY - £5E
BB RENEFEREEEBENERFER
B - M2020F12A318  BRMWEEEEMERS
BREZENERERARE (R EENA10188
FHAK) ARG (BEERENARIEETA
KIBRNRBE (BRELEMELHABOIBEFFK) -
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EIRE S am AT (48)

Financial Review

Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recorded a
revenue of RMB2,654.5 million (2019: RMB1,754.4 million),
representing an increase of 51.3% as compared with 2019. The
revenue of the Group were generated from three main business
segments: (i) property management and value-added services; (ii)
lifestyle services; and (iii) commercial property management and
consultation services.

The following table sets forth a breakdown of our revenue by
business segment for the record period:

Bt % [ B8

ON

HE2020F 12 A31BLEFE AEBMERKVAAR
265458 BT (2019 : AR, 754458
JC) 0 820195 IN51.3% > REBUA R E ==
ZEK:()VEEEREERS  (VEERE : &
(INXEEEE RE AR -

TREHNBEMACHIAEREEB D HBE S VBA
AR 4A :

2020
20204
Revenue
A
(RMB’000)
(AR®TF )
Property management and value- MEE R RIEERS
added services 2,198,540 82.8 1,341,092 76.4
Lifestyle services &5 RS 366,382 13.8 308,575 17.6
Commercial property management — BEEEEE K AHRE
and consultation services 89,577 3.4 104,735 6.0
Total revenue A PN 2,654,499 100.0 1,754,402 100.0

Central China New Life Limited ¥4 FEBR QT



Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BB AT ()

Property management and value-added services

During the year, the revenue from our property management and
value-added services reached RMB2,198.5 million (2019: RMB1,341.1
million), representing an increase of 63.9% as compared to last year.
The increase was primarily attributable to (i) an increase in our total
GFA under management from 57.0 million sgq.m. as of 31 December
2019 to 100.0 million sq.m. as of 31 December 2020, resulting in an
increase of revenue from property management; (ii) the increase of
business volume for value-added services such as agency services and
intelligent communities, resulting in an increase of revenue from
value-added services.

The table below sets forth the details of our revenue from each
service in this business segment during the year:

VX EE RIEERE

FR - WEERERIEERBUAZEARE2,19858
BT (20194F : ARBE13411BETL) » BREFEIN
63.9%  ZEEREFZERRANAEENBEEREA
B2019F 12 A31HMS57.08 & F KRG =R
2020F 12 A31EHMI100.0EEF K BEMEE
RUAIE DN : (B RIE - BEHRFZERSEN
ET5IE hE BUSE RIS IR AL -

TREINNFALFIKBAZEB D BE ARG AU
AFHS

Year ended 31 December

HZ12A31BLEE
2020 2019
20205 20194
(RMB’000) % (RMB'000) %
(AR%ET ) % (AREFT) %
Property management services ERREN T 860,267 39.1 592,356 44.2
Value-added services: HERY
Community value-added services L[ 3 E R 623,702 28.4 284,966 212
Value-added services to FEEEHERY
non-property owners 714,571 325 463,770 34.6
Total =8 2,198,540 100.0 1,341,092 100.0

During the year, revenue from property management services
amounted to RMB860.3 million (2019: RMB592.4 million),
representing an increase of 45.2% as compared to last year, which
was mainly attributable to the increase in property management
income as a result of the increase in the GFA under management of
the Group's property management from 57.0 million sq.m. as at 31
December 2019 to 100.0 million sg.m. as at 31 December 2020.

The Group’s value-added services include community value-added
services and value-added services to non-property owners. Community
value-added services mainly include decoration management and
inspection, public area management, turnkey and move-in furnishing
services,
Central China Consumers Club. Value-added services to non-property
owners mainly include pre-launch intermediary services,
management, property inspection income, pre-delivery cleaning and
other services.

intelligent community solutions and the services of the

on-site

FRN - MEEERBURAEARESOIBEET
(2019F : ARMS24FH & 7T) » W E F 140
452% R RETZRFERAEEDESTENES
MAEMMR2019F 12 A31HMS7.0E B F A KEMNE
M2020%12 831B®100.0B EF 7K BE
EIRU AL N ©

AEERERE2ELEEEREMIEXTEER
i‘% HERERFIZEEREEE AHEBZE

CREAE BEHERRTREEMBEERS -
3E¥Ii‘fﬁﬂ}§ﬁ$£@ﬁﬁf MR REEE R
FBA - FRFRRERS -
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EIRE R AT (48)

During the year, revenue from community value-added services
amounted to RMB623.7 million (2019: RMB285.0 million),
representing an increase of 118.9% as compared to last year, which
was mainly attributable to (i) revenue of RMB71.1 million from the
new turnkey and move-in furnishing business in 2020 (2019: Nil); (ii)
increase of operation service fee income from RMB47.2 million in
2019 to RMB94.4 million in 2020 due to the increase in memberships
of the Central China Consumers Club; and (iii) increase of income
from intelligent community business from RMB179.9 million in 2019
to RMB363.9 million in 2020 due to the acquisition of intelligent
community business in early 2019, which started to develop steadily
in the second half of 2019.

Revenue from value-added services to non-property owners amounted
to RMB714.6 million (2019: RMB463.8 million), representing an
increase of 54.1% as compared to last year, which was mainly
attributable to (i) increase of revenue from pre-launch intermediary
services and on-site management from RMB174.5 million in 2019 to
RMB261.0 million in 2020 as a result of active expansion of third-
party business; (i) revenue of RMB20.6 million from the pre-delivery
cleaning business in 2020 (2019: Nil); and (iii) due to the impact of
the COVID-19 pandemic, property agency commission generally
increased, and property agency commission income increased from
RMB195.9 million in 2019 to RMB347.6 million in 2020.

As of 31 December 2020, the total GFA under management of the
Group was 100.0 million sg.m., representing an increase of 43.0
million sq.m. or 75.5% as compared with 57.0 million sq.m. as of 31
December 2019. The increase was mainly attributable to the increase
in projects delivered by the CCRE Group and its associates or joint
ventures. For the year ended 31 December 2020, the average
property management fee rate charged by the Group was
approximately RMB1.81 per sg.m./month (for the year ended 31
December 2019: 1.82 per sg.m./month).

Central China New Life Limited 2 ¥4+ FER QT

FRN O HEBEEERBUAZEAREITEE T
(20194 : ARM285.0H & L) » 8= F N
118.9% + #ZILRE ZHRIRA()2020F 828 AT
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R R EBWA206EET(20195F : ) &
(i) COVID-19Z FE - MEREMESLBRA
WEAREFESWAH2019FNARBI595E T
EIME2020F W ARKE3476EETT °

M2020F 128310 AEBBEEMIEA100.08
B K BR2019F12 A31BHS57.08&F K
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EIRE R AT (48)

The table below sets out the breakdown of our total GFA under
management for our property management services attributable to the
properties developed by the CCRE Group (and its associates or joint
ventures) and third-party property developers as of the dates
indicated.

TEREINHEMTABERFIARREE (& EH
BRARBERR)RF=ZTVNEREBMAEY
ERHMWMEERRBABUNEELZERERA

As of 31 December 2020 As of 31 December 2019

#2020 12A31H 2019612 A31H
GFA GFA
EEEE BEmA
‘000 sq.m. % ‘000 sq.m. %
FERK % FEHAK %
The CCRE Group and its associates — FEEEE K EHH & QA5
or joint ventures SEME 54,917 54.9 39,272 68.9
Third-party property developers E=AMERERD 45,101 45.1 17,711 31.1
Total &5t 100,018 100.0 56,983 100.0
Lifestyle services IR

For lifestyle services, we offer a wide range of lifestyle services, which
include (i) products and services we offer on our Jianye+ (¥ +)
platform, (ii) travel services, and (iii) management services we provide
in Cuisine Henan Foodcourts (2% ARXE). During the year, the
revenue from our lifestyle services reached RMB366.4 million (2019:
RMB308.6 million), representing an increase of 18.7% as compared to
last year. The increase was primarily attributable to the increase of
registered users on our Jianye+ (% +) platform from approximately
2.2 million as of 31 December 2019 to approximately 3.7 million as
of 31 December 2020, and the increase in revenue due to the
growth in user base and user consumption.

HEERBME  BMRE—RINEEFRY 253
WHEPERE+Fa FRENESRRRY ()R
% RNBEMERERRERENEERY - F
A ETERBWRAEARE366.45E 7T (20195 ¢
ARME308.6 &) WMEFIENMI8.7% * %K
FERBERABRMOEZ+FEHNR2019F12A31H
A2 2B BAEMAFEER20209412A318
W3 7TEBEEMAr  BR¥ENEREAFEE
I REHRARNEE -
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BIEE I wmES T (8)

The table below sets forth the details of our revenue from each  TREFIAFERNEIIKBEZEKD IS ERE U
service in this business segment during the year. AFE -

2020
20204
(RMB'000) %
(AR®T ) %
Jianye+ EE+ 286,529 78.2 156,316 50.6
Travel services IR 352 AR 7% 54,810 15.0 138,789 45.0
Cuisine Henan Foodcourts BEARRE 25,043 6.8 13,470 4.4
Total a3t 366,382 100.0 308,575 100.0
Commercial Property Management and BXREEEERZHARE

Consultation Services

For commercial property management and consultation services, we FEEZLEZTEMZARBMES - RIFRENA TS
offer services in respect of (i) hotel management; (i) commercial asset TR : ()VE/EEIE  (VHEEESE  Ki)X
management; and (iii) cultural tourism complex management. During {LIRIELAABEIRE - FR > BEEETELHAR
the year, the revenue from our commercial property management and U AZEARMESI6EE L (2019F : ARM104.7
consultation services reached RMB89.6 million (2019: RMB104.7 HEE&JT) @ BEF NE145% » %%TE%IE%I/’%L%
million), representing a decrease of 14.5% as compared to last year.  COVID-19&%IEF £  BIEEIE X LIRELTRE 52
The decrease was mainly attributable to the development limitation of B %73 E F R EHMF FAHLL WA T -

our hotel management and cultural tourism complex management

business under the COVID-19 pandemic, resulting in a decrease in

revenue during the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EIRE R AT (48)

The table below sets forth the details of our revenue from each
service in this business segment during the year.

TREIIRFARMRERES DB
R

T8 fl 755 H9 UK

Year ended 31 December

BZ1N2B31ALEE

2020 2019

20204 20194
(RMB'000) % (RMB'000) %
(AR%T ) % (AR®FT) %
Hotel management IR E R 8,162 9.1 17,499 16.7
Commercial property management ~ FXBEEE 26,781 29.9 16,451 15.7

Cultural tourism complex MAbHR AR & B E
management 54,634 61.0 70,785 67.6
Total a5t 89,577 100.0 104,735 100.0
Cost of Sales HE R

Our cost of sales primarily consists of employee benefit expenses,
outsourcing labor costs, greening and cleaning expenses, cost of
goods sold, outsourcing costs of tourism services, utilities, selling
expenses, maintenance business costs, construction costs, professional
service fees, security charges, depreciation and amortization charges,
travelling and entertainment expenses, office expenses, taxes and
other levies and other costs.

During the year, the cost of sales of the Group was RMB1,793.8
million (2019: RMB1,178.1 million), representing an increase of
52.3% as compared to last year. This is mainly because the Group
was in a rapid development stage, and the cost of sales increased
correspondingly with the increase in revenue of the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EIRE S am AT (48)

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin
The following table sets forth our gross profit and gross profit margin
by business segment during the year:

Gross profit

E£7 EFIES

ENREBNR
TREFBMRFRZEHHBESOENRER
2.

- -

2020
20205
Gross profit
margin

RMB’000 %

ARETR %

Property management and value- MEEEBRIEBERY
added services:
Property management services M E R RTS
Community value-added services At [ 35 B AR 75
Value-added services to non- X RERS

property owners

Lifestyle services A R 7

Commercial property management ~ EEEZEEERLHRE
and consultation services

Total &5t

149,908 17.4 91,990 15.5
209,470 33.6 97,076 341
327,722 45.9 216,875 46.8
687,100 31.3 405,941 30.3
119,867 32.7 101,245 32.8

53,750 60.0 69,098 66.0
860,717 324 576,284 32.8

During the year, the gross profit of the Group was RMB860.7 million
(2019: RMB576.3 million), representing an increase of 49.4% as
compared to last year. The gross profit margin of the Group
decreased slightly from approximately 32.8% for the year ended 31
December 2019 to approximately 32.4% for the year ended 31
December 2020.

The gross profit margin of our property management and value-added
services increased from 30.3% for the year ended 31 December
2019 to 31.3% for the year ended 31 December 2020, which was
mainly attributable to the increase in the GFA under management in
2020, where economies of scale led to an increase of 1.9 percentage
points for the gross profit margin of our property management
services.

The gross profit margin of our lifestyle services for the year ended 31

December 2020 was approximately 32.7%, which was at a similar
level as approximately 32.8% for the year ended 31 December 2019.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EIRE R AT (48)

The gross profit margin of our commercial property management and
consultation services decreased from approximately 66.0% for the
year ended 31 December 2019 to approximately 60.0% for the year
ended 31 December 2020. The decrease was mainly attributable to
the partial exemption of the commercial property management fee of
the Group in the first half of 2020 under the pandemic.

Selling and Marketing Expenses

During the year, the selling and marketing expenses of the Group
amounted to RMB52.9 million, representing an increase of 13.8% as
compared with RMB46.5 million in 2019, and accounting for
approximately 2.0% of our revenue, which was a decrease of 0.7
percentage points as compared with 2019. This was mainly
attributable to (i) an increase in the number of employees we hired
due to the expansion in our business scale; and (ii) an increase in
salaries, employee benefits and other expenses paid to our sales, sales
support and marketing personnel, which was in line with our revenue
growth and business expansion.

Administrative Expenses

During the year, the administrative expenses of the Group amounted
to RMB273.4 million, representing an increase of 18.7% as compared
with RMB230.3 million in 2019, and accounting for approximately
10.3% of our revenue, which was a decrease of 2.8 percentage
points as compared with 2019. This was mainly attributable to an
increase in the number of employees we hired in connection to the
expansion in our business scale, resulting in a corresponding increase
in salaries and benefits. This was in line with our revenue growth and
business expansion.

Other Income

During the year, other income of the Group amounted to RMB17.5
million (2019: RMB20.5 million), representing a decrease of 14.3% as
compared with 2019. The above decrease was mainly a result of the
decrease in interest income from loans to external parties.

Income Tax

During the year, income tax expense of the Group amounted to
RMB116.2 million (2019: RMB74.7 million). The income tax rate was
20.9% (2019: 24.3%), representing a decrease of 3.4 percentage
points as compared with 2019, mainly due to certain subsidiaries of
the Group continue to enjoy preferential EIT rate.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
BIEE I wmEST (8)

Profit

During the year, the net profit of the Group amounted to RMB440.7
million, representing an increase of 93.5% as compared with
RMB227.8 million in 2019. The net profit margin was 16.6%,
representing an increase of 3.6 percentage points as compared with
13.0% in 2019. This was benefited from the fact that while the
business of the Group underwent rapid growth, the economies of
scale resulted in a lower increase rate of administrative expenses as
compared with that of revenue. During the vyear, the profit
attributable to owners of the Company amounted to RMB426.6
million, representing an increase of 82.3% as compared with
RMB234.0 million in 2019. Basic earnings per share amounted
RMBO.38.

Financial Resources Management and Capital
Structure

We have adopted comprehensive treasury policies and internal control
measures to review and monitor our financial resources. As at 31
December 2020, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents amounted to
approximately RMB2,217.8 million (31 December 2019: approximately
RMB584.8 million). The increase is mainly attributable to receipt of
IPO proceeds. The Group maintained at net cash position as at 31
December 2020 without any borrowings. Subsequent to the reporting
period, the Company has declared a final dividend of approximately
RMB190.9 million in total to the shareholders of the Company, which
will be distributed out of the Company’s share premium.

The gearing ratio is calculated as total borrowings divided by total
equity, and the sum of long-term and short-term interest bearing
bank loans and other loans as of the corresponding date divided by
the total equity as of the same date. As of 31 December 2020, the
gearing ratio was nil.

Trade and Other Receivables

As of 31 December 2020, trade and other receivables amounted to
RMB1,238.3 million, representing an increase of 65.3% as compared
with that of RMB749.2 million as of 31 December 2019, which was
primarily attributable to the scale expansion of the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEENwENT ()

Trade and Other Payables

As of 31 December 2020, trade and other payables amounted to
RMB653.9 million, representing an increase of 37.7% as compared
with that of RMB474.9 million as of 31 December 2019, which was
primarily attributable to (i) the scale expansion of the Group due to
the increase in the GFA under management and subcontracting of
more services to independent third-party service providers; and (ii) the
expansion of the intelligent community solution business under the
property management services and value-added services segment.

Proceeds from the Listing

The Company’s ordinary shares were listed on the main board of
Hong Kong Stock Exchange (the “Listing”) on 15 May 2020. After
deducting the underwriting fees and relevant expenses, net proceeds
from the Listing amounted to approximately HK$2,280.8 million
(equivalent to RMB2,088.7 million). As of 31 December 2020, the
Group has used approximately RMB179.03 million of the proceeds, of
which:

ESRHEHMEMNKIE

M20206F12 A31 8 - B REMENRIEEARE
653.95 BT BM2019F12 A31 B ARKEA74.9
BETEM37.7% c TEZMRR)AEE REMEL
MERAEBMBREBARBESZRESBTEILE
=R RER - R>)ERNDEEERE LK ER
BoBTHEELRABRTRER -

tHREMIE

ANRAFE B 202065 1S H RN EE BB P
FIREW(ETD - SIBREHERRMABAXE
EWABRIEFELNA2,2808FEE T (HHERA
[R#2,088.7H&7T) - 2020512 A3180 » "&EH
EEAHARE179.035ETHWATERE  H -

Percentage
of total Actual  Unused net
proceeds Proceeds expenditures proceeds
G FE R RBAMB
Major categories TEEA BmEEoL FrisRE BB REFRHE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR®TR ARBTR
1. Strategic investment, cooperation 1. BiEEIERE - AER U EE 60% 1,253,216 74,993 1,178,223
and acquisition
2. Enhancement of Jianye+ platform 2. MG EE+F A UE(L 15% 313,304 39,738 273,566
to optimize user experience AFEk
3. Investment in advanced 3. REFEERRMAR 15% 313,304 19,865 293,439
information technology systems
4. General working capital 4. —REBEES 10% 208,870 44,433 164,437
Total &5 2,088,694 179,029 1,909,665

The unused proceeds are expected to be used for the above purposes
within three years upon the Listing Date.

Pledge of Assets
As of 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any pledged assets
for its loan guarantee.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
BIEE I wmEST (8)

Major Acquisition and Disposals

Acquisition of Equity Interest in Jiyuan Zhongbang
Pursuant to an equity transfer agreement entered into by the Group
and the shareholders of Jiyuan City Zhongbang Environmental
Sanitation Co., Ltd. (“Jiyuan Zhongbang”) on 25 September 2020, the
Group acquired 51% equity interest in Jiyuan Zhongbang at a cash
consideration of RMB16.98 million. Jiyuan Zhongbang is a waste
disposal company located in Jiyuan City, Henan Province, the PRC,
which provides environmental hygiene and cleaning management
services, and possesses advanced technology on the production and
operation of waste disposal The equity transfer
registration arrangement was completed in September 2020. Since
then, Jiyuan Zhongbang has become a subsidiary of the Group.

equipment.

Please refer to note 28 of the consolidated financial statements for
more details.

Save as disclosed in this report, there were no other significant
investments held, no material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries,
affiliates and joint venture enterprises, nor was there any plan
authorized by the Board for other material investments or additions of
capital assets at the date of this report.

Major Investment
As of 31 December 2020, the Group did not hold any significant
investment.

Contingent Liabilities and Capital Commitment
As of 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities and capital commitment.

Foreign Exchange Risk

The principal activities of the Group are conducted in the PRC, and a
majority of the Group's income and expenses were denominated in
Renminbi. Therefore, the Group is not exposed to material risk
directly relating to foreign exchange rate fluctuation except certain
bank balances were denominated in Hong Kong dollars, which were
held by the Company in its own functional currency. Currently, the
Group has not entered into contracts to hedge its exposure to
foreign exchange risk, but the management will continue to monitor
the foreign exchange exposure, and take prudent measures to reduce
the foreign exchange risk.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EIRE R AT (48)

Employees and Remuneration Policy
As of 31 December 2020, we had 5,413 full time employees,
substantially all of whom were located in Henan province.

In order to promote healthy competition among employees and
motivate them to deliver their best performance, the Company has
further optimised its existing remuneration and incentive system and
established a performance-oriented management concept and
remuneration and incentive system, according to which the
remuneration levels, remuneration adjustment and job transfer of
employees will be determined based on their performance appraisal
results. The overall remuneration system of the Company will also be
adjusted
remuneration level to ensure the external competitiveness and internal
equity of the remunerations of our employees and provide guarantees
for retaining and attracting talent.

regularly with reference to the prevailing market

In addition, the Company has formulated and implemented human
resource policies which are conducive to the sustainable development
of the Company. Adhering to the talent concept of “professional
spirit and professional quality”, the Company takes professional ethics
and professional ability as important standards for selecting and
employing employees and strengthens employee training and
continuous education to constantly improve their quality. Meanwhile,
the Company also places high emphasis on the career development of
its employees. It assists employees to plan out their career paths
according to their expertise and capabilities, provides them with
various career channels and development opportunities, and cultivates
and retains talent for key posts to promote the continuous
improvement of its organising ability.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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Business Outlook

As a new lifestyle services provider, the Group possesses a more
extensive service system and portfolio of products and services as
compared to traditional property management companies. With the
high-net-worth, high purchase frequency and high stickiness of the
Group's customers, the consumption pattern of the Group’s
customers are characterized by increasing consumption power and
diversified needs. Therefore, the Group is able to build an enriched
and high-quality supply ecosystem to provide its customers with a
one-stop convenient and enriched life by leveraging its strength in
high quality, high density and rich resources.

Property services are the foundation and cornerstone of the Group
and also the primary driver for the continuous development of the
Group. The size of GFA under management is one of the crucial
factors in the valuation of a property management company in the
capital market. In order to maintain our leading position in central
China region, the Group will continue to strengthen its efforts on
property development by focusing on mergers and acquisitions.

Technology empowerment is the only way to reduce costs and
increase efficiency. We will focus on
intelligent properties, evaluating the achievement of technology
investment, and integrating organizational management to achieve the
goal of cost reduction and efficiency enhancement as soon as
possible.

increasing investment in
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Company has always valued the superiority, steadiness and
rationality of having a sound system of corporate governance and is
committed to continuously improving its corporate governance and
disclosure practices. During the period from the Listing Date to 31
December 2020, the Company has complied with all code provisions
and mandatory disclosure requirements and, where appropriate,
adopted the recommended best practices set out in the Corporate
Governance Code in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) with the
exception of code provision A.2.1 as addressed below.

Code provision A.2.1 — Pursuant to this code provision, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Wang Jun is currently
the chairman of the Board and the chief executive officer of the
Company, responsible for formulating and executing our business
strategies, annual operational and financial plans of the Company.

The Board believes that vesting the roles of both chairman and chief
executive officer in Mr. Wang Jun has the benefit of ensuring
consistency and continuous leadership within the Group and also
maximizes the effectiveness and efficiency of overall planning and
execution of its strategies. The Board considers that the balance of
power and authority, accountability and independent decision-making
under its present arrangement will not be impaired in light of the
diverse background and experience of its three independent non-
executive Directors. Further, the Audit Committee of the Company
comprises exclusively of independent non-executive Directors has free
and direct access to the Company’s external auditors and independent
professional advisers when it considers necessary. Therefore, our
Directors consider that the deviation from Code Provision A.2.1 of the
Corporate Governance Code is appropriate in such circumstance.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS OF LISTED ISSUERS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules as the code of conduct for the Directors in their
dealings in the Company’s securities. Having made specific enquires
with each Director, the Company confirmed that the Directors had
complied with the required standard as set out in the Model Code for
the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2020.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board, which is chaired by Mr. Wang Jun, consists of two
executive Directors and five non-executive Directors, three of whom
are independent. The composition of the Board ensures a balance of
skills and experience appropriate for the requirements of the business
of Group and the exercising of independent opinion.

RATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
RERERWE (B)

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of
this report include:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Jun (Chairman)

Mr. Cai Bin (resigned on 26 March 2021)

Mr. Wang Qian (appointed on 26 March 2021)

Non-executive Directors
Ms. Wu Lam Li
Ms. Min Huidong

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Leong Chong

Ms. Luo Laura Ying

Ms. Xin Zhu

All executive Directors and non-executive Directors have entered into
service contracts with the Company for a specific term of 3 years.
Under the articles of association (the “Articles of Association”) of the
Company, the Board is empowered to appoint any person as a
Director to fill the casual vacancy on or as an additional Director.

In compliance with Rules 3.10 and 3.10A of the Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed three independent non-executive Directors
(representing one-third of the Board), one of whom possesses the
appropriate professional qualifications in accounting and financial
management. Each of the three independent non-executive Directors
has confirmed his independence of the Company and the Company
considers each of them to be independent in accordance with the
guidelines of assessing independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. Each of the three independent non-executive Directors
has signed a letter of appointment with the Company for a specific
term of three years.

Pursuant to Article 84(1) of the Articles of Association, at every
annual general meeting of the Company, one-third of the Directors
for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the
number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office
by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years. Pursuant to Article 84(2)
of the Articles of Association, Mr. Wang Qian, as a retiring Director
shall be eligible for re-election and shall continue to act as a Director
throughout the meeting at which he retires. In accordance with
Article 84(1) and 84(2) of the Articles of Association, Mr. Wang Jun,
Mr. Wang Qian and Ms. Min Huidong, therefore, will retire from their
offices at the AGM, and being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
RERERWE (B)

All Directors have given sufficient time and attention to the affairs of
the Group and in particular, the independent non-executive Directors
have provided the Board with their diversified expertise and
professional advices. The Board is of the view that there is a balanced
composition of executive, non-executive and independent non-
executive Directors in the Board and the independent non-executive
Directors are able to provide sufficient checks and balances to
safeguard the interests of the Group and its Shareholders. The
participation of the independent non-executive Directors in the Board
and committee meetings also provides independent judgment on the
issues relating to strategy, policy, performance, accountability, conflict
of interest and standards of conduct.

The Board members have access to timely information relating to the
Group'’s business and will be provided with further documents and
information upon request to enable them to make informed decisions.
Independent professional advice can be sought to discharge their
duties at the Group’s expense upon their request. No such advice was
sought during 2020. The Company has subscribed appropriate and
sufficient insurance coverage on Directors’ liabilities in respect of legal
actions taken against Directors arising out of corporate activities.

Responsibility of the Board

The Board is in charge of leadership and control of the Group and is
responsible for maximising the Group’s financial performance and
making decisions in the best interests of the Group and its
Shareholders. Under the leadership of Mr. Wang Jun, the chairman of
the Board (the “Chairman”), the Board is also responsible for
formulating and overseeing the business strategies and policies of the
Group, approving and monitoring annual budgets and business plans,
reviewing operational and financial performance, and reviewing and
monitoring the Group’s financial control and risk management
systems. The Board has delegated the daily operation and day-to-day
management of the Group as well as the implementation of the
Board’s policies and strategies to the executive Directors and
management of the Group.

Board Meetings and General Meeting

The Board holds meetings regularly and meets at other times as and
when required to review financial, internal and compliance controls,
risk management, company strategy and operating performance of the
Group. In addition, the Board holds general meeting to maintain an
on-going dialogue with the Shareholders. For the year ended 31
December 2020, the Board held 1
meetings, 1 audit committee meeting and 1 general meeting.

regular meeting, 4 ad hoc
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The number of Board meetings, committee meetings and general
meeting attended by each Director from 1 January 2020 to 31
December 2020 is set out in the following table:

ZEEN2020E1 1B E20205612 A31 8 iR H
FEEECR EFZELHMBRERSHAK
E A N

Audit Committee

Directors Board Meeting Meeting General Meeting
BE=x ExaeE EREEEEE BRERE
Number of meetings held

BITRHARR

Mr. Wang Jun 5/5 N/A 38 1/1
FEREE

Mr. Cai Bin 5/5 N/A 3E A 0/1
BOW S 4

Ms. Wu Lam Li 5/5 N/A T iEH 0/1

Fh i+

Ms. Min Huidong 5/5 N/A 38 0/1
RERLL

Mr. Leong Chong 5/5 11 01

A EE

Ms. Luo Laura Ying 5/5 Al 0N
e+

Ms. Xin Zhu 5/5 171 0/1
FIRL L

Sufficient notice for regular Board meetings and notice of reasonable
days for ad hoc Board meetings were given to all Directors so as to
ensure that each of them had an opportunity to attend the meetings,
and agenda and accompanying Board papers were given to all
Directors in a timely manner. As agreed by the Board, the Directors
may also seek independent professional advice at the Company’s
No such advice was sought during 2020. During the
intervals between Board meetings, the senior management of the

expense.

Company provides the Directors with information on a timely basis
regarding all
businesses.

major developments or changes in the Group’s

Should a Director have a potential conflict of interest in a matter
being considered in the Board meeting, he or she will abstain from
voting in respect of the relevant resolution. Independent non-
executive Directors with no conflict of interest will be present at

meetings to deal with such issues.
Full Board or committee papers will be sent to all Directors at least

three days before the intended date of a Board meeting or
committee meeting.
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Management has supplied the Board and its committees with
adequate information and explanations so as to enable them to make
an informed assessment of the financial and other information put
before the Board and its committees for approval. Management is
also invited to join the Board or committee meetings where
appropriate.

All the Directors are also entitled to have access to timely information
such as monthly updates in relation to our businesses and have
separate and independent access to senior management.

Directors’ Training

Code provision A.6.5 of the Corporate Governance Code requires all
Directors to participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

During the year, the Company Secretary regularly circulated reading
materials on the amendments to or updates on the relevant laws,
rules and regulations to all Directors as part of their training materials
in the continuous professional development plan of the Company and
the Company confirmed that all Directors read the training materials
and are in compliance with Code A.6.5.

In addition, every newly appointed Director will receive an induction
on the first occasion of his or her appointment, so as to ensure that
he or she has a proper understanding of the operations and business
of the Company, and his or her responsibilities under laws,
regulations and especially the governance policies of the Company.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The position of Chairman and the position of Chief Executive Officer
are held by Mr. Wang Jun. These two separate positions have clear
distinction in responsibilities.

As the Chairman, Mr Wang Jun is responsible for the management
and leadership of the Board to formulate overall strategies and
business development directions for the Group, to ensure that
adequate, complete and reliable information is provided to all
Directors in a timely manner, and to ensure that the issues raised at
the Board meetings are explained appropriately.

As the Chief Executive Officer, Mr Wang Jun is responsible for the
daily operations of the Group and the implementation of business
policies, objectives and plans as formulated and adopted by the
Board, and is accountable to the Board for the overall operation of
the Group.
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Accountability and Audit

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to present a balanced,
clear and understandable assessment of the Group’s performance,
position and prospects in the consolidated financial statements of the
annual and interim reports in accordance with statutory requirements
and applicable accounting standards. Pursuant to Code Provision
C.1.1 of the Corporate Governance Code, management should
provide such explanation and information to the Board as will enable
the Board to make an informal assessment of the financial and other
information put before the Board for approval. The Directors confirm
that, to the best of their knowledge, information and belief, having
made all reasonable enquiries, they are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that might cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2020, the Directors have selected appropriate accounting policies and
applied them consistently, and have made judgments and estimates
that are prudent and reasonable.

The Group has announced its annual and interim results in a timely
manner within the limits of three months and two months
respectively after the end of the relevant financial periods, as laid
down in the Listing Rules.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board is responsible for maintaining sound and effective risk
management and internal control systems to safeguard the Group's
assets and shareholders’ interests. The Group acknowledges the
responsibilities of the Board and the management in the risk
management and internal control systems:

o The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the
nature and degree of risk it is willing to take in achieving the
Group’s strategic objectives, and ensuring that the issuer
establishes and maintains appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems; overseeing the
management in the design, implementation and monitoring of
the risk management and internal control systems.

o The management is responsible for the design, implementation
and monitoring of the risk management and internal control
systems, and shall confirm to the Board on the effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control systems.
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The risk management and internal control systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Risk Management

In 2020, the Group established the risk management infrastructure,
defined the risk management process, adopted qualitative and
quantitative integrated risk management methods to identify, evaluate
and mitigate risks. It shall promote the sustainable and healthy
development of various businesses of the Group under controllable
risks.

Establishing a risk management organizational structure: The
Group has established a risk management organizational structure that
covers the decision-making level (the Board and the Audit
Committee), the execution level (the headquarters of the Group and
its subsidiaries at all levels) and the supervision level (the audit and
supervision center of the Group). This has clearly defined the
responsibilities and authorities and major work scopes of each level in
written form, which helps to comprehensively identify and manage
risks. The Group has sorted out the major risks regarding five risk
categories, namely strategic risk, market risk, operational risk, financial
risk and legal risk, and established a risk database. Based on the
strategic objectives of the Group and the risk appetite of the
management, the Group has formulated applicable risk assessment
dimensions and standards, as well as risk assessment methods with
qualitative and quantitative tools.

Decision-making authority
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The Board and Audit Committee

EFERERZRS

Executive authority

BATHR

Headquarter of the Group
(including all functional centers)
EEEE
(BIESBER L)

Subsidiaries of the Group
(including business divisions and
professional companies)
SETREMAR
(BIEEERD  HERFASH)

Supervision authority
EEHE

Audit and supervision center

of the Group
EHFFERPL

(Diagram 1: Organizational structure of risk management)
(B — : E kB AR A 2R )
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Establishes risk management process: Establishes a closed-loop risk
management process including risk identification, risk assessment, risk
response, risk monitoring, reporting and improvement, defines the
specific steps and contents of risk management work, and the
management tools used to support the process implementation. The
major steps of our risk management process are illustrated in the

diagram below:

Risk Identification —

Risk Assessment

Risk response

Risk Identification

B Bl )

Reporting and
Improvement

RIREBE

Risk monitoring

B B4

the headquarter
subsidiaries identify major risks that may
affect the achievement of strategies and
business objectives;

of the Group and

to evaluate and analyze the risks identified
from two dimensions, namely the possibility
of occurrence and the degree of impact of
risks, and to rank the importance of risks by
integrating risk assessment questionnaires,
data analysis and industry benchmarking;

analyze the effectiveness of existing risk
management measures, identify
monitoring gaps and formulate risk response
plans to control risks within an acceptable
level;

risk
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Risk monitoring — to track and inspect the implementation of
the risk response plan, and monitor the
effectiveness of risk management through
the audit and supervision center as the third
line of defense;

Reporting and — Discuss and communicate the work results
Improvement of risk management on a regular basis, and
continuously improve and optimize risk

management and control capabilities.

The main features of the Group's risk management system are as
follows:

o Closed-loop risk management process: The risk management
process adopts a combination of top-down and bottom-up
approaches. Through a series of work processes including risk
identification, risk assessment, risk response, risk monitoring,
reporting and improvement, the Group fully understands the
major risks faced by the Group and continuously monitors and
manages the risks through a closed-loop risk management
process.

o Risk database with clear levels and prominent focuses:
Based on five risk categories, namely strategy, market,
operation, finance and law, and taking into account the
principles of comprehensiveness, importance, synergy and
standardization, the Group has established a risk database at
different levels.

o Compliance with the Group’s risk assessment criteria: We
have established appropriate risk assessment criteria based on
the nature of the Company’s industry and business objectives,
and the management’s risk appetite.

o Continuous improvement and optimization mechanism: The
frequency of risk assessment (at least once a year) and
reporting and communication requirements are specified.
Through regular assessment, implementation and follow-up of
risk response measures, communication and reporting, the
Company continuously improves the risk management work
process and optimizes risk management measures.
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During the year, the Group applied the assessment methods and
assessment criteria jointly confirmed by the management to evaluate,
analyze and prioritize the risks that would most likely affect the
realization of corporate objectives, determine the key risks exposed by
the Group, and discuss the management measures of such key risks.
Meanwhile, for each major risk, the Company sorted out and
recorded the existing risk response measures, proposed risk
management improvement advices according to the risk appetite of
the management, and reported the assessment results to the Audit
Committee.

Internal Control

The Board is responsible for establishing an appropriate internal
control system for the Group to safeguard the Group’s assets and
shareholders’ interests. The Audit Committee shall regularly review the
effectiveness of the internal control system to ensure that the internal
control system is adequate.

The Group has set up an audit and supervision center as the third
line of defense. Through internal audit and follow-up review on the
improvement of internal control deficiencies identified during the
audit process, the Group communicates with relevant management,
supervises the timely implementation of internal control improvement
measures, and provides the Board with independent and objective
opinions on the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems. At the same time, the audit and supervision
center have unrestricted access to the documents and records,
information systems and staff necessary for the implementation of the
audit procedures, and reports the audit results to the Audit
Committee.

As the first line of defense, the management at the Group’s
headquarters, business divisions and professional companies level and
their respective functional department managers have designed and
implemented a series of management policies and procedures to
ensure that their work is in compliance with laws, regulations and the
Company’s strategies and business objectives, and the heads of
relevant operating units and departments are responsible for
supervising the implementation and effectiveness of such policies and
procedures to ensure the effective operation of the Company’s
internal control system.
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In 2020, the management of the Group conducted internal control
review on selected key business processes based on the changes in
risk status and regulatory environment, identified the existing control
defects with a risk-oriented approach, specified the department mainly
responsible for control defects, the next response measures and
improvement plans, and reported the assessment results to the Audit
Committee.

Inside Information

The Group is aware of its obligations under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance and the Listing Rules. With respect to the procedures and
internal controls for the handling and dissemination of inside
information, the Company has formulated the Guidelines on
Management and Disclosure of Inside Information, and announced
the disclosure policy to the Directors, senior management and
relevant employees who may have access to sensitive information,
requiring them to comply with the relevant procedures, handle
confidential and/or inside information according to the guidelines,
monitor information disclosure and respond to enquiries.

Review of Risk Management and Internal Control
Systems

During the year under review, through the Audit Committee, the
Board has conducted a comprehensive review of the effectiveness of
the Group’s risk management and internal control systems, taking into
account the changes in the nature and severity of significant risks,
and the Group's ability to respond to changes in its business and the
external environment. The work during the year included the
establishment of the risk management system, the commencement of
2020 risk assessment and the commencement of internal control
review on key business areas, covering financial, operational and
compliance controls. The Board considers that the Group has
complied with the provisions on risk management and internal control
as stipulated in the Corporate Governance Code and considered the
risk management and internal control systems effective and adequate.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience of the accounting, internal audit and
financial reporting functions, training programmes and budget and
considered that they are adequate.
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Dividend Policy

The Company considers stable and sustainable returns to the
Shareholders to be its goal. In deciding whether to propose a
dividend and in determining the dividend amount, the Board shall

take into account, inter alia, the following factors:
o the financial condition of the Group;

o the liquidity position and expected working capital requirements
of the Group;

o any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed
by the Group's lenders;

o the retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company
and each of the members of the Group; and

o any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

The payment of the dividend by the Company is also subject to any
restrictions under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and the
Articles of Association of the Company.

Any final dividend declared by the Company must be approved by an
ordinary resolution of the Shareholders at an annual general meeting
of the Company and must not exceed the amount recommended by
the Board. The dividend policy will continue to be reviewed from time
to time and there can be no assurance that a dividend will be
proposed or declared in any specific period.

Board Committees and Corporate Governance
Functions

The Board has established three committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) and the Nomination Committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) to oversee the relevant aspects of the Company’s affairs.
The three Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties.

The Board as a whole is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties including:

a) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;
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b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

Q) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices in
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

e) to review the Company's compliance with the code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

Audit Committee

In compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, the Audit
Committee was established on 29 April 2020. The Audit Committee
comprises Ms. Xin Zhu (the chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr.
Leong Chong and Ms. Luo Laura Ying during the year ended 31
December 2020. None of them is a member of the former or existing
auditors of the Company. The Board is of the view that the members
of the Audit Committee have sufficient accounting and financial
management expertise and experience to discharge their duties.
However, the Audit Committee is also authorised to obtain external
legal or other independent professional advice if it considers
necessary.

The Audit Committee has written terms of reference in accordance
with the Code. The principal functions of the Audit Committee
include:

J To make recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of external independent auditors
and to approve the remuneration and terms of such
appointments;

o To review and monitor the independence and objectivity of the
external independent auditors and effectiveness of the audit
process in accordance with applicable standards;

o To review the Company’s financial controls, risk management
and internal control systems and other major financial matters;

o To review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices, and to monitor the Company’s financial operation
and core business status;
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RERERWE (B)

o To ensure that the management has fulfilled its duties and the
Group's strategic objectives to maintain an effective risk
management and internal control system;

o To ensure compliance with applicable statutory accounting and
reporting requirements, legal and regulatory requirements,
internal rules and procedures approved by the Board from time
to time; and

o To review and monitor the integrity of the financial statements,
annual and interim reports and the auditor's report to ensure
that the information presents a true and balanced assessment
of the Group's financial position.

The Audit Committee held 1 meeting during 2020 and conducted the
following responsibilities:

1) reviewed the Group’s interim results for the six months ended
30 June 2020;

2) reviewed the audit plans and findings of the external auditor;
and

3) made recommendation to the Board on the remuneration of the
external auditor.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group as well as considered and identified
risks of the Group subsequent to 31 December 2020 and will
continuously monitor the systems on a regular basis.

The Audit Committee also met with the external auditor annually in
the absence of management to discuss matters relating to any issues
arising from audit and any other matters the external auditor may
wish to raise.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the external independent
auditors’ remuneration to the Group’s auditor in respect of annual
audit and Interim review services provided to the Group amounted to
approximately RMB2.6 million and RMB1.1 million.

The Company’s annual results announcement dated 26 March 2021

for the year ended 31 December 2020 has been reviewed by the
Audit Committee.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 29 April 2020 with
written terms of reference as suggested under the code provision in
the Corporate Governance Code. The Nomination Committee
comprises three members, namely Mr. Wang Jun (the chairman of the
Nomination Committee), Mr. Leong Chong and Ms. Xin Zhu, a
majority of whom are independent non-executive Directors.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include: (i)
reviewing the structure, size and composition (including skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least once a year, and
making recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed
changes to the Board for conforming to the strategy of the
Company; (i) identifying and nominating qualified individuals to act as
Directors and making recommendations to the Board regarding such
matters; (i) assessing the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors; (iv) making recommendations to the Board
regarding the appointment or reappointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors, in particular the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer; and (v) reviewing the Board Diversity Policy (as
defined below), and the implementation of the progress targets set by
such policy.

The chairman of the Nomination Committee shall attend the annual
general meeting of the Company to answer questions raised by the
Shareholders on Directors’ nomination and other nomination policy
matters.

The Company has adopted the Board Diversity Policy with effect on
29 April 2020 which sets out its approach to achieve and maintain
diversity on the Board in order to enhance the effectiveness of the
Board.

The Company recognises the benefits of Board diversity and
endeavours to ensure that the Board has the appropriate and
balanced skill levels, experience and perspectives to support the
execution of its business strategies. The Company seeks to achieve
Board diversity through the consideration of a number of factors,
including professional qualifications and experience, cultural and
educational background, race and ethnicity, gender, age and length of
service. The Company will also take into consideration factors based
on its own business model and specific needs from time to time in
determining the optimum composition of the Board.

As recommended by the Nomination Committee, the Board has set
measurable objectives (in terms of gender, skills and experience) to
implement the Board Diversity Policy and review such objectives from
time to time to ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the
progress made towards achieving those objectives. The Nomination
Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate, to
ensure its continued effectiveness from time to time.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 29 April 2020 with
written terms of reference as suggested under the code provision in
the Corporate Governance Code. The Remuneration Committee
comprises three members, including two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Ms. Luo Laura Ying (the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee) and Mr. Leong Chong, and Mr. Wang Jun
(the Chairman and executive Director of the Company), during the

year ended 31 December 2020.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include (but not
limited to) (i) making recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policies and structures for all remuneration of the
Directors and senior management and on the establishment of a
formal and transparent procedure for developing policy on such
remuneration; (ii) determining the terms of the specific remuneration
package of individual executive Directors and senior management; and
(iii) reviewing and approving remuneration proposal by reference to
corporate objectives set by the Directors from time to time.

The amount of the executive Directors’ remuneration is determined by
the Remuneration Committee on the basis of the relevant executive
Directors’ experience, responsibility, workload and the time devoted to
the Group. The entire Directors’ remuneration is adjusted by the
Remuneration Committee from time to time.

The Remuneration Committee may also consult the Chairman on
proposals relating to the remuneration of other executive Directors
and has access to professional advice if necessary.

Company Secretary

In compliance with Rule 3.28 of the Listing Rules, the Company
Secretary is a full time employee and has the day-to-day knowledge
of the Company’s affairs. The Company Secretary is responsible for
advising the Board on corporate governance matters. For the year
under review, the Company Secretary has confirmed that she has
taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

Shareholders’ Rights

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the Shareholders and the Board. An annual
general meeting of the Company shall be held each year at the place
as may be determined by the Board. Each general meeting, other
than an annual general meeting, shall be called an extraordinary
general meeting.
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Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an
Extraordinary General Meeting and Put Forward
Proposals Thereat

The following procedures for the Shareholders to convene an

extraordinary general meeting are prepared in accordance with Article
58 of the Articles of Association of the Company:

)

2)

3)

4)

One or more Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of
the Company shall have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the Company Secretary, to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition.

The requisition must state the objects of the meeting, and must
be signed by the Shareholder(s) concerned and may consist of
several documents in like form, each signed by one or more of
those Shareholders.

The requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the
Company Secretary via mail to the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong at Room 7706, 77th Floor, International
Commerce Centre, 1 Austin Road West, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The extraordinary general meeting shall be held within two
months after the deposit of the requisition.

If the Directors fail to proceed to convene the extraordinary
general meeting within twenty-one (21) days of the deposit of
such requisition, the Shareholder(s) himself or themselves may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by him/her/them as a result of the failure of the Board
shall be reimbursed to the Shareholder(s) by the Company.

Proposals for Proposing a Person for Election as a
Director

Subject to applicable laws and regulations, including the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands, the Listing Rules and the Articles of
Association as amended from time to time, the Company may from

time to time in a general meeting by ordinary resolution elect any
person to be a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an
additional Director.
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A Shareholder may propose a person (the “Person”) for election as a
Director by lodging the following documents at the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong at Room 7706, 77th Floor,
International Commerce Centre, 1 Austin Road West, Kowloon, Hong
Kong:

1) a notice in writing signed by the Shareholder concerned of his/
her/its intention to propose the Person as a Director with full
particulars of the Person including his/her full name and
biographical details as required under Rule 13.51(2) of the
Listing Rules; and

2) a notice in writing signed by the Person of his/her willingness
to be elected as a Director.

Such notices shall be lodged at least seven (7) days prior to the date
of the general meeting and the period for lodgment of such notices
shall commence no earlier than the day after the despatch of the
notice of the general meeting appointed for such election and shall
be at least seven (7) days in length.

Procedures for Raising Enquiries

To ensure effective communication between the Board and the
Shareholders, the Company has adopted a Shareholders’
communication policy:

1) Shareholders may direct their questions about their shareholdings
to the Company’'s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited.

2) Shareholders may at any time send their enquires and concerns
to the Board in writing through the Company Secretary or the
Chief Financial Officer whose contact details are as follows:

Central China New Life Limited
Room 7706,

77th Floor,

International Commerce Centre,
1 Austin Road West,

Kowloon, Hong Kong

3) Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the
general meetings of the Company.
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Memorandum of Association and Articles of
Association

The Company’'s Memorandum of Association and Articles of
Association are available on both the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange. There had been no changes in the constitutional
documents of the Company for the period from the Listing Date to
31 December 2020.

Corporate Communication and Investor Relations
The major task and objective of the Group’s investor relations are to
clearly introduce the Group, including the business positioning,
existing operations and future development of the Group, to the
media, Shareholders, investors, analysts and investment banks through
different communication channels. In future, the Group shall further
enhance communication with the media, Shareholders, investors,
analysts and investment banks on various aspects such as
development strategies, operation and management, financial
prospects and business operation through meetings, senior
management’s participation in investor forums, conferences and
roadshows. The Group is confident in establishing and maintaining a
good relationship with the international capital institutions through
the continued enhancement of information transparency.

The Group emphasises the importance of maintaining good
communication with the Shareholders, so as to increase the
Company’s transparency and understanding by the Shareholders. To
enable that the Shareholders are effectively informed of the Group's
status and developments, the Group issues announcements, circulars,
notices, interim and annual reports in a timely manner. To enhance
the Company’s transparency, other information about the Company is
published on the Company’s website.

The Company’s annual general meetings allow the Directors to meet
and communicate with the Shareholders and to answer any queries
that the Shareholders may have. An external independent auditor is
also present at the annual general meetings. The Chairman will
propose separate resolutions for each issue to be considered at the
annual general meetings. A notice of annual general meeting is
delivered to all Shareholders at least 20 clear business days prior to
the date of the meeting, setting out details of each proposed
resolution and other information. Voting results are posted on the
websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

E=ZNEAEEEER

Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Jun, aged 40, was appointed as our Director on 16
October 2018, appointed as our chairman of our Board and chief
executive officer and redesignated as our executive Director of the
Group on 28 October 2019. Mr. Wang is mainly responsible for
formulating and executing our business strategies, annual operational
and financial plans.

Mr. Wang joined our Group in June 2018. Since June 2018, Mr.
Wang has been a director of Central China New Life and is mainly
responsible for formulating and executing business strategies, annual
operational and financial plans.

Prior to joining our Group, Mr Wang had more than 16 years of
experience in the accounting and corporate finance fields. From
August 2003 to June 2007, Mr. Wang served as an auditor and a
senior auditor successively at PricewaterhouseCoopers. From June
2007 to April 2011, he served as the head of the investor relations
department and senior manager of the finance department of
Country Garden Holdings Company Limited (BHEEEKR AR A A) (a
2007)
successively. From May 2011 to June 2018, he worked in the
investment banking division (real estate team) of Morgan Stanley Asia
International Limited, with the last position held as an executive

company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code:

director.

Mr. Wang also holds directorship positions in two other listed
companies. Mr. Wang was appointed as the executive director of
CCRE on 21 August 2018. Mr. Wang was also appointed as a non-
executive director of DIT Group Limited (2R & #ERHTEBE R A F])
(@ company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 726) on 17
September 2019.

Mr. Wang obtained his bachelor’s degree in English from Guangdong
University of Foreign Studies (EBERINEINE KZE) in the PRC in June
2002 and his master’s degree in business administration from Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology in November 2011.

Mr. Wang has an interest in the shares of the Company, details of
which are set out in the section headed “Directors’ and chief
executives’ interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares or
debentures” under Directors’ report in this annual report.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

EXLSAEEERE (B)

Mr. Wang Qian, aged 38, joined the Group in October 2020 as Vice
President and was promoted to Executive President in February 2021.

Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Wang had over 15 years of
experience in the online technology platform, consumer service and
property development industries. From December 2002 to February
2012, as a founder of Beijing Diancheng Technology Co., Ltd., Mr.
Wang was responsible for overseeing its online education business.
From March 2015 to January 2018, Mr. Wang concurrently worked as
the vice president of Shenzhen Yihua jewellery Co. Ltd. and the vice
president of Shenzhen Yongheng Real Estate Co., Ltd. From June
2018 to October 2020, as a founder of Biwei (Hangzhou) Technology
Co., Ltd., Mr. Wang was responsible for overseeing its online retail
business.

Mr. Wang is pursuing a remote EMBA Program in Paul-Valéry
University of Montpellier.

Mr. Cai Bin, aged 41, was appointed as our executive Director and
chief operating officer of our Group on 28 October 2019. Mr. Cai is
mainly responsible for managing the daily business operations of our
Group.

Mr. Cai joined our Group in December 2015. He served as the chief
operating officer of Central China Property Management from
December 2015 to February 2017 and was mainly responsible for
overseeing the operations of our property management business. He
was vice president of Central China New Life from February 2017 to
April 2018. Since April 2018, Mr. Cai has been serving as a director
of Central China New Life. Mr. Cai is also a director of various
subsidiaries of our Group.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

EXLSAEEERE (B)

Prior to joining our Group, from March 2003 to January 2015,
Mr. Cai served in various positions in the CCRE Group including (i)
the deputy general manager of Central China Residence Group
(China) Co., Ltd. (“CCRE China”) from March 2003 to January 2007,
(i) the general manager of the Pingdingshan division of CCRE China
from June 2006 to January 2007; (iii) successively as the deputy
general manager and general manager of the marketing department
of CCRE China from January 2007 to February 2009; (iv) concurrently
as the deputy general manager and the manager of the marketing
department of Kaifeng Central China Real Estate Company Limited
(FAEEEMESGR AR from August 2009 to February 2010; and (v)
successively as the deputy general manager, the executive deputy
general manager and the executive general manager of Henan
Central China Commercial Properties Management Company Limited
(TREEREMELLERERAAF) from March 2010 to January
2015. In his above positions, Mr. Cai was mainly responsible for the
management, coordination and implementation of property marketing
activities and commercial property development projects.

From January 2015 to December 2015, he served as the general
manager of Songyun Network, the former shareholder of certain of
our subsidiaries, i.e One Family Network, Songyun Beijing Information
and Aiou Electronic. Mr. Cai was mainly responsible for overseeing
the operations of the network technology development and
consulting services business.

Mr. Cai obtained his bachelor’s degree in law from Zhengzhou
University (BB KE) in the PRC in June 2006 and is currently
enrolled as an Executive Masters of Business Administration degree
candidate at the China Europe International Business School in the
PRC.

Mr. Cai resigned as the executive Director and chief operating officer
of our Group on 26 March 2021.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

EXLSAEEERE (B)

Non-executive Directors

Ms. Wu Lam Li, (former name: Li Lin), aged 64, was appointed as
our non-executive Director of our Group on 28 October 2019. Since
she joined our Group as a director in September 2016, Ms. Wu has
been mainly responsible for reviewing and supporting our overall
corporate and business development and strategic planning of our
Group. Ms. Wu is the spouse of Mr. Wu, one of our Controlling
Shareholders. Ms. Wu is also a director of various subsidiaries of our
Group.

Ms. Wu has also been serving in various positions in the CCRE
Group, including (i) legal representative and general manager of
Henan Central China Zhizun Hotel Investment Company Limited (7§
BEZEREEEARAA, a subsidiary of CCRE China, since June
2010; (ii) the vice president of CCRE China since April 2017; and (iii)
a director of Kaifeng Central China Dahong Xibeihu Hotel
Management Co., Ltd. (FAEHEEARFIBHBEEEEERAE), a
subsidiary of CCRE China.

Ms. Wu obtained her bachelor’'s degree in radio autocontrol from
Zhengzhou University (E8N A £8) in the PRC in November 1979.

Ms. Wu has an interest in the shares of the Company, details of
which are set out in the section headed “Directors’ and chief
executives’ interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares or
debentures” under Directors’ report in this annual report.

Ms. Min Huidong (alias: Min Min), aged 56, was appointed as our
non-executive Director of our Group on 28 October 2019. Ms. Min is
mainly responsible for reviewing and supporting our overall corporate
and business development and strategic planning of our Group.
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Prior to joining our Group, from April 1997 to October 2012, Ms.
Min served in various positions in the subsidiaries and associate
companies of CCRE Group including (i) a manager of the
management and human resources department of CCRE China from
April 1997 to December 1998; (ii) the general manager of Henan
Central China Education Development Company Limited (7 F %2 %%
BEXARAT) from January 1999 to December 2003, during
which she was mainly responsible for the management and operation
of various kindergartens,
concurrently as the general manager of the business development
department of CCRE China and editor in chief of CCRE’'s monthly
magazine from October 2002 to December 2003; (iv) the assistant
president of CCRE China from December 2003 to October 2004; (v)
the vice president and general manager of Yuxi division of CCRE
China from January 2004 to May 2006; (vi) the executive president of
CCRE China from June 2006 to February 2009; (vii) concurrently as
the deputy president of CCRE China and the general manager of
Zhengbian division of CCRE China from August 2009 to January
2010; (viii) concurrently as the vice president of CCRE China and
general manager of Henan Central China Commercial Real Estate
Management Co., Ltd. (WHEEBEMELEERERAA), a
subsidiary of CCRE China, from April 2010 to March 2011; (ix)
concurrently as the vice president of CCRE China and director of the
Committee for CCRE 20th Anniversary Affairs from June 2011 to
October 2012; and (x) concurrently as the vice president of CCRE

primary and secondary schools; (iii)

China and the general manager of Henan Central China Cultural
Tourism Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (A 58 22 2 S AL fifk i b 22 3
BB AF]), a subsidiary of CCRE China, since August 2012. Ms. Min
is also (xi) an executive director, legal representative and general
manager of Nanyang Central China Tourism Development Co., Ltd.
(S REREMZBRAQR), a subsidiary of CCRE China since July
2017; (xii) an executive director and legal representative of Luoyang
Central China Cultural Tourism Industry Co., Ltd. (& F5 & % XL ik %
EXABR A7), a subsidiary of CCRE China since May 2015; and (xiii)
a director, legal representative and general manager of Henan Central
China Huayi Brothers Cultural Tourism Industry Co., Ltd. (il g2 ¥ %
SER XL RIEEZE AR AF]), a subsidiary of CCRE China, and
general manager of its Zhengzhou division since September 2015.

Ms. Min obtained her bachelor’'s degree in education from Hebei
University of Engineering (JfJdt T2 KE) (formerly known as Hebei
Charcoal Engineering School (A4t B ki ZE T2 20%)) in the PRC in
July 1992 and her EMBA degree from the China Europe International
Business School in the PRC in June 2006.
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Ms. Min has an interest in the shares of the Company, details of
which are set out in the section headed “Directors’ and chief
executives’ interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares or
debentures” under Directors’ report in this annual report.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Leong Chong, aged 55, was appointed as our independent non-
executive Director of our Group on 29 April 2020. Mr. Leong is
primarily responsible for providing independent judgment on our
strategies, policy, performance, accountability, resources, key
appointments and standard of conduct.

Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Leong had over 20 years of
experience in the finance field. From July 1997 to June 2000, he
worked as an analyst in the equity research division of Morgan
Stanley Dean Witter. From June 2000 to October 2001, he was a
director of the equity research department of Credit Suisse First
Boston (Hong Kong) Limited. From June 2002 to September 2015, he
worked in Morgan Stanley Asia Limited with the last position held as
the managing director of the investment banking division. From
December 2016 to March 2019, he was the deputy general manager
of S.F. Holding Co., Ltd. (JEEZERR KD BR A A]), a company listed
on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 002352). Mr. Leong
has been appointed as an independent non-executive director of JY
Grandmark Holdings Limited (%A BEBIEARBRAF]) (@ company
listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 2231) since November
2019.

Mr. Leong was a director of Gateway Capital Group Limited (& &
ZHEHFRAF), a company incorporated in Hong Kong and was
dissolved on 9 August 2002. Mr. Leong confirmed that the above
company was solvent prior to its deregistration and was deregistered
as it had not commenced business since establishment or had ceased
to conduct business. He further confirmed that, as of the Latest
Practicable Date, no claims have been made against him and he was
not aware of any threatened or potential claims made against him
and there are no outstanding claims and/or liabilities as a result of
the deregistration of the above company.

Mr. Leong obtained his bachelor’s degree in computer science from
the University of California, Berkeley in the U.S. in December 1990.
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Ms. Luo Laura Ying, aged 56, was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director of our Group on 29 April 2020. Ms Luo is
primarily responsible for providing independent judgment on our
strategies, policy, performance, accountability, resources, key
appointments and standard of conduct.

Prior to joining our Group, Ms. Luo had over 20 years of experience
in the investment field. From 1995 to 1999, Ms. Luo worked in
various well-known investment banks including Goldman Sachs (Asia)
L.L.C. and Morgan Stanley Dean Witter. From November 1999 to July
2001, she was the head of China research of the research
department of SG Securities (HK) Limited. From July 2001 to July
2013, Ms. Luo worked in Schroders Investment Management (Hong
Kong) Limited, with the last position held as an equity fund manager.
From September 2013 to September 2019, she worked in Barings
Asset Management (Asia) Limited, with the last position held as the
managing director. Ms. Luo has been a consultant of GL Capital
Management Limited since December 2019 and subsequently
transferred to GL China Equity HK Management Limited in May 2020.
She has also been an independent non-executive director of China
Medical System Holdings Limited (EZH5 2= BRAH]) (@ company
listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 867) since March 2020.

Ms. Luo was a director of eShine Technology Limited (fgZ & AR
A®]), a company established in Hong Kong and was dissolved on 17
August 2018. Ms. Luo confirmed that the above company was
solvent prior to its deregistration and was deregistered as it had not
commenced business since establishment or had ceased to conduct
business. She further confirmed that, as of the Latest Practicable
Date, no claims have been made against her and she was not aware
of any threatened or potential claims made against her and there are
no outstanding claims and/or liabilities as a result of the
deregistration of the above company.

Ms. Luo obtained her bachelor's degree in international economics
from Peking University (At 5L K22) in the PRC in July 1987 and her
master’s degree in business administration from the University of
Toronto in Canada in June 1991. Ms. Luo has been as a chartered
financial analyst by the Chartered Financial Analyst Institute since
September 1999 and a chartered professional accountant by the
Chartered Professional Accountants of British Columbia since June
1995.
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Ms. Xin Zhu, aged 52, was appointed as our independent non-
executive Director of our Group on 29 April 2020. Ms. Xin is
primarily responsible for providing independent judgment on our
strategies, policy, performance, accountability, resources, key
appointments and standard of conduct.

Prior to joining our Group, Ms. Xin had over 25 years of experience
in the accounting industry as well as executive management in public
companies. From 1990 to 2008, Ms. Xin worked in various
accounting firms and finance corporations, including Shenzhen
Shekou Chinese Accountancy where she served as an accountant, and
Shenzhen Brewery Limited where she served as the chief financial
officer. Since February 2006 and up to present, Ms. Xin has been
serving in various companies listed on the Stock Exchange, including
listed companies engaging in the business of property development in
the PRC. From February 2006 to June 2008, she worked in Hopson
Development Holdings Limited (&4 8IESEGRAA]) (@ company
listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 00754), with the last
position held as the vice president. From July 2008 to June 2014, she
worked in China Aoyuan Group Limited (FFEIEE S B 7D B R AR
(@ company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 3883), with the
last concurrent positions held as the executive director and executive
vice president. From July 2014 to September 2016, she served
successively as (i) the chief financial officer of Logan Property
Holdings Company Limited (BE¥tHbEIEARBRAF]) (a company listed
on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 3380) and (ii) the executive vice
president of Guangzhou Yihe Real Estate Group Limited (&M E& R
EESE). Since June 2018, she has also been an independent non-
executive director of CanSino Biologics Inc. (E#& & £¥RMH A R) (a
company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 6185), a company
engaging in the development, manufacturing and sales of vaccines.
Since November 2020, she has also been an independent non-
executive director of Datang Group Limited (KEEBEZERER A RF])
(@ company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 2117), a
company engaging in the business of property development in the
PRC.

Ms. Xin obtained her bachelor’s degree in accounting from Renmin
University of China (FFEBI ARKXZ) in the PRC in July 1990 and her
master’s degree in business administration from Auckland Institute of
Studies in New Zealand in December 1999. Ms. Xin has been a
certified public accountant of the PRC since February 1996 and a
member of the CPA Australia since January 2010.

Senior Management

Mr. Wang Jun

For the details, please refer to the above paragraph headed
"“Executive Directors”.

Mr. Wang Qian
For the details, please refer to the above paragraph headed
"“Executive Directors”.
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The Board presents the annual report with the audited financial
statements of the Group for the financial year ended 31 December
2020.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company and its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in the provision of Property management and
value-added services, property
management and consultation services. An analysis of the Group's
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2020 by principal activities
is set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements of the
Group.

Lifestyle services and Commercial

Business Review

Discussion and analysis of the business review required by Schedule 5
to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a description of
the principal risks and uncertainties facing by the Group and an
indication of likely future development in the Group’s business, can
be found in the “Management Discussion and Analysis” set out on
pages from 29 to 44 of this annual report.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group is committed to the long term sustainability of the
environment and communities in which it operates. The Group
operates its business in compliance with applicable environmental
protection laws and regulations and has implemented relevant
environmental protection measures in compliance with the required
standards under applicable PRC laws and regulations. Further details
of the Group’s environmental policies and performance will be
disclosed in the environmental, social and governance report of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2020 to be published in

due course in accordance with the Listing Rules.

Compliance with the Relevant Laws and
Regulations

As far as the Board and management are aware, the Group has
complied in all material aspects with the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the business and operation of the
Group. During the year ended 31 December 2020, there was no
material breach of, or non-compliance, with applicable laws and
regulations by the Group.
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Segment Information
Management considers there to be three operating segments under
the requirements of HKFRS 8.

Financial Statements

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2020 and the
state of the Group’s affairs as at the date are set out in the financial
statements on pages 102 to 108 of this annual report.

Result and Dividends

Profit attributable to shareholders, before dividends, of
RMB426,587,000 (2019: RMB233,954,000) have been transferred to
reserves. Other movements in reserves are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

The Board resolved to recommend a final dividend of HK$18.0 cents
(equivalent to RMB15.2 cents) per share for the year ended 31
December 2020 (for the year ended 31 December 2019: Nil).

HK$6.6 cents per share (for the six months ended 30 June 2019: Nil)
was distributed as interim dividend for the six months ended 30 June
2020.

Closure of the Register of Members

For the purposes of determining shareholders’ eligibility to attend and
vote at the 2020 AGM, the register of members of the Company will
be closed from Tuesday, 4 May 2021 to Friday, 7 May 2021 (both
days inclusive), during which period no transfer of shares will be
registered. All properly completed share transfer forms accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
Hong Kong branch share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan chai, Hong Kong, no later than
4:30 p.m. on Monday, 3 May 2021, for registration.

For the purposes of determining the entitlement of the shareholders
to the proposed final Dividend, the register of members of the
Company will be closed on Thursday, 13 May 2021, which no
transfer of shares will be registered. All properly completed share
transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops
1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wan chai, Hong Kong, no later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 12
May 2021, for registration.
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Four Year Financial Summary

A summary of the consolidated results and of the consolidated assets,
liabilities and non-controlling interests of the Group for the last four
financial years is set out on page 216 of this annual report. This
summary does not form part of the audited financial statements.

Share Capital
Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company are set
out in note 20 to the financial statements.

Reserves

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note
31 to the financial statements and in the Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity, respectively.

As at 31 December 2020, the Company’s distributable reserves were
RMB2,004.0 million.

Major Customers and Suppliers

For the year ended 31 December 2020, purchases from the Group’s
five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 17.8% of the
Group's total purchases and purchases from the largest supplier
amounted to approximately 10.1% of the Group's total purchases.
Sales to the Group's five largest customers accounted for less than
45% of the Group's total turnover and sales to the largest customer
amounted to approximately 38.5% of the Group’s total turnover.

Save as disclosed in note 29 to the financial statements, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors or chief executive
of the Company or any Shareholder owning more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital or their respective associates, had any
interest in the Group’s five largest customers or five largest suppliers.
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Directors
The Directors in office during the year ended 31 December 2020 and
up to the date of this report are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Jun (Chairman)

Mr. Cai Bin (resigned on 26 March 2021)

Mr. Wang Qian (appointed on 26 March 2021)

Non-executive Directors
Ms. Wu Lam Li
Ms. Min Huidong

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Leong Chong

Ms. Luo Laura Ying

Ms. Xin Zhu

Pursuant to Article 84(1) of the Articles of Association, at every
annual general meeting of the Company, one-third of the Directors
for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the
number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office
by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years. Pursuant to Article 84(2)
of the Articles of Association, Mr. Wang Qian, as a retiring Director
shall be eligible for re-election and shall continue to act as a Director
throughout the meeting at which he retires. In accordance with
Article 84(1) and 84(2) of the Articles of Association, Mr. Wang Jun,
Mr. Wang Qian and Ms. Min Huidong, therefore, will retire from their
offices at the AGM, and being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, an annual written confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based on
such information, the Company still considers the independent non-
executive Directors to be independent.

Directors’ Biographies
Biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 64 to 71 of
this annual report.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of our executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a term of three years commencing from the
Listing Date, which may be terminated by not less than three months’
notice in writing served by either party on the other.

Each of our non-executive Directors and our independent
non-executive Directors has entered into a letter of appointment with
the Company for a term of three years commencing from the Listing
Date, which may be terminated by not less than three months’ notice
in writing served by either party on the other.

None of our Directors has any existing or proposed service contracts
with any member of our Group (excluding contracts expiring or
determinable by the employer within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation)).

Directors’ Interest in Contracts

Save for the relevant transactions as disclosed in note 33 to the
financial statements, none of the Directors had a significant beneficial
interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement
or contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year ended
31 December 2020, nor any transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance has been entered into during the year ended 31
December 2020 between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and
the controlling Shareholders or any of its subsidiaries.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

During the year ended 31 December 2020, none of the Directors or
any of their respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) was
considered to be interested in any business which competes or is
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the
Group.

Directors’ and Senior Management’s Emoluments
and Five Highest Paid Individuals

All Directors are entitled to a fee as approved by the Board with
reference to the prevailing market conditions. Executive Directors are
entitled to fees, salaries, housing allowances, other allowances,
benefits in kind (including contribution to the pension scheme on
behalf of our Directors) or discretionary bonuses, which are
determined by the Board having regard to the Group’s performance
and the prevailing market conditions and approved by the
remuneration committee of the Company. Details of Directors’
emoluments and emoluments of five highest paid individuals of the
Company are set out in notes 33 and 10 to the financial statements.
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares or
Debentures

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of the
directors (the “Directors”) and chief executives of the Company in the
shares (the “Shares”),
“Debentures”) of the Company or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO")) required to be recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO or pursuant to the Model Code in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules, were as follows or as disclosed under the
section headed “Share Option Scheme” below:

underlying Shares and debentures (the

(a) Long positions in the Shares and underlying
Shares of the Company

EERFETBRAERKR®G - HERSG
HESFPHESERKXE

MR2020F 128318 ARAREE([EEH)AEE
THABRARR S E@E AE (E&RHEH L
EEA([FHRBEGKG EXVED) Z &K (TR
m]) - BEARNRER([EFDPHEEAREZERR
HEKROEIEBEELRARRAIEREFENE
SMAsIREES R EGAEXVIBETRESDE
SR E R AT Z R ESFRIZBANE AR A]
KBt T S AR 0T (SR T3 [ B AR e
A& —EiETR)

(a) RERXTARODREBROPNER

Approximate
percentage of the
interest in the

Name of Director Capacity and Number of share Number of Company’s issued
or chief executive nature of interest options held' Shares held share capital?
BREAAaE
EEQIE BITRAHEN
THAEBHA SO REREE FsERESR" FrER5 A ERali%
Mr. Wang Jun Interest in a controlled — 45,071,000 3.62%
corporation
FEEE SEEEER
Mr. Cai Bin Beneficial owner 4,950,000 — 0.40%
550 5T BEmER A
Ms. Min Huidong Beneficial owner 6,300,000 — 0.51%
RERLL EREEA
Ms. Wu Lam Li Interest of a spouse — 848,092,944 68.05%
FML L B4R 2 2
Notes: B 5
1. Such interest in the Shares is held pursuant to the share options 1. BRARMRER DIBEE XA ARE S ERE

granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (as defined
below), the details of which are disclosed on pages 79 to 80 of
this annual report.

2. The approximate percentage of the interest in the Company’s
issued share capital is based on a total of 1,246,215,000 Shares
of the Company in issue as at 31 December 2020.

B (EER T30 R OBBET S - 3
B AT RS ET9EB0A -

2. ERIEARFIEBITRANMOE D LIER
2020F 12 A31A AR R B #TRH B
1,246,215,000% 51 & -
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(b) REBZEROTHNETR

(b) Long position in the shares of our associated

78

corporation

Ms. Wu Lam Li

Enjoy Start Limited
ES g BB BR QA

Interest of a spouse

B {8 2 #E ek

1 ordinary share 100%
1 B i AR

Save as disclosed above or under the section headed “Share
Option Scheme” below, as at 31 December 2020, none of the
Directors, chief executives of the Company or their associates
had any interests or short positions in any Shares, underlying
Shares and Debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
would have to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which the Directors and
chief executives were deemed or taken to have under the
provisions of the SFO), or which were required to be and are
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or which were required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.
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Share Option Schemes

(a)

Pre-IPO share option scheme
The pre-IPO share option scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme”) was conditionally adopted by the Shareholders on 29
April 2020. The purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is
to provide incentive or reward the parties for their past and
continuing contribution to the Group.

The Company granted two batches of share options to
subscribe for 45,000,000 shares pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Options”) on 3 January
2019 and 10 January 2019, 42,210,000 which
outstanding as of 31 December 2020. As at 31 December
2020, 42,210,000 the Pre-IPO Share Options to subscribe for
the 42,210,000 Shares (representing approximately 3.39% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at 31 December
2020 (i.e. 1,246,215,000 shares)) remained outstanding.

remained

Movement of the Pre-IPO Share Options for the year ended 31
December 2020 was as follows:

B ESHE

(a)

BRAMBEBRESTS

R 2020 4 B 29 A B &R E N AF 8
ERBERETE (R MBS BRET
2D mR RBEMERESEEEMRA
REBEHASEFELEMOATIREEER
R

ANARPR2019%1 838 %2019F1 810848
BEXARBE I EIRES S X L A Ht R
B(IBRAAHESEMERE] RE
45,000,000 B 15 * 1 20209F 12 A31H &
42,210,00010 R E1T{F ° 7 2020F 12 A 31
B - A2 8842,210,0000% 1510 (5 AR AE
202012 A31HE %17 KAK
1,246,215,000 I8 % 493.39% ) K
42,210,00017 & X A [ 3% & B IE AR 4 18 R 1T
fi# o

REZ2020F12A31HIEFE » BX AR
ERERECZEEHWNT

As at Granted Exercised Forfeited As at
Exercise price 1January  during the  during the  during the 31 December
Name or category of participants  Date of grant per Share 2020 year year year 2020
182020 120205
SEER LR RUAH BRITHEE 1A18 ERRH ERTE FRRK 12A318
Directors
Ez
Min Huidong 3 January 2019 HK$0.62 4,500,000 - - - 4,500,000
BHER 201951 43R 0.6287
10 January 2019 HK$0.62 1,800,000 - - - 1,800,000
2019414108 0.627 7
Cai Bin 3 January 2019 HK$0.62 4,950,000 - — — 4,950,000
3 201951 43R 0.62/8T
Others
Efh
Senior management and other 3 January 2019 HK$0.62 22,230,000 - (810,0000  (1,575,000) 19,845,000
employees of the Group
AEERRERERAMES 20191538 0.62787
10 January 2019 HK$0.62 11,520,000 - (405,000) — 11,115,000
2019417108 062370
45,000,000 — (12150000 (15750000 42,210,000
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(b)

Note:

The Pre-IPO Share Options will be vested in 3 tranches as follows
provided that the annual appraisal target set by the Group for the
relevant financial year is satisfied:

. 30% of the total number of the options, i.e. 13,500,000 options,
will be vested six months immediately following the Listing Date,
i.e. 15 May 2020;

. 30% of the total number of the options, i.e. 13,500,000 options,
will be vested 12 months immediately following the Listing Date,
i.e. 15 May 2020; and

. 40% of the total number of the options, i.e. 18,000,000 options,
will be vested 24 months immediately following the Listing Date,
i.e. 15 May 2020.

The Pre-IPO Share Options may be exercised according to the
terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme in whole or in part
by the grantee after vesting but before the expiry of five years
after the vesting date.

Post-IPO share option scheme

The post-IPO share option scheme (the “Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme”) was conditionally adopted by the Shareholders in
compliance with the Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules on 29
April 2020. The purpose of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme
is to motivate eligible persons to optimize their future
contributions to the Group and/or to reward them for their past
contributions, to attract and retain or otherwise maintain on-
going relationships with the eligible persons who are significant
to and/or whose contributions are or will be beneficial to the
performance, growth or success of the Group, and additionally
in the case of Executives, to enable the Group to attract and
retain individuals with experience and ability and/or to reward
them for their past contributions.
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The maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the share options granted and to be granted
pursuant to the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (”Post-IPO Share
Options”) and any other share option scheme(s) of the
Company to each participant in any 12-month period shall not
exceed 1% of the Shares in issue from time to time. Any
further grant of options which would result in the number of
the Shares issued as aforesaid exceeding the said 1% limit
must be approved by the Shareholders in general meeting at
which such participant and his or her associates must abstain
from voting. The total number of Shares issued or to be issued
upon exercise of the share options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme(s) adopted by the Company must
not exceed 30% of the total number of Shares in issue from
time to time.

Any grant of Post-IPO Share Options to a participant who is a
Director, chief executive, or substantial Shareholder of the
Company or any of their respective associates must be
approved by the independent non-executive Directors, excluding
any independent non-executive Director who is the grantee of
the share options.

REMI2EARRREERAAEERBER
B RARREMEMBERESE RS2
BERBIREEONBRE((ERAREES
BEBRE ) BITEBETRREBTORN &
REFE TEBBTEDBEITRMA1% o H
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The Post-IPO Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective
for a period of 10 years commencing on the Listing Date. The
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme will expire on 15 May 2030.
However, our Shareholders in general meeting may by
resolution at any time terminate the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme. Upon the expiry or termination of the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme as aforesaid, no further options shall be offered
but in all other respects the provisions of the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme shall remain in full force and effect. All the
Post-IPO Share Options granted prior to such expiry or
termination (as the case may be) and not then exercised shall
continue to be valid and exercisable subject to and in
accordance with the terms of the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme.

The subscription price for the Shares under the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme shall be determined by the Board in its absolute
discretion and notified to a participant, provided that such price
shall be at least the highest of (i) the nominal value of a Share;
(i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotations sheet on the date of offer of a
share option which must be a trading day; and (iii) the average
closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet for the five consecutive trading days
immediately preceding the date of offer. The amount payable
by a grantee on acceptance of a grant of the option is
HK$1.00 (or its equivalent in RMB or any other currency
acceptable to the Company).

Additional information in relation to the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme and Post-IPO Share Option Scheme is set out in note
22 to the financial statements of this annual report.
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in the Share
Capital of the Company

So far as is known to any Directors or chief executives of the
Company, as at 31 December 2020, other than the interests and
short positions of the Directors or chief executives of the Company as
disclosed in the sections headed
Interests and Short Positions
Debentures” and “Share Option Scheme” above, the following
persons had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
Shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO:

“Directors’ and Chief Executives’

in Shares, Underlying Shares or

FERRRADFARE 2 ER

2020128318 * AR RMEMNESHEEITH
ANBFTA - BRREXTEEREEZTHRABRRD
HERNDIESFTHEZI AR | RIIBRETE]
MEFERE I AN EERETETRAEZEZR
HKEIN AT ATRAR T &0 BRE R %
EAREB(ES MEEED]) BEXVEPE2 KR E30 K
N T A E 2 EmSAR - A B AR RIIRIE (&
HREEGEDI)EIEEFTE 2 B 2 sz

=

Long positions in the Shares REOHTHNEFR
Approximate
percentage of the
interest in the
Number of Company'’s issued
Name of Shareholder Capacity and nature of interest Shares held share capital’
BHEAAEE
BITRAHBLD
IR A SHORERME FERGEE R4
Mr. Wu Po Sum Interest in a controlled corporation 848,092,944 68.05%
AR & REEERER
Enjoy Start Limited Beneficial owner 848,092,944 68.05%
Bl ER A A EmEa A
Ms. Wu Lam Li Interest of a spouse 848,092,9443 68.05%
FHh &+ fl B s
Gaoling Fund, L.P. Beneficial owner 84,857,000* 6.81%
EmEa A
Hillhouse Capital Advisors, Ltd. Interest in a controlled corporation 84,867,000* 6.82%

XEEEER

Notes:

1. The approximate percentage of the interest in the Company’s issued share
capital is based on a total of 1,246,215,000 Shares of the Company in
issue as at 31 December 2020.

2. Mr. Wu Po Sum holds 100% of the issued share capital of Enjoy Start
Limited and is deemed to be interested in the 848,092,944 Shares held
by Enjoy Start Limited for the purposes of the SFO.

3. Ms. Wu Lam Li is the spouse of Mr. Wu Po Sum and is therefore deemed
to be interested in the same number of Shares that Mr. Wu Po Sum is
interested in under the SFO.

4. Hillhouse Capital Advisors, Ltd. (“Hillhouse Capital”) is the sole investment
manager and general partner of Gaoling Fund, L.P. Hillhouse Capital is
deemed to be interested in the 84,857,000 Shares held by Gaoling
Fund, L.P.

B 3T

BHEARRBBEITRANMAE D LIER 202046
12A31B ARG B TR D4 201,246,215,000%
FTE

HEREERFEIBERAR 2B ETRA X
BRE(GEFRPEGRID R AEFRBRERAR
Fi45848,092,944 & B {0 i #E 25

FHRLRBERLENES - Bt - REBEGESR
HERD)  FHZEIRERRBARKTEEERE
s AARSE R R EE R -

Hillhouse Capital Advisers, Ltd. ([Hillhouse Capital])
AGaoling Fund, LP.HBREELEBL —ME®
A e Hillhouse Capital #4% /7 Gaoling Fund, L.P.¥F
B #984,857,000 & Bt o e B #E 2 -

Annual Report 2020 & [Z &

83



84

Directors’ Report (Continued)

EEOWRE (B)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, there was no other
person (other than the Directors or chief executives of the Company)
who had an interest or short position in the Shares or underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO.

Permitted Indemnity Provisions

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, every Director shall
be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company
against all losses or liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in or
about the execution of the duties of his/her office or otherwise in
relation thereto. The Company has subscribed appropriate directors’
and officers’ liabilities insurance coverage for the Directors and
officers of the Group.

Connected Transaction
For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group has entered into
the following connected transaction:

Subscription of senior notes issued by CCRE

On 17 November 2020, the Company subscribed US$12.5 million of
US$300 million 7.75% senior notes due 2024 to be issued by CCRE
(the “Notes”) utilising internal funds generated from its operations,
which will mature on 24 May 2024, unless earlier redeemed pursuant
to the terms thereof. The offering price of the Notes will be
99.624% of the principal amount of the Notes. The Notes will bear
interest from and including 24 November 2020 at the rate of 7.75%
per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears on 24 May and 24
November of each year, commencing on 24 May 2021.

As at the dates of the announcement, CCRE is indirectly owned as to
more than 30% by Mr. Wu. Mr. Wu is a controlling Shareholder and
a connected person of the Company. Details of the subscription are
set out in the announcements of the Company dated 18 November
2020.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company has complied
with the disclosure requirements prescribed in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules with respect to the connected transactions entered into
by the Group.
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Continuing Connected Transactions
For the year ended 31 December 2020, The Group has entered into
the following continuing connected transactions:

Provision of the real estate agency services by the Company to
CCRE

On 24 June 2019, the Company entered into the 2019 real
estate agency services framework agreement with CCRE,
pursuant to which the Company shall provide real estate
agency services in respect of the first-hand property sales as
well as preparation services (including but not limited to
consultation services and event organization services) to CCRE.
Due to the adjustment of the annual cap under the 2019 real
estate agency services framework agreement, on 30 October
2020, the Company entered into the 2020 real estate agency
services framework agreement with CCRE in place of the 2019
real estate agency services framework agreement. The service
fees were charged as commission based on contracted sales
amount of the CCRE's properties, depending on the overall
property market environment, project location, difficulties of
marketing and other factors.

The annual caps for the real estate agency services framework
agreement for the years ending 31 December 2020, 2021 and
2022 are RMB440 million, RMB450 million and RMB465 million
respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the service fees
receivable by the Group under the real estate agency services
framework agreement amounted to approximately RMB404.9
million.
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2. Provision of the tourism services by the Company to CCRE

On 30 January 2019, the Company entered into the tourism
services framework agreement with CCRE to renew the 2018
tourism services framework agreement, pursuant to which the
Company shall provide the tourism services to CCRE for the

promotion of the CCRE’s business.

The annual cap of the framework agreement on tourism
services for the years ending 31 December 2019, 2020 and
2021 are RMB39 million, RMB48 million and RMB67.5 million,

respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the service fees
receivable by the Group under the tourism services framework

agreement amounted to approximately RMB27.4 million.

3. Provision of the commercial property management services by

the Company to CCRE

On 26 June 2019, the Company entered into the commercial
property management service framework agreement with CCRE,
pursuant to which the Company will provide operation
management and consulting services to the CCRE’'s commercial
assets, including but not limited to hotel, office building,
commercial complex, cultural tourism and other commercial

projects.

The annual caps for the commercial property management
services framework agreement for the years ending 31
December 2019, 2020 and 2021 are RMB35 million, RMB54

million and RMB56 million respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the service fees
receivable by the Group under the commercial asset
management service framework agreement amounted to

approximately RMB40.2 million.

Central China New Life Limited 2 ¥4+ FER QT

2.

KL ] 7] i 3 b E FE (R B AR T
MR2019F 1 A30H « AR EEZEMER] K
AR TS IE 2R Wit 0 LA EEAE 20184 Jik 1% AR 75 AE
Ripes - UL ANA RIS E R E IR R i
fR7 - AHEEEEMEMNZETR -

IR RAFIEZR s A B E20194F ~ 2020F &
2021F12A31TBEFEEMEE LRSI AA
R #39,000,0007T * A & #48,000,0007T K&
AR 67,500,000 °

HZE2020F12A31H IEFE » KEBEBE K
BREERDEFERNBREENAEARE
27,400,000 7T °

AR AIEERIBEIRHRE K EEEERE

M2019F 6 A26H « ARG EEEMER] LR
¥XEEEERBERGS Bt XAFREH
BEWEMNEFEEAE  HPEATRMNE
E 27 BELRAE WERSSHER
B REEEE RENERRE -

HMEEETERBERBEAREZE20194F -
2020 202112 A3 B ILFENFEE LR
DRl A ANR#35,000,000 « AR
54,000,000 % A K # 56,000,000 °

HZE2020F 12 A31HIEFE  AEBERERD
HEEEERGER G RERAREELA
AR #40,200,0007C °



Directors’ Report (Continued)

-

FwE ()

Provision of the property consulting and management services
by the Company to CCRE

On 31 January 2019, the Company entered into a property
consulting and management services framework agreement with
CCRE. On 28 October 2019, due to the adjustment of the
annual cap, the Company and CCRE renewed the property
consulting and management services framework agreement to
replace and terminate the previously concluded property
consulting and management services framework agreement.
Pursuant to which, the Company will provide property
consulting and management services to CCRE in accordance
with the needs of the CCRE's residential and commercial
property projects in Henan Province, PRC. The services include:

a) pre-delivery consultancy services, including but not limited
to providing constructive advices throughout the process
of project development (from both property development
and end-user perspectives) at the planning and design
stage, the engineering construction stage, the marketing
stage, the inspection stage and the delivery stage;

b) early stage initiation services, including but not limited to
staff training before the delivery of the properties and the
initiation service before the completion of projects;

Q) providing management services for the CCRE's marketing
centers, vacant properties and owned properties; and

d) providing pre-delivery inspection services to the CCRE for
the newly completed properties of the CCRE.

The annual caps for the revised consulting and management
services framework agreement for the years ending 31
December 2019, 2020 and 2021 are RMB155 million, RMB195
million and RMB240 million, respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the service fees
receivable by the Group under the revised consulting and
management services framework agreement amounted to
approximately RMB194.4 million.
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Provision of the membership maintenance and management
services by the Company to CCRE

On 29 March 2019, the Company entered into a membership
maintenance and management services framework agreement
with CCRE. On 30 October 2020, due to the adjustment of the
annual cap, the Company and CCRE renewed the membership
maintenance and management services framework agreement
to replace and terminate the previously concluded membership
maintenance and management services framework agreement.
Pursuant to which, the Company will provide membership
maintenance and management services to CCRE. Membership
maintenance and management services are provided to
residents of residential property projects developed and to be
developed by CCRE, who are or will become members of the
community. Membership maintenance and management services
include member normal services and large-scale event planning
and organization services.

The annual caps for the community operation management
services for the years ending 31 December 2020, 2021 and
2022 are RMB100 million, RMB155 million and RMB230 million,
respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the service fees
receivable by the Group under the community operation
management service framework agreement amounted to
approximately RMB94.3 million.

Provision of the green house management services by the
Company to CCRE

On 29 March 2019, the Company entered into the green
house management services framework agreement with CCRE.
On 28 October 2019, due to the adjustment of service scope
and annual cap, the Company and CCRE renewed the green
house management services framework agreement to replace
and terminate the previous green house management services
framework agreement. Pursuant to which, the Company will
provide CCRE with rural complex project management services.
The services include:

a) investment attraction, brand promotion, activity planning
and other operation and management services of the
rural complex project;

b) technical management services throughout the whole
process of R & D, introduction and promotion of rural
complex facilities projects (such as intelligent linkage
greenhouse, plant factory, etc.);
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Q) operation and management services of Central China
canteen, including investment attraction, daily operation,
marketing planning and other services of some outlets of
Central China canteen;

d) management and sales of agricultural products; and

e) daily operation,
agricultural products and related consulting services.

maintenance and management of

The annual caps for the revised rural complex project
management service framework agreement for the years ending
31 December 2019, 2020 and 2021 are RMB27 million, RMB48
million and RMB60 million, respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the service fees
receivable by the Group under the revised rural complex project
management service framework agreement amounted to

approximately RMB38.6 million.

Provision of the intelligent technology services by the Company
to CCRE

On 29 March 2019, the Company entered into the intelligent
technology service framework agreement with CCRE. On 30
October 2020, due to the adjustment of the annual cap, the
Company and CCRE renewed the intelligent technology service
framework agreement to replace and terminate the previously
concluded intelligent technology service framework agreement.
Pursuant to which, the Company will provide intelligent
technology products and related services to CCRE. The services
include:

a) Intelligent product engineering installation and product
sales service;

b) Software development; and

o) Consulting.

The annual caps for the revised intelligent technology service
framework agreement for the years ending 31 December 2020,
2021 and 2022 are RMB340 million, RMB360 million and
RMB380 million, respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the service fees
receivable by the Group under the renewed framework
agreement for intelligent technology services amounted to
approximately RMB328.5 million.
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Provision of the marketing and service platform construction
services by the Company to CCRE

On 29 June 2020, the Company entered into the marketing
and service platform construction services framework agreement
with CCRE, pursuant to which the Company agreed to provide,
and CCRE agreed to procure the marketing and service
platform construction services relating to sales and marketing
activities such as online customer services, customer
engagement, house viewing, and house purchase through the

"Jianye+" platform of the Group.

The annual caps for the marketing and service platform
construction services for the year ending 31 December 2020 is
RMB30 million.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the service fees
receivable by the Group under the marketing and service
platform construction services framework agreement amounted
to approximately RMB26.4 million.

Provision of the procurement services by the Company to CCRE
On 30 October 2020, the Company entered
procurement services framework agreement with CCRE,

into the

pursuant to which the Company agreed to provide
procurement services to CCRE in respect of gift packs for the
property purchasers of the CCRE as part of their marketing.
Such gift packs comprise goods and/or services offered by the
Independent Third Parties,
household commodities as well as services offered by the CCRE
Group and its associates, such as cash vouchers for hotels,
shopping malls, cultural tourism complexes and Cuisine Henan
Foodcourts (G2¥ KE ) owned by the CCRE Group and its
associates.

such as electrical appliances and

The annual caps for the procurement by CCRE for the years
ending 31 December 2020, 2021 and 2022 are RMB60 million,
RMB6E5 million and RMB65 million, respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the service fees
receivable by the Group under the procurement services
framework agreement amounted to approximately RMB17.1

million.
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The annual caps for the procurement by the Group for the
years ending 31 December 2020, 2021 and 2022 are RMB25
million, RMB20 million and RMB20 million, respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the service fees payable
by the Group under the procurement services framework
agreement amounted to approximately RMB24.1 million.

As at the dates of these agreements, Mr. Wu Po Sum is the
controlling shareholder of the Company, and indirectly owned more
than 30% equity interests in CCRE. Therefore, the abovementioned
transactions also constitute the continuing connected transactions of
the Company. Details of these agreements are set out in the
prospectus of the Company dated 5 May 2020 and announcements
of the Company dated 29 June 2020, 30 October 2020 and 18
November 2020, respectively.

The Board confirmed that there is no material change in the
contractual arrangements and/or the circumstances under which they
were adopted, and its impact on the Group. The Board also
confirmed that there is no unwinding of the structured contracts or
failure to unwind when the restrictions that led to the adoption of
the structured contracts are removed.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent non-
executive Directors of the Company have reviewed the relevant
framework agreements and confirmed that the framework agreements
have been entered into:

a) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

b) either on normal commercial terms or, if there were not sufficient
comparable transactions to judge whether they were on normal
commercial terms, on terms no less favorable to the Group
than terms available to or from (as appropriate) independent
third parties; and

Q) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Company’s shareholders as a whole.
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The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions for the year ended 31 December
2020 in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 "Auditor's Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor
has issued its unqualified letter containing its findings and conclusions
in respect of the continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter
has been provided by the Company to the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange.

Related Party Transactions

Details of material related party transactions of the Group undertaken
in the normal course of business are set out in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements. Save for the connected transaction
and continuing connected transactions as disclosed above, none of
these related party transactions is required to be disclosed under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Events after the Reporting Period

Acquisition of equity interest in Taihua Jinye

Pursuant to an equity transfer agreement entered into by the Group
and the shareholders of Taihua Jinye Life Services Co., Ltd. (“Taihua
Jinye”) on 28 December 2020, the Group acquired 51% equity
interest in Taihua Jinye at a cash consideration of RMB100.00 million.
Taihua Jinye is a property management company located in Hengshui
City, Hebei Province, the PRC. As at 31 August 2020, Taihua Jinye
had an aggregate gross floor area under management of
approximately 9.38 million sq.m. and contracted gross floor area
reserve of 3.10 million sq.m. The acquisition was completed in
January 2021. Since then, Taihua Jinye has become a subsidiary of
the Group.

Save as the above and the disclosed in note 30 to the financial
statements, there are no significant events subsequent to 31 Decem-
ber 2020 which would materially affect the Group’s operating and
financial performance as of the date of this report.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed Securities
of the Company

During the year ended 31 December 2020, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company'’s listed securities.
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Pre-Emptive Rights
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

Tax Relief and Exemption of Holders of Listed
Securities

The Company is not aware of any tax relief or exemption available to
the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s
securities.

Emolument Policy

The Group’s emolument policy is designed to attract, retain and
motivate talented individuals to contribute to the success of the
business. The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is
formulated and reviewed by the Remuneration Committee on the

basis of their merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the Remuneration
Committee, having regards to the Group’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF
Scheme”) pursuant to the MPF Schemes Ordinance for all its
employees in Hong Kong. All the employees of the Group in Hong
Kong are required to join the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’
charged to consolidated income statement as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF

basic salaries and are

Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.
No forfeited contribution is available to reduce the contribution
payable in the future years as of 31 December 2020.

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC, in compliance with the applicable
regulations of the PRC, participated in a state managed retirement
benefits scheme operated by the local government. The subsidiaries
are required to contribute a specific percentage of their payroll costs
to the retirement benefits schemes. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the retirement benefits scheme is to make the
specified contributions. During the reporting period, the total amounts
contributed by the Group to the schemes and costs charged to the
consolidated income statement represent contribution payable to the
schemes by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.
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Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained the prescribed level of public float during the year and up
to the date of this report as required under the Listing Rules.

Donations
Charitable donations and other donations made by the Group during
the year amounted to RMB90,312 (2019: RMB5,000).

Material Litigation and Arbitration
For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company was not
involved in any litigation, arbitration or claims of material importance
and there was no litigation or claim of material importance which was
known to the Directors to be pending or threatened by or against the

Company.

Corporate Governance

The Company’s corporate governance principles and practices are set
out in the Corporate Governance Report at pages 45 to 63 of this
annual report.

Audit Committee

The audit committee of the Company has reviewed the Annual
Results, including the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group, and discussed auditing, risk management and internal
control systems and financial reporting matters with the management
as well as the reviewed the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

Auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers will retire and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for reappointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditors of the Company will be proposed
at the 2021 AGM.

By order of the board
Wang Jun
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2021
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INDEPENDENT
AUDITOR'S REPORT

lVR Y GRS

o
pwc

To the Shareholders of Central China New Life Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Central China New Life
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on
pages 102 to 215, which comprise:

o the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2020;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include

a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
B zBEh RS ()

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our

report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the

Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that,

judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial

in our professional

RRMNER
BPEREFESAMIGHRMO(EBELERD
HEITEM BPIEZSFER TAEZENEEESEAR
EZBENE B M BHRERAENEE] B+
1R — Mt -

ARG - RATES
REFE RREER -

MEH BB R LEE M

Bt
REFBGTHASRMO(EXGHENERTRD
(AT R > HPIBIREEE  XEETT
STRIFHEMERBEERE -

BREITEH
MRESFELRERMOELAN  BAYKH
FRANBRROBHSABENFE  ELFER

statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is related to the assessment

of expected credit losses of trade receivables.

Key Audit Matter

EHRMEFERGAVBERRIEAZRBETR
Bo e AT SHELFREHEBNER
BPERF BB E FREE S EUWSUR

EHERERNFEER -

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

BREETEE BMWESNAEEBRETSE
Assessment of expected credit losses of trade We have performed the following procedures in respect of
receivables the assessment of expected credit losses of trade

FEEZEURENABGEEESR

Refer to Note 3.1.2 “credit risk”, Note 4 “critical accounting
estimates and judgments”, and Note 18 “trade and other
receivables and prepayments”
statements.

to the consolidated financial

F2RGEe M BmARME3 1 2[EERR] - WE4[EXRE
sHEET R HE | RMEE18[ B 5 &ﬁ{ﬁlﬁgﬂﬁlwlﬁ)}?ﬁﬁ KA
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receivables:

BMCHE S EEFARBEREEEROFEELATERF

(a) Obtained an understanding of the Group’s internal
control and assessment process of the expected credit
loss of trade receivables, and assessed the inherent
risk of material misstatement by considering degree of
estimation uncertainty and other inherent risk of
factors, such as complexity and subjectivity;
TRESEYE S EWIATEBEEEE AR

R R  WEREMF I EEMNEEREMER
EBEZE(EHEREREEE) AT EERERBR
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
B zBEh RS ()

Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
BEESBE

EREETEE )

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMOENAEERRERTEE

As at 31 December 2020, the gross carrying amount of
trade receivables amounted to RMB1,200,906,000, which
represented approximately 28% of the total assets of the
Group. Management has assessed the expected credit losses
("ECL") of trade receivables with loss allowance of
RMB28,775,000 made against the gross trade receivables.
M202012A831B - BERKRFEEHAEABERARYE
1,200,906,0007T ' HESBEBEEL28% - EEEE N HE
SREBFIENEREEBER ((BREEEE]) - YHE SR
W SR IE A R ET IR S 1R R s A K% 28,775,0007TC °

Management applied the simplified approach under HKFRS
9 to measure the lifetime ECL of trade receivables. To
measure the ECL, trade receivables were grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics. In estimating the loss rate,
management calculated the historical loss rate based on the
ageing profile and historical settlement performance,
considered the financial positions of the customers and took
into account of the current market conditions and forward-
looking factors.

EREERBEBMBRELFESRE THMIHETE
BORBFIENKSTAMEERFE - RtERAFEEEE
BHRWFEENRENCGEERREB R - Mt BREE
- BEREEERNKRRESMEAGERTAEREREX
ZEREPHMBAN - Wit R B ATTRRATEMERER -

The assessment of ECL of trade receivables is considered a
key audit matter given the significance of the trade
receivables balance. In addition, the judgements and
estimations in relation to assessment of ECL are subject to
high degree of estimation uncertainty. The inherent risk in
relation to the assessment of ECL is considered relatively
higher due to the complexity of models and subjectivity of
significant assumptions and data used.
HRESRKRFIENENY - B REFIBAREEEHED
AR RS ET T o MHN - FHEEBEEBEEL
W HE R e B A SR A A RE N o AR ERXNEHERE
ERAAERRERBBHES N - M HEREEEIES
BOEERRFEARS -

(b)  Evaluated and validated, on a sample basis, the key
controls over management’'s assessment of the
expected credit loss of trade receivables including the
review of ageing analysis;
FHERHMEREEEEHE HRYGIAEREEEE
TEH R R RO BA SR 12 - BEEHRE DT

() Assessed the appropriateness of the credit loss
provisioning methodology adopted by management
including the appropriateness of customer grouping
based on our understanding on the Group’s business
process, credit control process and the credit risk
characteristics of the trade receivables;
ERBEEEEXBRRE SEEHREFREZEER
ENEERRESHEN TR FLEEEMRANGE
BEEBEHEIRNGENT  BFEPOBRNAENL

(d) Assessed the reasonableness of the significant
assumptions in estimating the loss rate by comparing
the ultimate loss rate used in calculating the historical
loss rate with the historical settlement performance;
At ERTEEREMANREERRERTELEERR
EH LS « FH A AR S IE REATREAREM AR

(e)  Tested, on a sample basis, the accuracy of ageing
analysis of trade receivables prepared by management
to supporting documents;
HREBSHEMENASIEEBRIUNE S5 EW AR
BT R ZE T IE

() Evaluated management’s assessment on the financial
positions of the customers, existing markets
conditions and forward-looking factors with reference
to our understanding of Group’s business, industry
and external macroeconomic data; and
DREBEEER - TERINP BB BEEIRN TR
AEEREEHRSMBAMR - BAITRRAEERR
BRTAE ¢ R

(g)  Checked the mathematical accuracy of the calculation
of the provision for loss allowance.

BEFTEBBEEN S LR -

Based on the above, we considered that management’s
judgements and assumptions applied in the assessment of
ECL of trade receivables were supportable by the evidence
obtained and procedures performed.

ER EXFrt - MR ADERARE R EHNITHIIEF A LA
XHEEERHE S EWGRIATE BE B & 18 A AT A A 2 R
NMARER o
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Independent Auditor’'s Report (Continued)
Bz B RS ()

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and the Audit
Committee for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

Central China New Life Limited 2 ¥4+ FER QT
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
B zBEh RS ()

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

BRBEAHMETF RSV BRREAENEE

HFEWER  RHSAMBHRREBRS I FER
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Independent Auditor’'s Report (Continued)
Bz B RS ()

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

Central China New Life Limited 2 ¥4+ FER QT
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
B zBEh RS ()

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Wong Kam Chin.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 26 March 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

ARA R E WS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 & Z=2020%F 12 A31H I FE

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (& 574 #BASN -

Continuing operations

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit
Selling and marketing expenses
Administrative expenses

Net impairment losses on financial assets

Other income
Other gains — net

Operating profit

Finance income/(cost) — net

Share of net loss of an associate
accounted for using the equity
method

Profit before income tax
Income tax expenses

Profit from continuing operations

Loss from discontinued operation

Profit for the year

Profit/(loss) for the year
attributable to:
— Shareholders of the Company
— Non-controlling interests

FEEEER

WA
HERAK

E7
HEREHAX
TR}

HA A

Ho Ao W 25 % 57

RERE

BMEWA(RA) FHE

150 A 2 R A BR B e (5 B 2
REVFEIE

R ETFR G B AT R

PS5 B 2
REFRECEXEBHRE
KECKRIEREETNEIR
FAFE

BT & T BIEFERFHE
(B#]) :

— ARARE
— FEiE R

A SBEUARE T L)

"1

12

2020

20204
RMB’000
ARET T

2,654,499 1,754,402
(1,793,782) (1,178,118)
860,717 576,284
(52,919) (46,494)
(273,366) (230,311)
(15,258) (182)
17,547 20,463
6,546 4,096
543,267 323,856
13,643 (16,286)
(1) (29)

556,909 307,541
(116,165) (74,702)
440,744 232,839
— (5,054)
440,744 227,785
426,587 233,954
14,157 (6,169)
440,744 227,785

Central China New Life Limited ¥4 FEBR QT



Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (Continued)
marHElEK (E)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 & £2020F12 A31H L FE
(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B BEHEASN - FiE S EEAARE T L)

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE
2020 2019
20204 20194
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 ARBT R AREEF T
Profit for the year FRFHE 440,744 227,785
Other comprehensive loss for the FREMZEEIE NRHIIE)
year, net of tax
ltems that may be reclassified AR EF D EEERIEE
to profit or loss
— Currency translation differences — ERERE (125,188) =
Total comprehensive income for FRE2EBBREARE
the year 315,556 227,785
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for UT&AEMRERZEKE
the year attributable to: (F518) 45 .
— Shareholders of the Company — RARRRE 301,399 233,954
— Non-controlling interests — RS 14,157 (6,169)
315,556 227,785
Total comprehensive income for the AATRREMFAZE KR
year attributable to shareholders of BERE :
the Company arises from:
— Continuing operations — BEREER 301,399 232,132
— Discontinued operations*MNete () — BRI E RO — 1,822
301,399 233,954
Earnings per share for profit from AATRRELGREFELE
continuing operations attributable EBFNENEREF (UE
to the shareholders of the BAR®TSIR)
Company (expressed in
RMB per share)
— Basic earnings per share — BRELRAZF 13 0.38 0.26
— Diluted earnings per share — FRESERT 0.37 0.26
Earnings per share for profit ARRRRELFBENERE
attributable to the shareholders of F AR AR TIHIR)
the Company (expressed in
RMB per share)
— Basic earnings per share — FRERZF 13 0.38 0.26
— Diluted earnings per share — BR#EEAA 0.37 0.26

Note (1): AEER2019F3815BABYLFE=HHE
TMBEREFEEREER QLK E
RAIMERGFEERIEERAR £

BN ERHEHERY -

The Group disposed of Henan Central China OP New Life Services
Co., Ltd. and its subsidiary Henan Yunwu Changxiang Network
Technology Co., Ltd., which is principally engaged in the
provision of sub-leasing services, to an independent third party
on 15 March 2019.

MEEE(T)

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be LA _F 434 2 Uk 25 3 B SR RE TP 35 — BE R0 EE -

read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

HeBERER

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020 72020412 A31H
(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (f& 278 &8RSN -

Assets

Non-current assets
Investment in an associate
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Prepayments

Deferred income tax assets

Current assets

Inventories

Contract assets

Trade and other receivables and
prepayments

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Restricted cash

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Equity

Equity attributable to shareholders of

the Company
Share capital
Other reserves
Retained earnings

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

Central China New Life Limited ¥4 FEBR QT

BE

FRBEE
R—REERAIRE
BVEE

B RIA
EXEBEREE

RBEE

FE

BREE

B 5 K E b e YRR A R TR
A

AR BEFELF AR
TREE

XRFBRE
RekReEEY

EEME

RS
ARFARREMEERS

B
H At
RE AT

RS

REEAE

A SBEUARE T L)

11
14
15
18
25

17

19

20
21

2020

20204
RMB’000
ARET T

970 971
56,313 18,082
87,706 72,950
67,127 2,292
10,749 6,962

222,865 101,257
8,896 5,179
3,817 3,084

1,328,541 767,287

467,041 1,530

1,035 312
2,217,784 584,795
4,027,114 1,362,187
4,249,979 1,463,444
11,057 3
2,051,382 123,297
628,905 246,142
2,691,344 369,442
26,006 12,207
2,717,350 381,649




Consolidated Balance Sheet (Continued)

GREERME ()

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020 #2020 12 A31H

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B BEHEASN - FiE S EEAARE T L)
As at 31 December
®12A31H
2020 2019
20205 20194
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 ARET ARET T
Liabilities =i
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Lease liabilities HEBE 23 10,333 1,256
Contract liabilities EHBE 5 50,437 59,155
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFTISTBE 25 3,977 3,717
64,747 64,128
Current liabilities REBEE
Lease liabilities HEBE 23 10,876 1,886
Trade and other payables B 5 & H h FE 1~ 5k I8 24 937,251 654,265
Contract liabilities aHEE 5 423,847 310,852
Current income tax liabilities BHAFT1S Bl & (& 95,908 50,664
1,467,882 1,017,667
Total liabilities BEHE 1,532,629 1,081,795
Total equity and liabilities ERRABERH 4,249,979 1,463,444

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction

with the accompanying notes.

The financial statements on pages 102 to 215 were approved by the
board of directors of the Company on 26 March

signed on its behalf.

Wang Jun
B
Director

EFE

2021 and were

LA BERBEREEBEMN K E— G603 -

F102E 2158 FTH M S MK E N 2021F3 A26H
EESARRESeMME  THERKREE -

Wang Qian

-7
Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

/\\/T\

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (f

—H— N7
T / ~ /m:l/n %j] i%

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 #, %2020 12 A31H IFFE

AR -

A SBEUARE T L)

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

EATRREMS
Non-
Share Other Retained controlling Total
capital reserves earnings Total interests equity
(&S Hibf#E REEF &5t FERER ERAH
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
aZ AR¥TRT AR%®TR ARBTR AR%TR AR®TR AR%TxR
(Note 20) (Note 21)
(KtaE20) (KFzE21)
Balance at 1 January 2019 M2019F1A18H
fa BR — 82,840 33,831 116,671 (19,356) 97,315
Total comprehensive income/ &E£R2HEKE,
(loss) for the year (BR) 8%
Profit/(loss) for the year FENFE/(EE) = = 233,954 233,954 (6,169) 227,785
Transactions with HAQATRRHRS
shareholders of the
Company
Capital contribution from KRARRFFE
shareholders of the Company 20 3 9,432 — 9,435 — 9,435
Disposal of subsidiaries HENB AR = = - = 26,053 26,053
Share option scheme — value B2 — BB
of employee services RISEE 22 = 9,382 = 9,382 — 9,382
Acquisition of subsidiaries H&E%WEQET = = = = 4,231 4,231
Capital contribution from FIERERTE
non-controlling interests — — — — 7,448 7,448
Appropriation of statutory A TE
reserves 21 — 21,643 (21,643) — — —
Balance at #2019512A31H
31 December 2019 N #5 3 123,297 246,142 369,442 12,207 381,649
Balance at 1 January 2020 M2020F1A18H
F=3- 3 123,297 246,142 369,442 12,207 381,649
Total comprehensive income/ FRZHEKE
(loss) for the year (BB &8
Profit for the year FRNFIE — — 426,587 426,587 14,157 440,744
Other comprehensive loss for FAEZEEBE
the year — (125,188) — (125,188) — (125,188)
(125,188) 426,587 301,399 14,157 315,556
Transactions with HAQNERENRS
shareholders of the
Company
Issue of shares in connection BERCEITHEN
with the capitalization issue & 1n 81T 20 7,885 (7,885) — — — —
Issue of shares in connection HARD Timﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁ
with the Company’s listing Hx@?é‘ﬁ 20 3,159 2,085,535 — 2,088,694 — 2,088,694
Acquisition of subsidiaries Yo RE I — — — — 4,440 4,440
Share option scheme — value i nJrzlJ EE
of employee services RIFEE 22 — 6,447 — 6,447 — 6,447
Share option scheme—issued E%HQFEE#%J — B
shares ) 20 10 624 — 634 — 634
Dividend distribution to BTSN
shareholders 26 — (73,455) — (73,455) — (73,455)
Capital contribution from R E
non-controlling interests — — — — 685 685
Dividend distribution to FFEERER DR
non-controlling interests % 8 — — — — (3,913) (3,913)
Acquisition of equity interest e FE 122 P 1 2 LK B
from non-controlling & 18
interests — (1,817) — (1,817) (1,570) (3,387)
Appropriation of statutory EEREED R
reserves 21 — 43,824 (43,824) — — —
Balance at #2020512A31H
31 December 2020 V&= 11,057 2,051,382 628,905 2,691,344 26,006 2,717,350
The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be LA 47 & 455 B3k e BRBE Y B 5 — GFBF 8 -

read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS

AR RE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 #, %2020 12 A31H IFFE

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B BEHEASN - FiE S EEAARE T L)

Year ended 31 December

BE12A31BLFE

2020 2019
20204 20194
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 55 ARBT R ARBEF T
Cash flows from operating activities K& ITBHFREELSARE
Continuing operations BEREER
Cash generated from operations KEBIRE 27 356,752 316,137
Income tax paid BB (75,485) (50,882)
281,267 265,255
Discontinued operation BRIEREER — 15,444
Net cash generated from operating RETHRABREFH
activities 281,267 280,699
Cash flows from investing activities RETBHFMBHEERE
Continuing operations BEKSEEK
Purchase of property, plant and BEVE  BER&E
equipment (21,427) (14,146)
Purchase of intangible assets BEEFAE (2,640) (568)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant  HE&E¥E « ME LR ED
and equipment Ffr {5 k18 17 7
Repayments of loans from other entities — EH fth Z B2 E 7Kk 29,352 564,000
Prepayments for acquisition of a Ik B — R W B A B T A
subsidiary (62,000) =
Interest received B B 455 54,937
Payments for acquisition of subsidiaries, W BB Bt 8 2 | BT AT 5RI8
net of cash acquired kTSRS 28 (17,144) (12,932)
Payments for financial assets at fair value ~ FLARARBEFEL A
through profit or loss Bai e A& EMTHIE (2,125,368) (278,430)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets HENRAREBEFELTA
at fair value through profit or loss BaEremEENFEHIE 33 1,665,933 309,008
Investments in an associate R—REZERRINKRE 11 — (1,000)
(532,822) 620,876
Discontinued operation DRI REER — 23,056
Net cash (used in)/generated from REEH (FTR) FEEE
investing activities R (532,822) 643,932
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

%

HeaRengk (@)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 #, %2020 12 A31H IFFE

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (B BEHEASN - FiE S EEAARE T L)
Year ended 31 December
BEZ12831BLFE
2020 2019
20204 20194F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 ARBT R AREEF T
Cash flows from financing activities RMEETBHMERESRE
Continuing operations BEREEK
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares BITEBRATERIE 2,164,120 9,435
Proceeds from exercise of share options 77l #EFT15 7R 20(d) 634 —
Capital injection by non-controlling FEERERTEE
interests 685 7,448
Repayments of borrowings EEBK — (436,426)
Cash advances from related parties B T RIS FA K 805 21,444
Cash advances from other entities HMERENRESBR — 5,781
Repayments to related parties m) BA B 7 12 3K — (8,866)
Repayments to other entities m] H At B 4858 3K — (4,300)
Interest paid B A8 (972) (32,391)
Principal elements of lease payments HENKH AR IS (16,022) (4,647)
Listing expenses paid BN EmAX (64,659) (7,952)
Transactions with non-controlling BIEERERNZS
interests (3,387) —
Dividends paid to shareholders BEREANRE 26 (73,455) —
Dividends paid to non-controlling BT IEIERE AR S
interests (3,913) —
2,003,836 (450,474)
Discontinued operation ERIEREEK — (23,813)
Net cash generated from/(used in) METHHME (TR ES
financing activities FEE 2,003,836 (474,287)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents IR & N8 & ZEBYIL T8 1,752,281 450,344
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FNReRREEED
of year 584,795 134,260
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash R & KIS ZEEYWAE L
and cash equivalents BE T2 (119,292) 191
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of FRIRENIELEEY
the year 2,217,784 584,795

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in

conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Central China New Life Limited 2 ¥4+ FER QT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 R R B o

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (& BB HBASN - FrE @5 UAARE T TET)

General information

Central China New Life Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 16 October 2018 as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law CAP.22 of the Cayman Islands. The address of the
Company's registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.

The Company has been listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since
15 May 2020 by way of its initial public offering (“IPO").

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company
and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally
engaged in (i) provision of property management and
value-added services (ii) provision of lifestyle services and (iii)
provision of commercial property management and consultation
services in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). The
controlling shareholders of the Company are Enjoy Start Limited
("Enjoy Start”), a company incorporated under the laws of
British Virgin Islands (“BVI”) and Mr. Wu Po Sum (collectively
the “Controlling Shareholder”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”), unless otherwise stated. These financial
statements have been approved for issue by the board of
directors of the Company on 26 March 2021.

—REH

BEFEFARQAF (TARE])HR20185F10
R16BREMSHSEMNE2E(RFDENHE
FHERSTMKIAERRBERDR - AR
A H) £ 3% S (27 Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-
1111, Cayman lIslands °

AARIE E20209F5 815 BEEFBEE N AR
BZE(BRAHABEDMAXNEETBHEXR
SHBERAR([BRZA]) =R ET -

ARBB—RBREERRATF - ARFREN
BAR (MW AEE]) TBRFEARKAM
(TR E ) e = IREMEEE RIEERT
(R AEERE  RNVBHAEEEEER
HHARTE - ARBRNERRRERBAIGARD
A(TaMR]  —RXBREEBERREEEME
B S E R B)) B A AR AR 58 A (AT R [ 42 AR
-

BRBERAN  ZERAVBRRAUAR
BIARK] 27 - ZFH B HEREN2021
FIAHEARREETSHETIE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BTSRRI L (48)

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (f& 2B B4 «

2

Summary of significant accounting policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies
adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all

the years presented,

unless otherwise stated. The financial

statements are for the Group consisting of the Company and its

subsidiaries.

2.1 Basis of preparation

(1)

(i)

(i)

Compliance with HKFRS and HKCO

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (HKFRS) and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (HKCO) Cap. 622.

Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on a
historical cost basis, except for certain financial
assets measured at fair value.

New and amended standards adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following standards and
amendments for the first time for their annual
reporting year commencing 1 January 2020 and
there is no material impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statement:

o Definition of Material — Amendments to
HKAS 1 and HKAS 8

o Definition of a Business — Amendments to
HKFRS 3

. Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —
Amendments to HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9 and
HKAS 39

o Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting

. Covid-19 Related Rent Concessions —

Amendments to HKFRS 16

Central China New Life Limited Z¥£# 4 FER 2T

2

A SRUARE T T

BEAEHBEME

AU R REZ SR A M REARMAN
BEGHER - BBAERIN  RERRCE
MERRAASRFE - AR BRRATE
B(REAATRAMBAR) MHBRE -

21 wREBEEE
() HFEEYEIREER R EER
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(i) ELEAIED
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BEERI -

(iii)  FERE BRI FTET R ACME 5T
Al
AREBD 202061 A1 HHEBE
FEREFEEXERTH AL
FIER] B AEBMGRE TS
HRITBEATE

s  EAWER — BAEGHE
AF VR R BB G ERE
85k (IEFTA)

s EXBMER — HEVBR
EEREIFR (BETAK)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

A5 R P ot ()

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (f& 3 H =5 AN -

2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2

(Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

A SRUARE T T

21 wmEEEE)

EASHHEHME®)

(iv)

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
Certain new accounting standards and
interpretations have been published that are not
mandatory for 31 December 2020 reporting periods
and have not been early adopted by the Group.
These standards are not expected to have a
material impact on the entity in the current or
future reporting periods and on foreseeable future
transactions:

(iv)

1] R ERAY BT AT BRI R 7 FE

AT SR RREDER
fo o MR F AR R 2 B 20204
12731 BRE ML IFoR B -
B EEAREEIRERRA - A
ZEEA T ERIRE AR RFE
HHHERLAIBRRARRZE
EBARTE:

Effective

for accounting
periods beginning
on or after

RET B2 RABH

AL

HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 4 and
HKFRS 16 (Amendments)

BRI ELERFE I BEFEHAE
BIZE395% « BEMIEMEERFE 458
R BB 7% E %A
F165% (IBFTAR)

HKFRS 3 (Amendments)

BB BREERFEIR (SETA)

HKAS 16 (Amendments)
RS ERIFE 165 (BETA)

HKAS 37 (Amendments)
BB G ERIEI7HR (BETA)

Annual improvements to HKFRS 1

BEMBREENFEVRNFESE

Annual improvements to HKFRS 9

BEMBREEANFIRNEFRSE

Annual improvements to HKFRS 16

BEMBREENF 16RO FE

Annual improvements to HKFRS 41

BRNBHRELRNFENFOFEBCE
Revised Accounting Guideline 5
KIERT & HEEI B 55%

HKFRS 17
BN BREEMBT7H

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
— Phase 2
FIREERE —

FBEER

Reference to the conceptual
Framework

B E R R

Property, plant and equipment

ME - BB RRE

Onerous contracts — cost of
fulfilling a contract

EREH — BAKAE

First-time adoption of HKFRS
BIRERNE B B s s 4R

Financial instruments
@I A

Leases
HE

Agriculture
BE

Merger Accounting for Common
Control Combination

HRAZEH G HOAHETE

Insurance contracts

o380

1 January 2021

202151 A1H

1 January 2022
202241 A1H

1 January 2022
202251 H1H

1 January 2022
202251 A1H

1 January 2022
20221 H1H

1 January 2022
20229618 1H

1 January 2022
20221 H1H

1 January 2022
20229618 1H

1 January 2022
202241 H18

1 January 2023
20231 H1H
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

A5 R P ot ()

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) ([

2

Summary of significant accounting policies 2

(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(iv)

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted (iv)

(Continued)

SAEFBA

A SRUARE T T

BEARSTHEME @)

21 wRREE)

14 R R A B BT AT E R R a2 FE (8

Effective

for accounting

periods beginning

on or after

RUUTN B 2 2R E
EHBEEX

HKAS 1 (Amendments)

BAEGERE 1R (EFTA)

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)

EBREFSH (20204F)

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(Amendment)

Classification of liabilities as current
or non-current

BESBEARBIERD

Presentation of Financial Statements
— Classification by the Borrower
of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause

M HmENZ2Y] — ERAHEHER
EREREINERERO D

Sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its

1 January 2023

20234F1A1H

1 January 2023

202341 A81H

To be determined

associate or joint venture

BEMBREENFIORLEES

SRS 285% (BRI &) BOEELELLE
2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity 2.2

accounting

(a)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including a structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group
(refer to Note 2.3).

Central China New Life Limited 2 ¥4+ FER QT
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

A5 R P ot ()

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (

2

BmB BN -

Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are separately in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income,

shown

statement of changes in equity and balance sheet
respectively.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has
significant influence but not control or joint
control. This is generally the case where the Group
holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for using
the equity method of accounting (see Note 2.2 (c)

below), after initially being recognised at cost.

Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share
of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the
investee in profit or loss, and the Group’s share of
movements in other comprehensive income of the
investee in other comprehensive income. Dividends
received or receivable from associates and joint
ventures are recognised as a reduction in the
carrying amount of the investment.

2

A SRUARE T T

EASHHEHME®)

22 HZEARAREZRSFTERE(E)

(a)

(b)

(c)

W& 2 7] (#8)
REIAR S - BHREEERQERE
RHEARBHEW T THE - IR

ERFZIEHECEREEMRER
B BRAIAREREBEBETTHE-
MBARNEARRCERTER
TR S 2L DARE (R BN 62 [ P AR
B

BT BB A RIS AR S BN O FE P B A
B#ORRGEEEERER  #5
EHRNEEABRTERIR

gﬁﬁk*/‘\ 7
HENRAAEEEEREAY
2B D AT Il A s R B R
FTEER -ERFIEALEEEE
20% E50% 1% RHERIF N o PO
B AR ERR A HERE
gmeshE (BT iE2.2(0)
HIER ©

W%
BEEREIE  BANSEK

AHER  HETARBEARER
PRERANEBEEERIE WS

BAEEEE KRR EMEE
W ERARERIEBIRETN
Hp2EKENES - CWRE
Wt ERA R A BELEN RS
RBREBEREREENRD
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

A5 R P ot ()

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) ([

2

SAEFBA

Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Equity method (Continued)
When the Group’s
equity-accounted investment equals or exceeds its
interest in the entity, including any other unsecured
long-term receivables, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
other entity.

share of losses in an

Unrealised gains on transactions between the
Group and its associates and joint ventures are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in
these entities. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of equity accounted investees have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted
investments is tested for impairment in accordance
with the policy described in Note 2.8.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in a loss of control as
equity transactions with equity owners of the
Group. A change in ownership interest results in an
adjustment between the carrying amounts of the
controlling and non-controlling interests to reflect
their in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount of the adjustment
to non-controlling interests and any consideration
paid or received is recognised in a separate reserve
within equity attributable to owners of the Group.

relative interests

Central China New Life Limited 2 ¥4+ FER QT

2

A SRUARE T T

BEARSFTHEME @)

2.2

FERARERETEE(E)

© % (&)

WA REEIGERTIRIRENE
BERSBEENERNERZ (2
T A AR L At B 4R = HA LUK IR )
B AARETERIALE—TE
B BRIFEESRREMERARE

BAESMFHAR -

AEBEEBENTREEDLE
ZERPEENRERKAIZA
SERZETEBNESTUY
e RIFRRHBCHREER
ENEE SAREBRERTT
VA3 - S DIBRKIRE TN E
AHREEFTERIELES A
FEOR BN SR (B PR O BRR — B ©

R DIBR IR E W BRI E AR R MY o

2. 8T R TR E AR -

(@)  TEHESEE BB E 2 7T

ERAEED

AREBE KN EHRREZGIENIE
ERRABE M HR R EAEE K
REAANBERS - TERERE
) B B A B AR 2R 3R AR
RENREEZ MELRE
R E KB A B R R o
RS FL AR SRR
B 32 A 3k W ER O 4 fe] 3B 2 ] 9
FRZBERAEEEE ARLE

HANEBHEETESR -



Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

A5 R P ot ()

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (

BmB BN -

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.3

Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for all business combinations, regardless of whether
equity instruments or other assets are acquired. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition of a

subsidiary comprises the:
. fair values of the assets transferred,

o liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquired business,

o equity interests issued by the Group,

J fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement, and

o fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with
limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at
the acquisition date. The Group recognises any
non-controlling interest in the acquired entity on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the
acquired entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
The excess of the:
o consideration transferred,

o amount of any non-controlling interest in the

acquired entity, and

o acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired
is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than
the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the
business acquired, the difference is recognised directly in
profit or loss as a bargain purchase.

A SRUARE T T

2 EARBTHEBMEG

2.3

ERaHt

RASTRBEESMERTAFAR
BEwehCWBET A EMEE -

EJELISZ,E%WJ% AEERNYERR:

. FrEZREENAREE -

. BB EEHATHA AELN
BE-

. REEBEITH IAE

. AR RAHELHELNERNEE
KBEENRIAEE K

. 1A B 8 2 RMEfR] 5% A3 A2 O X 4
BAREME -

REBE B TR R AT BRI E E L &

FIAENBERKBERE  NFRER

Wi BB A A BESE (B85

B o AN 5 BAR 1555 TR W s A

AR BESGHEREREREBER
AEAEEFENLD  BREKEE
BB IR B s -

W ARB R AR E LR PIERM -

THI&E

o BREENEE
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B R
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

A5 R P ot ()

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) ([

2

SAEFBA

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.3

Business combinations (Continued)

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is
deferred, the amounts payable in the future are
discounted to their present value as at the date of
exchange. is the entity’s
incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which a
could be obtained from an

The discount rate used

similar borrowing
independent financier under comparable terms and
conditions. Contingent consideration is classified either as
equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified as a
financial liability are subsequently remeasured to fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer's
previously held equity in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any
gains or losses arising from such remeasurement are
recognised in profit or loss.

interest

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds
the carrying amount in the consolidated financial

statements of the investee's net assets including

goodwill.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)
2.4 Segment reporting

2.5

Operating segments are reported in @ manner consistent
with the
operating decision-maker.
("CODM"), responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the executive
directors that makes strategic decisions.

internal reporting provided to the chief
The chief operating

decision-maker who is

Foreign currency translation
(a)  Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
(the
currency”). The Company’s shares have been listed

which the entity operates “functional
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange since 15
May 2020 where the Company received the listing
proceeds and settled various expenses in Hong
Kong Dollars (“HK$") and is expecting to transact
its future operating and financing activities primarily
in HK$. Consequently, the Company determined to
change its functional currency from RMB to HK$
on 15 May 2020. As the major operations of the
Group are within the PRC, the Group determined
to present its consolidated financial statements in
RMB.

(b)  Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the

functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation of monetary assets and
denominated in foreign currencies at year-end
exchange rates are generally recognised in profit or

loss.

liabilities

PraE®

FIUARBT )
2 EASHTHEREEMEG®
24 DEME
B I 2 R B B AR

2.5

FE(XBRERKE] FRENRNT2R
—H e TRRERREABLED N
BRDBENKBANE  CEAEREDL
ﬁfﬂ% MRENNITES -

S

@ DEERZEIER
AEESBERBNMBHRRMAIIEA
BEMERELZMETIERER

BHEE ([heeEE D2 - &
NAEIE 82020555158 #£ 14
BEAZRTER LT - AT BT
([T ]) B E T P8 38 R 4
BIEEA  EERREE Rt
BEBHETEUNBTLETRS °
E it - AR FRE 820204654
ISARENEEEHAREEE
BET BHRANEENEEXS
TR EIER - REBIREIAA
REZH|HZEMBEHRE -

b) RXZRE
INER GREANRR S HBRITH
XL EMABHEANHERE
RNEEE ZERHGHEEEE
BN W on K B 48 - A AR R
ERMELINETHEN TR EE
&Eﬁﬁﬁéiﬁ’]ﬁlﬂl& & R g e
MERNEBRRER -

Annual Report 2020 & [Z &

117



’

118

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BTSRRI L (48)

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (F&

2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Transactions and balances (Continued)

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings are presented in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income within finance
costs. All other foreign exchange gains and losses
are presented in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on a net basis within other
gains — net.

Translation differences on assets and liabilities
carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair
value gain or loss.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyper-inflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

. assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

o income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are
translated at the rate on the dates of the
transactions); and

o all resulting currency translation differences
are recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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2

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)
2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c) Group companies (Continued)

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of any net investment in foreign
entities, and of borrowings and other financial
instruments designated as hedges of such
investments, are recognised in other comprehensive
income. When a foreign operation is sold or any
borrowings forming part of the net investment are
repaid, the associated exchange differences are
reclassified to profit or loss, as part of the gain or
loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and
translated at the closing rate.

2.6 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost
less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that
is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of any component accounted for as a separate
asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
reporting period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their cost, net of their residual values, over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

— Vehicles 5 years
— Equipment and furniture 3-5 years
— Machinery 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BTSRRI L (48)

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (f& 2B B4 «

2

Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

2.7

Gains and

losses on disposals are determined by

comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount. These
are included in profit or loss.

Intangible assets

(a)

(b)

Gooawill

Goodwill is measured as described in Note 2.3.
Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included
in intangible assets. Goodwill is not amortised but
it is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that it might be impaired, and is carried at
cost less accumulated impairment losses. Gains and
losses on the disposal of an entity include the
carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity
sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for
the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is
made to those cash-generating units or groups of
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from the business combination in which the
goodwill arose. The units or groups of units are
identified at the lowest level at which goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes.

Platform and Know-How

Platform and Know-How acquired in a business
combination is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. The contractual technology has a
finite useful

life and is carried at cost less

accumulated amortization. Amortization is
calculated using the straight-line method over the

expected life of 10 years for the technology.
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BmB BN -

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.7

2.8

Intangible assets (Continued)

(c) Order-Backlog and Customer Relationship
Order-Backlog and customer relationship acquired
in a business combination is recognised at fair value
at the acquisition date. The order backlog and
customer relationship have a finite useful life and
are carried at cost less accumulated amortization.
Amortization is calculated using the straight-line
method over the expected life of 3~10 years.

(d)  Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets mainly include computer
They are recognised and
measured at costs incurred to acquire and bring
them to use. Other intangible assets are amortised
over their estimated useful lives (generally 3 to 5
years), using the straight-line method which reflects
the pattern in which the intangible asset’s future
economic benefits are expected to be consumed.

software. initially

(e)  Research and development
Research expenditure and development expenditure
that do not meet the criteria are recognised as an
expense as incurred. Development costs previously
recognised as an expense are not recognised as an
asset in a subsequent period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill that has an indefinite useful life are not subject
to amortization and are tested annually for impairment,
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets are
tested for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and

recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment
are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at
the end of each reporting period.

2

A SRUARE T T

EASHHEHME®)

2.7

2.8

BRVEE W)

() TETEREFRHE
EEBEHHESNEERER
EFRERKBREMRAAEE
R - BEITEREFPHEERSE
BRAIEAFES - WARAKR R
IR - MIHE =S T F R
FHERFHAABEREFE

(d) H#EEEE

Eﬁﬁ/ﬁ\ﬂ/éﬁix BIRETERE
e ERZBERERELN
RATER LT E - Hib B EE
REMGHAERFH(BER=E
TF) AABEAREEE - RIRT &
B BEARRABE M TR #5008
FERRA o

(e) HE
TRHEBEENHRIERARES
PRELRERARE - LAk
REATHRAENATSEER
HEERAEE -

FERMEERE
AEERACHFHNFETETE
o 1E| BEZETREMNR WA
RERBERABEXGRE - A THE
ﬁﬁﬁﬁi%ﬁ’\]ﬂﬁxﬁﬂéﬁ cEEMHRBRE

L REABREME T s BOE W EIRY - B E
i EEETRENSR - REBRLREE

REERBREEATEESE s ZEER
A EEEREEAREEREERAR
REREENERSE - B MR EM
s BERBEMAIHEMNRRA (R
ABRELBUYREMEESEEAR
(ReEEBM)MBSRA) HHIEK
TR o FFREEE (BERIN) IE
BRE - Blgnesms iR RE
BEOE AL -

Annual Report 2020 & [Z &

121



Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BTSRRI L (48)

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (& A =AB5N - FTE & BUAARE T L)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 EXEFHEREBE®
(Continued)

2.9 Discontinued operation 29 BRIEKEEK

A discontinued operations is a component of the entity ERIEEEERBEHERDEAISE
that has been disposed of or is classified as held for sale HEBREXE—EBE T EZEBHE
and that represents a separate major line of business or L ROBEMANKET Y - AEEZ
geographical area of operations, is part of a single ¥GEE NS E RN ERHAEIN
co-ordinated plan to dispose of such a line of business or —#n A —REAEESHMEENN
area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively BATE  BERIEREEBNEERNGE
with a view to resale. The results of discontinued PHWERTEFHZY -

operations are presented separately in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

2.10 Investments and other financial assets 210 RERHEMEMEE
(a)  Classification (@) o8

The Group classifies its financial assets in the FEEKEERMEES B TG

following measurement categories: 285 :

. those to be measured subsequently at fair . HeZRArnEEFENS
value (either through other comprehensive BEE GIAEMEEEKE
income, or through profit or loss), and sEt ABZE) - &

. those to be measured at amortised cost. . REHEAAAENSRE

= o
The classification depends on the entity’s business DEREREESHEELE S
model for managing the financial assets and the MEEKMERHEBEATE °

contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses HRRANBEFENEE K
will either be recorded in profit or loss or other wmREEEFT ABRNHEMEE
comprehensive income. For investments in debt Wz o HRAEBKTAEZRE -
instruments, this will depend on the business RRETERENEBRES - R
model in which the investment is held. For EmTARE  BEARAKEHE
investments in equity instruments, this will depend R TR ZE 2O HEEH
on whether the Group has made an irrevocable BENAARBEMAESWFAEM
election at the time of initial recognition to 2EMENFT A BRAIZETIER -

account for the equity investment at fair value
through other comprehensive income.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and EHESARKEEREHEEN
only when its business model for managing those XBEANEEEYR  AEEH
assets changes. HEBIREETENHE -
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2

Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.10 Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the Group
has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership.

Measurement
At initial the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of

recognition,

a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction
costs of financial
through profit or loss are expensed in profit or

assets carried at fair value

loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset.
measurement categories into which the Group

classifies its debt instruments:

There are two

o Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest are measured at

amortised cost. Interest income from these

financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in other gains — net together
with foreign exchange gains and losses.

Impairment losses are presented as separate

line item in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income.
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SAEFBA

Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.10 Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

o Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that
do not meet the criteria for amortised cost
are measured at fair value through profit or
loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment
that is subsequently measured at fair value
through profit or loss is recognised in profit
or loss and presented net within other gains
— net in the period in which it arises.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value gains
and losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to
profit or loss following the derecognition of the
investment.
continue to be recognised in profit or loss as other
income when the Group’s right to
payments is established.

Dividends from such investments

receive

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised in other
gains — net in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as applicable. Impairment
losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity
investments measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income are not reported separately
from other changes in fair value.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the consolidated balance
sheet where the Group currently has a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts,
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or
realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.1

2.12

2.13

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the
debt
instruments carried at amortised cost and financial assets

expected credit losses associated with its
at fair value through other comprehensive income. The
impairment methodology applied depends on whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk. Note
3.1.2 details how the Group determines whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of
the assets.

Impairment on other receivables from third parties,
related parties and non-controlling interests are measured
as either 12-month expected credit losses or lifetime
expected credit losses, depending on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. If a significant increase in credit risk of a
then

impairment is measured as lifetime expected credit losses.

receivable has occurred since initial recognition,

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realizable value. Costs of purchased inventory are
determined after deducting rebates and discounts. Net
realizable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make

the sale.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business.
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are

If collection of trade and other

classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as
non-current assets.
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2

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.13

2.14

2.15

2.16

2.17

Trade and other receivables (Continued)

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of
consideration that is unconditional unless they contain
significant financing components, when they are
recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade
receivables with the objective to collect the contractual
cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. See
Note 18 for further information about the Group’s
accounting for trade receivables and Note 3.1.2 for a

description of the Group’s impairment policies.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
deposits held at call with financial institutions.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services
provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year
which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are
presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due
within 12 months after the reporting period. They are
recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest

method.

Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income based on
the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction
adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax
losses.
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Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.17 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period in the
countries where the Company and its subsidiaries
and associates operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition
of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realized or
the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilise those temporary differences and
losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax
balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset
where the entity has a legally enforceable right to
offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.
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SAEFBA

Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.17 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

2.18 Employee benefits

(a)

Pension obligations

The Group only operate defined contribution
pension plans. In accordance with the rules and
regulations in the PRC, the PRC based employees
of the Group participate in various defined
contribution retirement benefit plans organized by
the relevant municipal and provincial governments
in the PRC under which the Group and the PRC
based employees are required to make monthly
contributions to these plans calculated as a
percentage of the employees’ salaries. The
municipal and provincial governments undertake to
assume the retirement benefit obligations of all
existing and future retired PRC based employees’
payable under the plans described above. Other
than the monthly contributions, the Group has no
further obligation for the payment of retirement
and other post-retirement benefits of its employees.
The assets of these plans are held separately from
those of the Group in independently administrated
funds managed by the governments.

The Group also participates in a retirement benefit
scheme under the rules and regulations of the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance
("MPF Scheme”) for all employees in Hong Kong.
The contributions to the MPF Scheme are based on
minimum statutory contribution requirement of the
lower of 5% of eligible employees’ relevant
aggregate income and HK dollar (“HK$")1,500. The
assets of this MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in independently administered
funds.

The Group’s contributions to the defined
contribution retirement scheme are expensed as
incurred.
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Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.18 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Housing funds, medical insurances and other social
insurances

Employees of the Group in the PRC are entitled to
participate in various government-supervised
housing funds, medical insurances and other social
insurance plan. The Group contributes on a
monthly basis to these funds based on certain
percentages of the salaries of the employees,
subject to certain ceiling. The Group’s liability in
respect of these funds is limited to the
contributions payable in each year. Contributions to
the housing funds, medical insurances and other
social insurances are expensed as incurred.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment
is terminated by the Group before the normal
retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts
voluntary redundancy in exchange for these
benefits. The Group recognises termination benefits
at the earlier of the following dates: (a) when the
Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits; and (b) when the entity recognises costs
for a restructuring that is within the scope of
HKAS 37 and involves the payment of termination
benefits. In the case of an offer made to
encourage voluntary redundancy, the termination
benefits are measured based on the number of
employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits
falling due more than 12 months after the end of
the reporting period are discounted to their present
value.

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including
non-monetary benefits and accumulating annual
leave that are expected to be settled wholly within
12 months after the end of the period in which the
employees render the related service are recognised
in respect of employees’ services up to the end of
the reporting period and are measured at the
amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities
are settled. The liabilities are presented as current
employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)
2.19 Share-based payments

Share-based compensation benefits are provided to
employees via the 2019 Employee Share Option Plan.
Information relating to the schemes is set out in Note
22.

Employee options

The fair value of options granted under the 2019
Employee Share Option Plan is recognised as an employee
benefits expense with a corresponding increase in equity.
The total amount to be expensed is determined by
reference to the fair value of the options granted:

— including any market performance conditions (e.g.
the entity’s share price)

—  excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions (e.g. profitability,
sales growth targets and remaining an employee of
the entity over a specified time period), and

— including the impact of any non-vesting conditions
(e.g. the requirement for employees to save or
holdings shares for a specific period of time).

The total expense is recognised over the vesting period,
which is the period over which all of the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of each period,
the Group revises its estimates of the number of options
that are expected to vest based on the non-market
vesting and service conditions. It recognises the impact of
the revision to original estimates, if any, in profit or loss,
with a corresponding adjustment to equity.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)
2.20 Provisions

2.21

Provisions for legal claims, service warranties and make
good obligations are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation and the amount can be
reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the
present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due
to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Revenue recognition

Revenues are recognised when or as the control of the
goods or services is transferred to the customer.
Depending the terms of the contract and the laws that
apply to the contract, control of the goods and services

may be transferred over time or at a point in time.

(@) Property management services and value-added
services
The Group provides property management services,
onsite sales assistance service, consultancy services,
installation service, property inspection services,

property agency service and membership service.
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Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.21 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(a)

Property management services and value-added
services (Continued)

For property management services, the Group bills
a fixed amount for services provided on a monthly
basis and recognises as revenue in the amount to
which the Group has a right to invoice and that
corresponds directly with the value of performance
completed.

For onsite sale assistance services, the Group bills a
fixed amount for services provided on a monthly
basis and recognises as revenue in the amount to
which the Group has a right to invoice and that
corresponds directly with the value of performance
completed.

Consultancy services mainly includes consultancy
services to property developers, providing designing,
cleaning, greening, construction supervision, repair
and maintenance services to property developers at
the pre-delivery stage. The Group agrees the price
for each service with the customers upfront and
issues the monthly bill to the customers which
varies based on the actual
completed in that month.

level of service

For installation
installation services for the security system and
other establishment of intelligence communities.
The Group recognises revenue over the period of
the contract by reference to the progress towards
complete satisfaction of that performance

service, the Group provide

obligation. The progress towards complete
satisfaction of the performance obligation, in an
amount that reflects the consideration expected to
be entitled and, depending on the nature of the
contract, is measured mainly by reference to (a) the
proportion of contract costs incurred for work
performed to date to estimated total contract costs
for each contract; or (b) completion of physical

proportion of the contract work.
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Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.21 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Property management services and value-added
services (Continued)

For property inspection service, the Group provide
property quality inspection to property developer
and the revenue is recognised upon the completion
of service.

For property agency service, the Group act as a
sales agent for property developer, landlord and
tenant and provides property agency services,
which charge such property developer, landlord and
tenant a commission calculated based on the
contract purchase price.
services is recognised at a point in time when the

Revenue from agency

service is rendered and the sales and purchase
agreement or leasing agreement are executed and
become effective.

For the membership service, the Group provides
exclusive customer services to VIP members selected
by Central China Real Estate Limited (“CCRE")
and its subsidiaries (the “CCRE Group”). The
Group bills CCRE a management fee based on the
number

of members and additional fees for

organizing special events.

Lifestyle services
Lifestyle services mainly includes travel services,
sales of goods and provision of catering services.

For travel services, the Group provides short-term
self-operated tour service. Revenue from tours is
recognised over time in accounting period in which
the control of services is transferred to the
customer because the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes benefits provided by the
Group's performance as it performs. Payment is
usually made to the Group before the customers

receive the tour services.
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Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.21 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Lifestyle services (Continued)

The Group determines the presentation of its
revenue by assessing whether
principal of the services that are rendered. The
Group presents its revenue on a gross basis (that is,
the amount billed to the users) as the Group acts
as a principal by pre-purchasing the travel related
products from the travel service suppliers. The
purchase payments to the travel suppliers are

it acts as the

recorded as “cost of revenue” in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

The Group procures merchandise from suppliers
and sells goods directly to the property owners
online and in community. Sales of goods are
recognised when the Group delivers the goods to
the customers. The Group presents the revenue on
a net basis when the Group acts as an agent with
no control over the goods and does not assume
inventory risk.

The Group operates the food court to provide
catering services. Revenue from provision of
catering services are recognised at a point in time
when the food and beverage are delivered to the
customers.

Commercial property management and consultation
services

Commercial property management and consultation
services includes hotel management and operation
services and management for agricultural and
cultural tourism projects and commercial real estate
operation.

The Group recognises the fee received or receivable
as its revenue over time in the period in which the
customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the services performed by the
Group and all the related management costs as its
cost of services.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)
2.21 Revenue recognition (Continued)

If contracts involve the sale of multiple services, the
transaction price allocated to each performance obligation
based on their relative stand-alone selling prices. If the
stand-alone selling prices are not directly observable, they
are estimated based on expected cost plus a margin or
adjusted market assessment approach, depending on the
availability of observable information.

When either party to a contract has performed, the
Group presents the contract in the balance sheet as a
contract asset or a contract liability, depending on the
relationship between the Group’s performance and the
customer’s payment.

A contract asset is the Group’s right to consideration in
exchange for services that the Group has transferred to a
customer.

If a customer pays consideration or the Group has a right
to an amount of consideration that is unconditional,
before the Group transfers services to the customer, the
Group presents the contract as a contract liability when
the payment is received or a receivable is recorded
(whichever is earlier). A contract liability is the Group's
obligation to transfer services to a customer for which the
Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A receivable is recorded when the Group has an
unconditional right to consideration. A right to
consideration is unconditional if only the passage of time
is required before payment of that consideration is due.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Interest income

Interest income from financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss is included in the net fair value gains/
(losses) on these assets.

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost
calculated using the effective interest method is
recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as “other income”.

Interest income is presented as finance income where it is
earned from financial assets that are held for cash
management purposes, see Note 8 below.

Leases

The Group as a lessee

The Group leases various properties. Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide
range of different terms and conditions. The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants, but leased
assets may not be wused as security of borrowing
purpose.

Lease are recognised as a right-of-use asset (Note 23)
and corresponding liability at the date of which the
leased asset is available for use by the Group. Each lease
payment is allocated between the liability and finance
cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over
the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability
for each period. The right-of-use asset is depreciated over
the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease
payments:

(@) fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

(b)  variable lease payments that are based on an index
or a rate;

() amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under
residual value guarantees;
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)
2.23 Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
(d)  the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee
is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

(e)  payment of penalties for terminating of the lease,
if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising that
option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement
of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease, if that rate can be determined, or
the Group’s incremental borrowing rate.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

(@)  the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

(b) any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received;

(0 any initial direct cost; and
(d)  restoration costs.

Payments associated with short-term leases with lease
term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets
are recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term
as an expense in profit or loss.

Extension and termination options

Extension and termination options are included in a
number of property leases across the Group. These terms
are used to maximise operational flexibility in terms of
managing contracts. The majority of extension and
termination options held are exercisable upon fulfillment
of certain notice period. In determining the lease term,
management considers all facts and circumstances that
create an economic incentive to exercise such options.
The assessment is reviewed if a significant event or a
significant change in circumstances occurs which affects
this assessment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BTSRRI L (48)

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (f& 2B B4 «

2

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.23

2.24

2.25

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a sublease lessor

Sub-lease is a transaction for which an underlying asset is
re-leased by a lessee (“sublease lessor”) to a third party,
and the lease (“head lease”) between the head lessor
and lessee remains in effect. In classifying a sublease, a
sublease lessor shall classify the sublease as a finance
lease or an operating lease as follows:

(@  If the head lease is a short-term lease that the entity,
as a lessee, has accounted for the lease payments
associated with those leases as an expense on
either a straight-line basis over the lease term or
another systematic basis, the sublease shall be
classified as an operating lease.

(b)  Otherwise, the sublease shall be classified by
referenced to the right-of-use asset arising from the
head lease as finance lease or operating lease.

Dividend distribution
Provision
declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer at
the discretion of the entity, on or before the end of the

is made for the amount of any dividend

reporting period but not distributed at the end of the
reporting period.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised statement of
comprehensive income over the period necessary to match
them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.

in the consolidated

Central China New Life Limited Z¥£# 4 FER 2T
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

A5 R P ot ()

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (& BB HBASN - FrE @5 UAARE T TET)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.26 Earnings per share

@

(i)

Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

the profit attributable to owners of the
Company, excluding any costs of servicing
equity other than ordinary shares

by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the financial year,
adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary
shares issued during the year and excluding
treasury shares.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used
in the determination of basic earnings per share to
take into account:

the after-income tax effect of interest and
other financing costs associated with dilutive
potential ordinary shares, and

the weighted average number of additional
ordinary shares that would have been
outstanding assuming the conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares.

3  Financial risk management
This note explains the Group’s exposure to financial risks and
how these risks could affect the Group’s future financial
performance. Current year profit and loss information has been
included where relevant to add further context.

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management program focuses on the unpredictability of

financial

markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse

effects on the Group’s financial performance.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BTSRRI RE (48)

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (f& A AN - FTE SR UAARE TTsT)

3

Financial risk management (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors
3.1.1 Market risk

0]

Foreign exchange risk

Currency risk as defined by HKFRS 7 arises
on financial assets and financial liabilities
being denominated in a currency that is not
the functional currency and being of a
monetary nature. Therefore non-monetary
financial assets and financial liabilities,
monetary financial assets and financial
liabilities denominated in the entity's
functional currency and differences resulting
from the translation of financial statements
of overseas entities into the Group’s
presentation currency are not taken into
consideration for the purpose of the
sensitivity analysis for currency risk.

The Group has not entered into any forward
exchange contract to hedge its exposure to
foreign exchange risk. The Group is exposed
to foreign exchange risk for certain monetary
financial assets and financial liabilities being
denominated in a currency that is not the
functional currency as follows:

3

BH¥ERERE®
3.1 BBEBREZX
311 mEEE

()

SN EE [ B2

BV BREERNETHAT
JE 2 O SIME [ R 2 8 DA IF
DEEBIRYBEE M
EnemEERERAR
PRES -FiL - FERS
MEERTRABG  U&X
ERZDEERSENE
KemEEESRAEAN
REE KB E BT
BREERAEEMNET
EEBELANEZETER
AINE R EURE DA ©

AN &2 B R RT3 A f) 22 # 40
BE & 49 LA ¥ b S BE &L Bt
AREEBALIEDREE R
MEBIHENEESRE
EReBABEARZNINE
BB

2020
20205

Monetary assets denominated in ARG HHUET
US dollar (“US$") held by the (XD srENEE

Company BE

— Financial assets at fair value = — ARAARBEET
through profit or loss FTAEZER
TRIBE 83,256 =
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3

Financial risk management (Continued)
Financial risk factors (Continued)
3.1.1 Market risk (Continued)

3.1

(i)

(ii)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

The following table shows the sensitivity
analysis of a 5% change in the respective
functional relevant
foreign currencies. The sensitivity analysis
includes only foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation

at the year-end for a 5% change in foreign

currency against the

currency rates. If there is a 5% increase/
(decrease) in the functional currency against
the relevant currencies, the effect of
increase/(decrease) in the profit before
income tax for the year is as follows:

3

A SRUARE T T

R ERE®)
BMHEEREE(H)
3.1.1 mEEE (&)

3.1

(i

SMEE LR (4B)
TRIIRARE S HEESN
BEES%NBBE DN
BURE DT BIEIAINE
FHENE¥IEE A
WERFES% AEEFR
BmE - MIEEE L HREE
B¥HE/(B2E)5% ¥
AR & P15 3 AT A R a8
m/ Rz 8mT

As at 31 December

M®12H31H

2020 2019

20205 20194

RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARBTR AREEF T
5% increase in HK$ against B HETHE

us$ (4,163) —
5% decrease in HK$ against BILHETRE

us$ 4,163 —

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Other than interest-bearing cash and cash
the Group has
significant interest-bearing assets or liabilities.

equivalents, no other
The directors of the Company do not
anticipate there is any significant impact to
interest-bearing assets and liabilities resulted
from the changes in interest rates, because
the interest rates of bank balances are not
expected to change significantly.

(ii)

ReRnBRAABENE
2\ e
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BTSRRI L (48)

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (F&

AR B TRAARE T T

3 Financial risk management (Continued) 3 HBEBREREE
3.1 MBERER (5
3.1.2 FEREE

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
3.1.2 Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to its
trade receivables, contract assets, note receivables,
other receivables, restricted cash and cash deposits
at banks. The carrying amounts of trade
receivables, contract assets, note receivables, other
receivables, restricted cash and cash deposits at
banks represent the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk in relation to financial assets.

The Group considers the probability of default
upon initial recognition of asset and whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk on an
ongoing basis throughout each reporting period. To
assess whether there is a significant increase in
credit risk, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the asset as at the reporting
date with the risk of default as at the date of
initial recognition. It considers available reasonable
and supportive forwarding-looking information.
Especially the following indicators are incorporated:

— internal credit rating

—  external credit rating

— actual or expected significant adverse changes
in business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
change to the debtor’'s ability to meet its
obligations

— actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of the debtor

— significant changes in the expected
performance and behaviour of the debtor,
including changes in the payment status of
debtors in the Group and changes in the
operating results of the debtor

Central China New Life Limited Z¥£# 4 FER 2T
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (f& 3 H =5 AN -

3  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
3.1.2 Credit risk (Continued)

The Group accounts for

its credit risk by

appropriately providing for expected credit losses on
a timely basis. In calculating the expected credit

loss rates, the Group considers historical loss rates
for each category of receivables and adjusts for
forward looking macroeconomic data.

(i)

(ii)

Cash deposits at banks

The Group expects that there is no
significant credit risk associated with cash
deposits at banks since they are substantially
deposited at state-owned banks and other

medium or large-sized listed banks.
Management does not expect that there will
be any significant losses from

non-performance by these counterparties.

Trade receivables, note receivables and
contract assets

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measure expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for trade receivables. Trade receivables have
been assessed for impairment on a collective

basis based on different credit risk

characteristics. Trade receivables are
categorised as follows for assessment
purpose:

Group 1: Trade receivables due from

property owners

Group 2: Trade receivables due from non-
property owners
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BTSRRI RE (48)

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (f& A AN - FTE SR UAARE TTsT)

3

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
3.1.2 Credit risk (Continued)

(ii)

Financial risk management (Continued) 3 BERBEE@
3.1 BMBEBREEE
3.1.2 FEER (&)
Trade receivables, note receivables and (i EFEWFIE  EREE
contract assets (Continued) ReEtEE (8)
For trade receivables, the expected loss rates HESREWZEMNS A
are based on the historical loss rates and HMEBEDERBAER
adjusted to reflect current and forward- o WIEHARNREE
looking estimates on macroeconomic factors BRXHEPEERKK
affecting the ability of the customers to settle HEE N 2/ IRIT KA
the receivables. The Group has identified the BEMfEET - NEEE HE
most relevant factors for different group TREERE P & AEEN
customers (e.g. money supply and population Z(PlmE—FHESHES
percent change from a year earlier), and RAOBDLES)  WR
accordingly adjusts the historical loss rates BRERRMNERZHY
based on expected changes in these factors. BT BB RIELAERE o
(@) On that basis, as at 31 December (@) B mE - 72020
2020, the loss allowance provision for F12A318 B85
the trade receivables was determined FE WK IE /Y S 1B R
as follows. The expected credit losses BEMAT - L TAITE
below also incorporated forward HEEEBBITERA
looking information. ATIEEE R -
Trade receivables gSENE
(Group 1) (& 31)
Gross carrying amount FHEE
(RMB'000) (ARBF ) 66,608 39,405 35014 15,091 9,203 5307 170,628
Expected loss rate BRHBER 4.65% 4.65%  10.10%  14.81%  31.03%  68.94%
Loss allowance provision EEEE
(RMB'000) (AR¥F7T) (3,096) (1,832)  (3,538)  (2,236)  (2,856)  (3,659)  (17,217)
Trade receivables g R EUE
(Group 2) (& 712)
Gross carrying amount REAE
(RMB'000) (AR%FT) 789,545 161,346 76,333 2,234 806 14 1,030,278
Expected loss rate ki) 33 2B 0.74% 0.75% 525%  11.48%  23.95% 100%
Loss allowance provision BREE
(RMB'000) (AR%F7T) (5,881) (1,206)  (4,008) (256) (193) (14)  (11,558)

Central China New Life Limited ¥4 FEBR QT



Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (& BB HBASN - FrE @5 UAARE T TET)
3  Financial risk management (Continued) 3 HBKEBRERE®
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 MEREBEEE)

3.1.2 Credit risk (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

312 FERE (&)

Trade receivables, note receivables and iy EBEZEWFGE  BEREE

contract assets (Continued) RERVEE (&)

(b) As at 31 December 2019, the loss (b) 2019412 A31
allowance provision for the trade H - &5 EKHIER
receivables was determined as follows. EiEBEETNT -
The expected credit losses below also T E R EE RSB
incorporated forward looking MEMARIEMNE
information. #} o

Up to 180 180 days to 1to2 2t03 3to4  Overd
days 1 year years years years years Total
Ey:del
180K 180XRZE1E 1226 2E3F 3E4F  RBAF A5t
Trade receivables g5 ENE
(Group 1) (&501)
Gross carrying amount REAE
(RMB'000) (AR%FTT) 34519 33948 1681 1395 6394 3,609 109,307
Expected loss rate BHEREX 1% 5% 10% 20% 50% 100%
Loss allowance provision EEEE
(RMB'000) (AR®TTT) (345) (1,698  (1,688)  (2791)  (3,197)  (3609)  (13,328)

As at 31 December 2020, the management 2020612 H431H - &

considered the credit risk associated with EBRE HEHNEEKRE

contract assets and note receivables was W EBEENEERKE

insignificant (31 December 2019: same). Ak (2019F 12 A31H -
HEE) .

Other receivables (i) EfbEYFRIE

Other receivables have been assessed for
impairment on a collective basis based on
different credit risk characteristics. Other
receivables are categorised as follows for
assessment purpose:

Group 1: Other receivables due from certain
entities (including the amounts due from
related parties and the receivables due from
the disposal group)

Group 2: Other receivables other than those
from certain entities
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BTSRRI RE (48)

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (& 574 &t BA SN

3  Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
3.1.2 Credit risk (Continued)

(i) Other receivables (Continued)

The Group has assessed that there is no
significant increase of credit risk for other
receivables since initial recognition. Thus the
Group used the 12 months expected credit
losses model to assess credit loss of other
receivables.

December

—
QL
=

On that basis, as at 31
2020, the loss allowance provision for
the other receivables was determined
as follows. The expected credit losses
below also incorporated forward
looking information.

A ERUARE T T

3 HERRERE@E
3.1 BEEBREZE)
3.1.2 E@EE (&)

(i) EAth YRR ()
AREBEETHE  BR
B ¥ 16 7 38 DA JRCE fth 8 U

IR (E BB B I KR
B At - AKEE A

NREABHEEEEER
FEEMERRENEE
B8 -

(@ BtutmE - 72020
F£12A318 Hi
JFE U R IE B S IE R
BEWT - ATNHTE
HEEBBITERA

Other receivables (Group 2) Hfth PE Wi FKIE (712)
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000)  BREAE (AR T L) 17,074 4,293 772 154 190 22,483
Expected loss rate BHEEX 2.60% 345%  831%  7157%  100.00%
Loss allowance provision EEREARSTT)
(RMB'000) (443) (148) (65) (110) (190) (956)
(b) As at 31 December 2019, the loss (b) H20194F12 A 31

allowance provision for the other
receivables was determined as follows.
The expected credit losses below also
incorporated forward looking

information.

Hofth & WRIE Y
ERBEETENT -
AT EEMEERE
HEMAREMLE

N
o o

Other receivables (Group 2) Hfth fE W FRIE (4 5I2)
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000)  BREAME (AR T L)
Expected loss rate BHEEE

Loss allowance provision BEEE(ARETT)

(RMB'000)

11,846 2,432 744 321 - 15,343
5% 10% 20% 50% 100%
(592) (243) (149) (161) — (1,145)
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3

Financial risk management (Continued)
Financial risk factors (Continued)
3.1.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.1

(iii)

Other receivables (Continued)

The Group expects that the credit risk
associated with other receivables due from
certain entities (including the amounts due
from related parties and the receivables due
from the disposal group) is considered to be
low, since these entities have a strong
capacity to meet its contractual cash flow
obligations in the near term. The Group has
assessed that the expected credit loss rate for
the amounts due from these entities are
immaterial under 12 months expected credit
loss model and considered them to have low
credit risk, and thus the loss allowance is
immaterial.

3
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3.1

(ii)
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3  Financial risk management (Continued) 3 BREREE®
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BEEBEZEE)
3.1.2 Credit risk (Continued) 3.1.2 IFE/mEE (&)
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the loss H E2020%F KX2019F 12 A31
allowance provision for trade and other receivables B B5KHMEKRIE (e
(excluding certain nature receivables and B A FE U R TE M TR FOR)
prepayments) reconciles to the opening loss BB EEFYEBRBELYR
allowance for that provision as follows: S

At 1 January 2019 M2019F1A81H 13,806 17,678 31,484
Net impairment losses on SRMEEREER

financial assets T ER
— Continuing operations — BEREER (478) 660 182
Divestment of subsidiaries INEEINGIE: 6
— Discontinued operations — BRI R — (17,193) (17,193)
At 31 December 2019 R2019F12 831 H 13,328 1,145 14,473
At 1 January 2020 20201 A1 H 13,328 1,145 14,473
Net impairment losses on CRUEEREEE

financial assets R 15,447 (189) 15,258
At 31 December 2020 72020512 H31H 28,775 956 29,731
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3.1

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (& BB HBASN - FrE @5 UAARE T TET)
3  Financial risk management (Continued) 3 HBKEBRERE®
Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BEEBEZEE)
3.1.3 Liquidity risk 3.1.3 Bt
To manage the liquidity risk, the Group monitors EEEABMRERE - AEHE
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents TREFEEERLRBREME
deemed adequate by the management to finance eRBEBSFEWKE  NUE
the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of B AEENEERMES X
fluctuations in cash flows. RERSRERBDEENTE -
The table below analyses the Group’s financial TREBRSHREHARGKTHER
liabilities and lease liabilities into relevant maturity ERFEHBNSNT - # AEE
grouping based on the remaining period at the end MNemaEREEEES REH
of each reporting period to the contractual FIEARAER - TRAKBE S8
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table BEHNKRMBRRERE
are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.
Less than Between 1  Between 2
1 year and 2 years and 5 years Total
TRBIF 1226 2E55 @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AE¥Tn AR%Trt AR%ETx
As at 31 December 2020 EZE2020F12A31H
Financial liabilities = =R
Trade and other payables B 5 K H At fE - 58
(excluding accrued payroll (TBEREE 2
and other tax payable) R B B AN KD 653,890 — — 653,890
Lease liabilities HEBE 11,376 9,596 1,421 22,393
665,266 9,596 1,421 676,283
As at 31 December 2019 #H=2019%12A31H
Financial liabilities =R
Trade and other payables B 5 K& H i FE I FRIE
(excluding accrued payroll (TBIEESF2
and other tax payable) Ko B FE A R R0 474,859 = = 474,859
Lease liabilities HEARE 1,943 563 845 3,351
476,802 563 845 478,210
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3  Financial risk management (Continued) 3 BREREE®
3.2 Capital management 32 BEXERE
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to REEEXREESEREAEERFE
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going LEmee ) KM AREREER - A
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and HA¥sth &SR - WHERIRENE
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an RERE AP IR E AR A ©

optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the REFIFARERER  FEEAEE
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to AEERNTRRECRESHE  BITHR
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce HHEBERDETR

debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the AEEZEEBBL RKELELRER -
asset-liability ratio. This ratio is calculated as total LR B BERERNEERBERE -

liabilities divided by total assets.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019 asset-liability ratio of HZE2020% KX2019412A31H &
the Group is as follows: SEMNEEABLENT :

2020
20204
Asset-liability ratio BEBBHLE 36% 74%
The asset-liability ratio decreased greatly in 2020 as the ARBEXAREE  2000FMEEARE
result of the IPO. RRIER D o
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(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (& BB HBASN - FrE @5 UAARE T TET)

3  Financial risk management (Continued) 3 HBKEBRERE®
3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 AREBHEME
(a)  Fair value hierarchy (@) A2 EEER
This section explains the judgements and estimates REFHAEEER M BRRERR
made in determining the fair values of the financial REBEENMEEGAENEHIA
instruments that are apitaliza and measured at fair B2 51 (B (B B T I /9 2 B R A
value in the financial statements. To provide an e RIEHEBETEAAEBEEMAR
indication about the reliability of the inputs used in ABBAERENER  K~EE
determining fair value, the Group has classified its BREgTEASESRTI A R
financial instruments into the three levels prescribed “EER - FERNFHBPNTE
under the accounting standards. An explanation of PR o

each level follows underneath the table.

As at 31 December 2020 Level 1 Level 3 Total
7202012 H31H F—M F=& #et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB‘000
AR®BT T ARET AR®BT
Financial assets at fair D RrEETE
value through profit or WEt AB&E B
loss SREE
Wealth management 8 i
products — 383,785 383,785
Senior note BAERIR 83,256 — 83,256
83,256 383,785 467,041
As at 31 December 2019 Level 3
R2019F12H31H =
RMB’000
AR¥ET T
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss U2 A EEFEIF A
BENEREE
Wealth management products 12 B 2 1,530
The fair value of financial instruments that are not WIHREEMEEEN ST A
traded in an active market is determined by using B AR EEERGERMNEE

valuation techniques.
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BTSRRI L (48)

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (F&

AR B TRAARE T T

3

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(a)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The different levels have been defined as follows:
Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments
traded in active markets (such as publicly traded
derivatives, and equity securities) is based on
quoted market prices at the end of the reporting
period. The quoted market price used for financial
assets held by the Group is the current bid price.
These instruments are included in level 1.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that
are not traded in an active market (for example,
over-the-counter derivatives) is determined using
valuation techniques which maximise the use of
observable market data and rely as little as possible
on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs
required to fair value an instrument are observable,
the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is
not based on observable market data, the
instrument is included in level 3. This is the case
for wealth management products.

The Group’s financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss included wealth management
products and senior note, fair value of which are
estimated based on unobservable inputs (level 3) or
obtained from quoted market prices (level 1)
respectively.

There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3
for recurring fair value measurements during the
into and out of level 3

year. For transfers

measurements see (b) below.

Central China New Life Limited ¥ # 4 FER AT

3 BERREREGE
3.3 AAEEMF@E)
@ ArBEERGE
TREROTENT :

F—AEEETS(WMAREER
TETAREARES) EENSRE
TANARAERBRSHROTS
BB AKERENEHE
EFROMEHRELAERER
B-RETANAE M-

£ WIRIERT S (55
TETR)EENERTEANAAR
BEXABGHERMEE @ %54
ERMEENBAUBREDSEE
1M AR R 8 B B RE (A T o i
AEITAAABEMREEHEXN
BABBERTEBRERE A
TARINAE 4

FE=R:M—IBRZIEERE A
FIEW IR BB RTISHES
o BT A AL =4 - 20
EmENBILIER -

AEEEIRBEFABRENE
REEEREVERRELR
B HRFEDBIRE A ATEER
BABE (F=R) XUXTHHRE
(% —#) fhat o

FAREBLEL AR BEFER
E—H B_ARFE=AMBHE
B ARBANREHE =R
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(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (& BB HBASN - FrE @5 UAARE T TET)
3  Financial risk management (Continued) 3 HBKEBRERE®
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AREBEME®E)

(b)  The following table presents the changes in level 3 (b) THXEZNEZ2020F12H31H
instruments for the year ended 31 December I FEHNE=RTAMZE) -
2020.

Wealth

management

products

BHEm

RMB’000

AR¥F

Opening balance FHREER 1,530
Additions RE 2,044,001
Gains for the year recognised in profit or loss R 18 75 AR O S U B 4,187
Disposals BB (1,665,933)
Closing balance FARERR 383,785

() The following table presents the changes in level 3 (c) TXKZ2ZEHZ2019F12H31H
instruments for the year ended 31 December I FERE =R T AR E) -
2019.

Wealth
management Fund
products products Total
BHER ESER st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AR¥T AR¥T
Opening balance F 4 4,402 30,699 35,101
Additions NE
— From continuing — REFELE
operations S 278,430 — 278,430
Gains for the year recognised A 1BzEF FERH E
in profit or loss A
— From continuing — REFELE
operations Egi 407 = 407
— From discontinued — REERIERE
operation Egi 8 = 8
Disposals BE
— From continuing — REFELE
operations Ep (278,309) (30,699) (309,008)
— From discontinued — REERKIE
operation T (3,408) — (3,408)
Closing balance FARER 1,530 = 1,530
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(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (f& A AN - FTE SR UAARE TTsT)

3  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(d)

Quantitative information about fair value

measurements using significant unobservable inputs

(Level 3) is as follow:

the higher of expected rate of return, the higher
the fair value.

The Group manages the valuation of level 3
instruments for financial reporting purpose on a
case by case basis. At least once every reporting
year, the Group would assess the fair value of the
Group's level 3 instruments by using valuation
techniques.

If the fair values of the financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss held by the Group had been
5% higher/lower, the profit before income tax for
the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019
would have been approximately RMB23,352,000
higher/lower, and RMB77,000 higher/lower,
respectively.

Central China New Life Limited ¥4 FEBR QT

3 HERBRER®
3.3 AAEEMF@E)
(d) EEABEATTEEEA LI A
A EEEHE (E=) BB B
WE

2020
20204

Expected interest rate per  Discounted cash Wealth 2%-5% 2%-4%
annum flow management
products
TAEAF =X BRI e BB i
Relationship of unobservable inputs to fair value: TAIBEH ASIEHE AR EE

> &

JERZN
BiE: RHFRERERS R
EBERS -

o

REBBIM B HRE B OIREEIE
MNEBE=MITENME - K&
PE-ERSFE  AREERE
RGERMFEAEEE=RT
BEMAREE-

WAEBBEANARAEBENE
WEFABEONEHEENARE
E12 90,8 5% @ 8 E20204F
F2019%12A31B LEEM K
STRTE R AT RS 9 B8 bR
Ly NR#23,352,000 AR
#77,0007T °
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A5 R P ot ()

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (f& 3 H =5 AN -

4

Critical accounting estimates and judgments
The preparation of financial statements requires the use of
accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal the
actual results. Management also needs to exercise judgement in
applying the Group’s accounting policies.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that may have a financial impact
on the entity and that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

(a)

(b)

Allowance on doubtful receivables and
contract assets

The Group makes allowances on receivables and contract
assets based on assumptions about risk of default and
expected loss rates. The Group used judgment in making
these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the
impairment calculation, based on past collection history,
existing market conditions as well as forward looking

estimates at the end of each reporting period.

Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying amount
of trade and other receivables and contract assets, as well
as doubtful debt expenses in the periods in which such
estimate has been changed. For details of the key
assumptions and inputs used, see Note 3.1.2 above.

Current and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to corporate income taxes in the
PRC. Judgment is required in determining the amount of
the provision for taxation and the timing of payment of
the related taxations. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in
the period in which such determination is made.
Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are
management considers to be probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences or tax losses can be utilised. The outcome of

recognised when

their actual utilization may be different.

4

A SRUARE T T

BAREEHAE R A M
RUMBRRACA G B ME A
BEARSREBER B - ERETERE
B OAEENORH BB -

HERABSFERBEELERIAMAR
(BREAEEHERERMBEEBERRIS
TR AA RS ARREFOTER) AR
fitr e

(a) BEURBRENEER®B

RAEBERBRENRR KBHAEEEX
MBRRIEHERRERENEER
e REBERABNERBEKRE
EE S~ BITH ISR AR & B &R
AR M AFHER R SRR B EARR
B ENEHARE -

FRRHERAGTER  AHUEENY
BRI RENBHEE S REME
WA - AREENRRRRAXORE
B AHEI2EEEMAEARIENF
B B2MLEXME31.2-

(b) EMHARIESEFTSH
AEBERBMTECEMSH - BER
H B N R IA RS SRR AR
EOEHE - RABXRHAET 2R
5 Mat B EAREEERETIA - fi
FRFEZERARAZRBEERRY
B BB REREZRBEYEFELA
A E B 2 P IS SR R TR 4

EERBEERASELENYRAERERR
7ot TE S 18 K 88 /O R SR FE R B R B - 1
RERETEREZNPIEBEARTE
MIBEE - HERGRERTEEMT
G
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(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (& 574 #BASN -

4

Critical accounting estimates and judgments
(Continued)

(9]

Estimation of goodwill impairment

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the recoverable amount of cash-generated
units to which goodwill has been allocated, which is the
higher of the value in use or fair value less costs of
disposal. The calculation requires the Group to estimate
the future cash flows expected to arise from cash-
generated units and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value. Where the actual future cash
flows are less than expected, or change in facts and
circumstances which results in downward revision of
future cash, a material impairment loss/further
impairment loss may arise.

Central China New Life Limited ¥ ¥4 EFGR AT

4

A SRUARE T T

BEREF AT RHE @

(9]

AE R E LR

BESSFETRENAKEFHNE
LB B U L BR T (B R RE SR UK (O] B B
A REMETRENR EEERE
HEBELRER  SEAECOER
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(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (& BB HBASN - FrE @5 UAARE T TET)

Segment information

Management has determined the operating segments based on
the reports reviewed by the CODM. The CODM, who is
responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance
of the operating segment, has been identified as the executive
directors of the Company.

The CODM examines the Group's performance from service line
perspective and has identified three reportable segments of its
business:

o Property management and value-added services: this part
of business provides property management services of
residential properties and commercial properties, and
related value-added services, including consultancy
services to property developers, community value-added
services, intelligent community services, Central China
Consumer Club and real estate marketing services.

o Lifestyle services: this part of business primarily comprise
tourism services, sales of goods and provision of catering
services.

o Commercial property management and consultation

services: this part of business primarily comprise provision
of hotel management services and management for
agricultural and cultural tourism projects and commercial
real-estate operation.

The Group mainly operates its businesses in the PRC and earns
substantially all of the revenues from external customers
attributed to the PRC. As at 31 December 2020, substantially
all of the non-current assets of the Group were located in the
PRC. Therefore, no geographical segments are presented.

The CODM assesses the performance of the operating segments
mainly based on the measure of operating profit excluding
other income, other gains, finance cost and interest from loans
to other entities which are not directly related to the segment
performance (“segment results”).

7 #R &
EREERBIBEERTEBRNOBRER
EEENH  TBEERKERFATNH
TEE ARSRARRIBELEHBOE
if

IBRERREXRBEIEEEAEEN
RF - UEHE—FARATRENEBD B

. YEREE MIRERY - ZEFD BEM
EEMELEREENDEE IR RS A
FARRIIRERT - BREAMEREER
HEARTS - HRIBERE - BELR
W% ZEREMERFHEZHER

. HERT : ZEB O MEEREIRER
% HEEMmRIEHRERRY

. BEEEEENEARYE  ZEXB0E
TERERHBEEERBEIEERX
EIRERBEEERHEFSHWEES -

AEEFEEFRAREY  BEBAHS
MU\KQ FEINBEFE - HE20209F 12 A31

CREBRAEDIERBEEMAPEH -
&tjﬁﬂiﬁuiﬁ@’“ °

EERRETBZENKENE (TRBEL
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

PSRBT RE (AE)

Segment results also excludes discontinued operations
and the effects of significant items of expenditure which
may have an impact on the quality of earnings such as
central administration costs and listing expenses.

Interest income and finance cost are not allocated to
segments, as this type of activity is driven by the central
treasury function, which manages the cash position of the
Group.

The segment results and the reconciliation with profit
before income tax for the year ended 31 December
2020 are as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2020

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (f& A AN - FTE SR UAARE TTsT)

5 Segment information (Continued) 5 2HER®G
(a) Segment results () PHEE

DEEATTEREDRIEREEBRA
REHBINERELFENEAMXIAR
Flanp RITHREAR EHRAX) N

o

—

i

MEBARBERATDEEE D
AR REDHEEAEER B TH
R B S B BE BRFT HE B HETT ©

HE20206812A31BILEEN DA%
BERERFERAFEOERET

B ZE2020F 12531 H IFEE

Gross segment revenue P ON 2,198,540 366,382 89,577 2,654,499
Revenue A 2,198,540 366,382 89,577 2,654,499
Revenue from contracts with EFEAHMA

customers

— at a point in time — RE—ERZ 717,109 288,566 12,167 1,017,842

— over time — BEREER 1,481,431 77,816 77,410 1,636,657
Segment results DEEE 511,385 71,068 9,986 592,439
Other income LN 17,547
Other gains — net Hf i sE 6,546
Unallocated operating costs AP EEEHA (73,266)
Finance income — net BMERAFE 13,643
Profit before income tax from REFBEEEEBHRT

continuing operations FEH AN A 556,909
Income tax expenses FrEREAY (116,165)
Profit for the year FRFE 440,744
Depreciation e 17,389 2,074 1,652 21,115
Amortisation 3] 3,563 1,527 — 5,090
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(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (& 2A AN - FTE SR UAARE TTsT)

-

5 Segment information (Continued) 5 2HER®G
(a) Segment results (Continued) () DEEE®)
The segment results and the reconciliation with profit HZE2019F12A31BILFEH D HE
before income tax for the year ended 31 December B RERETPTSH AT A Ea EER T -

2019 are as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BLE2019F 12931 HI1FFZF

[—
|
|

Gross segment revenue HEBEA 1,341,092 308,575 104,735 1,754,402
|

Revenue WA 1,341,092 308,575 104,735 1,754,402
Revenue from contracts with EFEAEHMA

customers

— at a point in time — RE—FRE 453,143 159,988 47,074 660,205

— over time — BERES 887,949 148,587 57,661 1,094,197
Segment results DEEE 286,527 55,151 19,464 361,142
Other income HA 20,463
Other gains — net Hpiasse 4,09
Unallocated operating costs AAEBERA (61,874)
Finance cost — net RERTER (16,286)
Profit before income tax from REFECEEBHORT

continuing operations BRI AE 307,541
Income tax expenses FEREY (74,702)
Profit for the year FAFHE 232,839
Depreciation e 7,945 881 1,546 10,372
Amortisation B 2,185 1,495 = 3,680
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(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (f& A AN - FTE SR UAARE TTsT)
5 Segment information (Continued) 5 2HER®G
(b) Segment assets and liabilities (b) PBEERERE

Segment assets and liabilities are measured in the same
way as in the financial statements. These assets and
liabilities are allocated based on the operations of the
segment.

Investments in financial assets that are managed by the
treasury function are not considered to be segment
assets.
products and senior notes that are classified as at fair
value through profit or loss.

These are investments in wealth management

The following is the analysis of the Group’s segment
assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2020:

As at 31 December 2020

Segment asset AEEE 2,780,490
Unallocated cash and cash APERERASEED
equivalents
Deferred tax asset EREBEEE
Financial assets at fair value DA BEELAR
through profit or loss ém%ﬂ’ﬁé
Investments in an associate R—REERRMEE
Total assets BEBE
Segment liabilities AHaE (1,553,985)
Deferred tax liabilities EEHEEE
Current tax liabilities BB IE &
Total liabilities BEBE

239,728

(97,131)

NEHEENABRBRYBEREMRERT

NEt =2 o M—rﬁE&EﬁHz“ﬁ L
SHETT DR

UM BBESFIEENEREENR
ETREARNDBEE - BEMERRE
EEBENRERDBER/URAEEE
Wit AR e

AR RAEBR2020F12A31HE D
HEERBEBENDIT

R2020F 12831 H

74,287 (269,549) 2,824,956
946,263

10,749

467,041
970

4,249,979

(51,177) 269,549 (1,432,744)
(3.977)

(95,908)

(1,532,629)
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(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (f& 2A#BASN » FIB S RBUARK T TEH)

5 Segment information (Continued) 5 2HER®G
(b) Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) (b) PMBEEREEH)
The following is the analysis of the Group’s segment AT RAEEN2019F12A831HH S
assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2019: HEERBBENDNT
As at 31 December 2019 R20194F12H31H

Segment asset AEEE 1,294,565 166,692 86,119 (93,395 1,453,981
Deferred tax asset EEREEE 6,962
Financial assets at fair value NRnEBEELTAR

through profit or loss nlemEE 1,530
Investments in an associate R—FRE =D ENRE 971
Total assets BELE 1,463,444
Segment liabilities AR (955,570) (96,638) (68,601) 93,395  (1,027,414)
Deferred tax liabilities EEREEE (3,717)
Current tax liabilities AVERIE & & (50,664)
Total liabilities aEEE (1,081,795)
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(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (f& A AN - FTE SR UAARE TTsT)

5 Segment information (Continued) 5 2HER®G
(c) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts () EFEHNBANDE
with customers
The Group derives revenue from the transfer of goods REBEATEERBEPREREER
and services over time and at a point in time in the ERE-—SRREERRRBERHE
following major service lines: BHEA -

2020
20204
RMB’000
AR TR
Property management and related Y% & 1B K AR RS
services 1,097,399 728,014
Commission income el 347,583 195,925
Installation and decoration services 28 RS RS 347,308 144,190
Sales of goods EmiE 312,039 161,470
Consulting services BHER 284,564 212,736
Membership management income 2EEERA 94,378 47,170
Commercial property management and R ¥ & E &1 KA ARE A
consultation services income 84,930 103,980
Travel service income i 40 AR 7% WL A 54,810 138,789
Others HAfth 31,488 22,128
2,654,499 1,754,402
For the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, B 22020 N2019%F12A318 IEF
revenues from CCRE Group contributed 38% and 37% EREEEEEHRADBEAREER
of the Group’s revenue, respectively. Other than the IRAHI38% K 37% ° BRZEEBEIN - &K
CCRE Group, the Group has a large number of SEEHFAEHEMER  HP&ET
customers, none of whom contributed 10% or more of AR ERR A RSB IAR10% 3k
the Group’s revenue. LA E -
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5 Segment information (Continued) 5 S2FER @
(d) Assets and liabilities related to contracts with d HEFEVNEBNEERARE
customers
The Group has recognised the following assets and REBECHRTIRTFAEHNERNE
liabilities related to contracts with customers: EREE:

As at 31 December

HZ12A31H
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R AREETF T
Contract assets EHNEE
Current contract assets MENEHEE 3,817 3,084
Loss allowance E e R — —
Total contract assets BREERTE 3,817 3,084
Contract liabilities EHNEE
Non-current IEFRE
Property management services )% B I8 MR E R (50,437) (59,155)
Current mE
Property management and value-added — ¥)% & 1 2 3% (& AR 7%
services (420,645) (299,271)
Lifestyle services EERE (3,031) (10,998)
Commercial property management and B & E B2 KA ARE
consultation services (171) (583)
(423,847) (310,852)
Total contract liabilities EHEaEEE (474,284) (370,007)
(i) Significant changes in contract liabilities () BHBENEAXE
Contract liabilities of the Group mainly arise from AEBEEHNEEFERHREHR
the advance payments made by customers while HE A AR 755 B 55 P S AT B 2R R P B
the underlying services are yet to be provided. B o
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(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (f& A AN - FTE SR UAARE TTsT)

5 Segment information (Continued)
(d) Assets and liabilities related to contracts with
customers (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities
The following table shows how much of the
revenue recognised in the current reporting period
relates to carried-forward contract liabilities.

5 o2WER @
(d) HEFEHNERMEERERE(H)

(i)

HE#R B E R RA
TRINTRE RS AN R
WARBEEAOREMNHEBR
Jg o

2020
20204
RMB’000
ARBTR
Revenue recognised that was ST AFHAEHNEBEHRNERE
included in the balance of 2 ON
contract liabilities at the
beginning of the year
Property management and value- )% % E K B R
added services 299,271 161,659
Lifestyle services A5 BR 75 10,998 5,114
Commercial property MEEAEERERBARS
management and consultation
services 583 708
310,852 167,481
Unsatisfied performance obligations (i)  KIETTHIEAIZE

For property management services, membership
service provided to CCRE Group, and commercial
property management and consultation services, the
Group apitaliza revenue in the amount that equals
to the right to invoice which corresponds directly
with the value to the customer of the Group’s
performance to date, on a monthly basis or
settlement cycle. The Group has elected the
practical expedient for not to disclose the
remaining performance obligations for these types
of contracts.

The majority of the property management services
contracts do not have a fixed term. The
consultancy services are generally set to expire
when the counterparties notify the Group that the
services are no longer required.

Central China New Life Limited 224 FER QT
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(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (& BB HBASN - FrE @5 UAARE T TET)
5 Segment information (Continued) 5 SEER @
(d) Assets and liabilities related to contracts with d) HEEFEHNEBNEERERE®)
customers (Continued)
(i) Unsatisfied performance obligations (Continued) (i)  RETTHIEAE (&)
For other property management related FEAMYEETIREEIEERS &
value-added services and lifestyle services, they are EERBME - EDREEHRE
rendered in short period of time, which is generally #HOBELE—F  AEBEDE
less than a year, and the Group has elected the EERNET 2 UREBEAR
practical expedient for not to disclose the B FHRAS NN NRELNET -
remaining performance obligations for these type of
contracts.
6 Other income 6 HftWA
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HILEE
2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTR AREF T
Government grants (Note (a)) BT 76 B (PR 5% (a)) 10,338 672
Value-added tax deductible (Note (b)) AT A0S E R (P 5E (b)) 6,754 3,858
Interests income from loans to third parties ME=ZFRHEEROFEHA 455 2,769
Interests income from loans to entities MEFEREERBEERE
controlled by Mr. Hua Ziyi and Mr. Hua FTE I & R B R A
Zhichang (Note (c)) FEWA (BFEE)) — 13,164
17,547 20,463

Government grants mainly consisted of financial subsidies

granted by the local governments. There are no
unfulfilled conditions or other contingencies attached to
the government grant recognised during the year ended

31 December 2020.

Value-added tax deductible mainly included additional
deduction of input value-added tax applicable to certain
subsidiaries.

Mr. Hua Ziyi and Mr. Hua Zhichang are the former
controlling shareholders of Henan Central China New Life
Service Co., Ltd. (from 1 January 2017 to 19 December
2017).

(@ BB EZREMSEBNR TR
AL - B E2020F12A31B IEFE
O R R BT 4 B S 48 PR 75 T ) i R B
ITE R B A B TH ©

(b) FIHERHZERTIZEBERNE THES
REHEREERBIMNER

(0 BFELERBEERLEANEREET
EVEREER A B M RIEREER (2017
F1H1EE20175F12A4198) »
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PSRBT RE (AE)

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (f& 2A #BASN » B S ZBUARK T LA

7  Other gains — net 7 HitWmFERE

2020
20204
RMB’000
ARBTR
Net foreign exchange (losses)/gains HNEE (518),Was B 58 (206) 191
Net fair value gains on financial assets at fair A AR EEFFEFF AEZRED
value through profit or loss (Note 17) TRBEEND A BEKE
FER (MHEE17) 6,217 407
Losses on disposal of equipment HEREHNER (13) (65)
Remeasurement gains on investment in an R—REE AR ENEN
associate = as — 3,563
Others HAft 548 =
6,546 4,096
8 Finance income/(cost) — net 8 ®MBWA(HKAX)FEHE

2020
20204
RMB’000
ARBTR
Finance income RMEWA
Interests income from bank deposits RATHE S A 14,615 933
Finance cost 5§ %N
Interest expenses of borrowings & X — (16,992)
Interest expenses of lease liabilities HEBEMERAX (972) (227)
(972) (17,219)
Finance income/(cost) — net BEWA(RAR) FE 13,643 (16,286)
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A5 R P ot ()

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (& BB HBASN - FrE @5 UAARE T TET)
EHEE X

9 Expenses by nature 9

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31HILEE
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT R ARBTT
Employee benefit expenses (Note 10) BEERFIFRL (KI5E10) 737,698 546,042
Construction and installation costs BERTEKAR 253,508 97,721
Cost of goods sold HEK A 245,158 77,542
Greening and cleaning expenses FERBRRZ 236,071 140,197
Security charges ZIRE 230,668 129,883
Utilities NS 5= 87,327 67,070
Outsourcing tourism services costs B %% AR 75 S8 AK 2N 52,525 126,870
Maintenance costs RERKA 36,997 42,926
Traveling and entertainment expenses ERRBERE 27,758 21,021
Depreciation and amortisation charges MERBHE 26,205 14,052
Office expenses MARL 26,093 21,293
Promotion expenses HEEZR 24,828 6,925
Professional service fees E2XRBER 23,933 32,369
Listing expenses kX 17,257 26,299
Outsourcing labor costs BN B 17,244 51,743
Community activities costs fEEEE 15,425 11,025
Taxes and other levies I R E M E 10,768 7,759
Auditor’s remuneration 1% 2B 5 B
— Audit services — BZRS 3,700 —
— Non-audit services — FEERRBE 849 —
Others EH At 46,055 34,186
2,120,067 1,454,923
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BTSRRI RE (48)

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (f& A AN - FTE SR UAARE TTsT)

10 Employee benefit expenses

10 EERABEX

Wages, salaries and bonuses

TE&  #HsRAH

Social insurance expenses teREER
— Pension costs — defined contribution — BRRERA — AT

plans (Note (a))

— Others — HAh
Housing benefits EEREA

Share-based payment (Note 22)
Other employee benefits (Note (b))

ka8l (M e )

VAR A7 B BB ey 15 3R (P RE22)
Hit g B & (K aEb)

2020
20205
RMB’000
ARBT
655,446 444,950
5,076 33,326
17,686 22,240
22,498 15,358
6,447 9,382
30,545 20,786
737,698 546,042

(b)

Employees in the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are required
to participate in a defined contribution retirement scheme
administrated and operated by the local municipal
government. The Group’s PRC subsidiaries contribute
funds which are calculated on certain percentage of the
employee salary to the scheme to fund the retirement
benefits of the employees.

The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
retirement benefits scheme is to make the specified
contributions.

Following the outbreak of COVID-19, a number of
policies including the relief of social insurance have been
promulgated by the government since February 2020 to
expedite resumption of economic activities, which
contributed to the relief of certain cost of defined
contribution scheme during the year ended 31 December
2020.

Other employee benefits mainly include team building
expenses, meal and traveling allowances.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

PSRBT RE (AE)

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (f& 2A#BASN » FIB S RBUARK T TEH)

10 Employee benefit expenses (Continued)
(c) Five highest paid individuals
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group included two (2019: one) directors for the
year ended 31 December 2020. The emoluments payable
to the remaining three (2019: four) individuals are as
follows:

10 EERABEXZ @

(@]

hEaE=aHHMAL
FHE2020F12A31HILFE - AEH
FEABREFMATEIE2E (20194 1
F)EE o BN E 3520194 : 45)
ATHFHEIT

e
ARl

Salaries

Bonuses

Pension costs, housing funds, medical
insurance and other social insurances

Share-based payment

BRURESER  EEAES
BERREEMESRE
VAR D A5 BE RO 15 3K

2020
20205
RMB’000
ARBT
4,769 4,102
3,000 4,110
173 255
1,889 2,283
9,831 10,750

The number of non-director emoluments fell within the
following bands:

FEEHFMRERABMT

2020

2020
RMB’000
AR TR

Emolument bands (in HK$) FrEE A (B oT)
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7T & 3,000,000/ 7T 1 2
HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7T £ 3,500,000/ 7T 2 2
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PSRBT RE (AE)

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (f& A AN - FTE SR UAARE TTsT)

11

12

Investment in an associate

Opening carrying amount FHREE
Capital injection B
Share of loss e 18

Deemed disposal of an associate

FARIEHE

Closing carrying amount

11

BIELE—RBE AR

R—FRBEQXFANRE

2020
20205
RMB’000
ARBT

971 2,437

- 1,000

(1 (29)

— (2,437)

970 971

Income tax expenses

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability and accordingly, is
exempted from Cayman Islands income tax. The Company’s
direct subsidiary in the BVI was incorporated under the
Business Companies Act of the BVI and,
accordingly, is exempted from British Virgin Islands income tax.

International

Hong Kong profits tax rate is 16.5%. No provision for Hong
Kong profits tax was provided as the Group did not have
assessable profit in Hong Kong for the year ended 31
December 2020 (2019: same).

Income tax provision of the Group in respect of operations in
Mainland China has been calculated at the applicable tax rate
on the estimated assessable profits for the year, based on the
existing legislation, interpretations and practices in respect
thereof.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

A5 R P ot ()

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (& BB HBASN - FrE @5 UAARE T TET)
12 Income tax expenses (Continued) 12 FBBEX W

The general corporate income tax rate in the PRC is 25%
according to Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC (the “CIT
Law”) effective on 1 January 2008. Henan Aiou Electronic
Technology Co., Ltd. was qualified as “High and New
Technology Enterprises” (“HNTE”) in 2018. Jiyuan City
Zhongbang Environmental Sanitation Co., Ltd. (“Jiyuan
Zhongbang”) was qualified as HNTE in 2019. Henan One Family
Network Technology Co., Ltd. And Song Yun (Beijing)
Information Service Co., Ltd. were qualified as HNTE in 2020.
Accordingly, these four subsidiaries of the Group are entitled to
a preferential income tax rate of 15% for a three-year period.
Certain of the Group’s subsidiaries enjoy the preferential
income tax treatment for Small and Micro Enterprise with the
income tax rate of 20% and are eligible to have their tax
calculated based on 25% or 50% of their taxable income.

RIER2018F 1A 1B AR (R ERBH
KDY REIE— R EMEHREBEEB25% A
MY EE TR ERARNR2018FEE &5
Rt ER% - BERMAERRERZERA
AIR2019F B R BEIMEIEE - W
—REPBERFARAAREE (At R) = 85k
BHR AR R2020F EE [ =3 i1 %]
B Bt AEEZUMMBARBRES
3FHI5%MERMEHBE - NEBETH
BRARZEA/NEYMACEMSHRERLFS -
FTBREAR20%  TEEREEBERBBEA
H125% 5 50% T B HFiE »

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A31BILEE
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARET T
Current income tax BNERFT 15 %X 120,729 69,086
Deferred income tax (Note 25) EIEFTIS B (FI5E25) (4,564) 5,616
116,165 74,702
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BTSRRI RE (48)

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (f& A AN - FTE SR UAARE TTsT)

12 BB @
AEERNAE B ERRAEANEEE
EREMMET SR R BRHEER

12 Income tax expenses (Continued)
The tax on the Group’s profit before tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average

tax rate applicable to profits of the group entities as follows: R

Profit from continuing operations before

REFBEEEBZRFHE

2020

20204
RMB’000
AR T

income tax AR IDE 556,909 307,541
Tax calculated at applicable income tax rate BB TSR KT E TR 143,209 77,214
Tax effects of: UT&BEBHRESE
— Preferential income tax rates applicable to  — ERARETH B R GNEE

certain subsidiaries BEEH X (20,001) (4,313)
— Additional tax deductions for research and ~ — #F 2% A 2K KO BE SN TR 2
development costs (5,786) —
— Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax — — BFERI AR TIEE R
losses (2,676) (1,766)
— Change of tax rate — BEEH (3,932) —
— Expenses not deductible for tax purposes — — “NAIHIFFH X 1,594 890
— Share-based compensation — RiDEME 1,478 2,346
— Tax losses and deductible temporary — RERELEMSHEERN
differences for which no deferred IR R AT R
income tax asset was recognised bt = 2,279 838
— Others — Hftb — (507)
Income tax expenses for continuing RELEEBOMEHAX
operations 116,165 74,702

HE2020FEM2019F12A31BIEFE - BR
FiSTIE DR B21% Kk24% °

The effective income tax rate was 21% and 24% for the years
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, respectively.
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A5 R P ot ()

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (f& 3 H =5 AN -

13

Earnings per share 13
The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the
purpose of basic and diluted earnings per share for the year
ended 31 December 2019 has been retroactively adjusted for

the effects of the issue of shares in connection with the
capitalisation (Note 20 (b)).

(a) Basic earnings per share
The basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
profit attributable to shareholders of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

A SRUARE T T

BREF

SEEHE2019F12 A3 B ILFENERER
MEERFIRMERMLBRMEFLIHD
FLE b (FE20(b)) B1TRR D MR EHETTIE
T -

(a) BREZXEF
FRERBRNIZ AR B IRIR B FER
NEANDETEBBRINETFHEEE -

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A31BLEE
2020 2019
2020F 20194
Profit attributable to shareholders of AATREEEFE (AR
the Company (RMB’000) Ft)
— From continuing operations — REFEEEEY 426,587 232,132
— From discontinued operation — REERIEEEER — 1,822
426,587 233,954
Weighted average number of ordinary 377 & A% &) IN4E F 15 &
shares in issue (in thousands) (FR%) 1,114,716 898,662
Basic earnings per share attributable to AR B f% 5 FE 5 T AR
shareholders of the Company during B (LAEBRARETES])
the year (expressed in RMB per
share)
— From continuing operations — RERBELEXED 0.38 0.26
— From discontinued operation — REEBRIELCEES — 0.00
0.38 0.26
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BTSRRI RE (48)

(b) Diluted earnings per share (b)
Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
to assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares arising from share options granted by the
Company.

Profit attributable to owners of the ARRREEEFE (AR

Company (RMB’000) )
— From continuing operations — RERBEEEEY
— From discontinued operation — REERIEEEHES

Weighted average number of ordinary & %77 % 38 B EY A4 15 81

shares in issue (in thousands) (FAR)
Adjustments for share options PIBREETHE

shares for the calculation of diluted InEEFH & (FAR)
earnings per share (in thousands)

Diluted earnings per share attributable — FPIZA A &) % 3R B &%

to shareholders of the Company BERAT (AR ARE T
during the year (expressed in RMB 271)
per share)

— From continuing operations — RERBELEEY

— From discontinued operation — REEBRIEEEER

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (f& A AN - FTE SR UAARE TTsT)

13 Earnings per share (Continued) 13 BRER

BREFERF
BREERNDRREBRARFRE
BREELNMBABEE NN ERR
& - FECDHITE B INEFH G
HEBH-

2020
20205

Weighted average number of ordinary 5+ & &I #E 2 F K TR H

426,587 232,132
— 1,822
426,587 233,954
1,114,716 898,662
41,850 —
1,156,566 898,662
0.37 0.26

— 0.00

0.37 0.26
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(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (& BB HBASN - FrE @5 UAARE T TET)

14 Property, plant and equipment 14 YE-BERKE

Equipment Right-of-use
and furniture Machinery Vehicles asset Total
RERERM e BH RAREE A&t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARET R ARBTTT AR¥T R ARET R
Year ended 31 December 2019 HZ2019%12A318
t5E
Opening net book amount FOREFE 16,325 893 770 3,113 21,101
Additions NE 8,707 4,180 1,259 3,470 17,616
Acquisition of subsidiaries 1= NG| 831 552 807 = 2,190
Disposals RE (25) (47) = — (72)
Disposals of subsidiaries HERB AR (10,954) = = — (10,954)
Depreciation charge NEER (7,238) 611) (819) (3,131) (11,799)
Closing net book amount FREHFE 7,646 4,967 2,017 3,452 18,082
As of 31 December 2019 B Z2019F12A31H
Cost AR 22,646 6,804 3,947 8,818 42,215
Accumulated depreciation BiHiTE (15,000) (1,837) (1,930) (5,366) (24,133)
Net book amount REEE 7,646 4,967 2,017 3,452 18,082
Year ended 31 December 2020 HZ2020512A31H
LEE
Opening net book amount ENREFE 7,646 4,967 2,017 3,452 18,082
Additions ANE 13,175 3,451 4,046 35,021 55,693
Acquisition of a subsidiary ¢ aalis [{)=PNG
(Note 28) (K#7x28) 2,002 1,630 983 — 4,615
Disposals RE (30) - — - (30)
Depreciation charge NEER (8,167) (1,454) (1,056) (10,438) (21,115)
Currency translation difference ERER — — — (932) (932)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 14,626 8,594 5,990 27,103 56,313
As at 31 December 2020 HZ2020512A31H
Cost A 37,793 11,885 8,976 43,839 102,493
Accumulated depreciation ZiiE (23,167) (3,291) (2,986) (16,736) (46,180)
Net book amount REFE 14,626 8,594 5,990 27,103 56,313
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(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (f& 2A #BASN » B S ZBUARK T LA

14 Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 14 PE- -BEERRE®
Depreciation expenses were charged to the following categories WERIZFAGEEERERIATER -

in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income:

2020
20204
RMB’000
ARBTR
Administrative expenses THHAX 12,746 4,827
Cost of sales SHE KA 8,329 5,545
Selling and marketing expenses $HE R B R X 40 —
Discontinued operation BRI TS — 1,427
21,115 11,799
No property, plant and equipment was restricted or pledged as HZE2020F12A310  WEYWE BE K&
security for borrowings as at 31 December 2020 (31 December HR IR G EREFERM T (20194
2019: same). 12A318 : ER) -
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(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (& BB HBASN - FrE @5 UAARE T TET)

15 Intangible assets 15 BILEE
Order-Backlog
Platform and and customer Software and
Goodwill Know-How relationship others Total
TaE BEITEHR
kS B R R EFBA  HH4RHEM &t
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR AR%Tn AR®Tn AR%Tn AR®Tx
Year ended 31 December 2019 HZ2019%12A831H
LEE
Opening net book amount FNERFE = = = 8,333 8,333
Additions NE = = = 568 568
Acquisition of subsidiaries W B B B A A 42,319 19,549 13,394 = 75,262
Disposals of subsidiaries HEMBAR = = = (7,294) (7,294)
Amortisation B = (1,623) (1,499) (797) (3,919)
Closing net book amount FEREEFE 42,319 17,926 11,895 810 72,950
As at 31 December 2019 HZ2019%12831H
Cost KA 42,319 19,549 13,394 3,839 79,101
Accumulated amortisation ESg 3 — (1,623) (1,499) (3,029) (6,151)
Net book amount SREFE 42,319 17,926 11,895 810 72,950
Year ended 31 December 2020 EZ2020612831A
LEE
Opening net book amount ENREFE 42,319 17,926 11,895 810 72,950
Additions NE — — — 663 663
Acquisition of a subsidiary U — R B A R
(Note 28) (Kt7E28) 12,361 — 6,822 — 19,183
Amortisation 3 — (2,286) (2,071) (733) (5,090)
Closing net book amount FEREHFE 54,680 15,640 16,646 740 87,706
As at 31 December 2020 BZ2020612A831H
Cost %N 54,680 19,549 20,216 4,502 98,947
Accumulated amortisation Bit# — (3,909) (3,570) (3,762) (11,241)
Net book amount REFEE 54,680 15,640 16,646 740 87,706
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(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (f& A AN - FTE SR UAARE TTsT)

15 Intangible assets (Continued) 15
Amortisation of intangible assets has been charged to the

consolidated statement of comprehensive income as below:

BEEE®
BHAEBBO T AGARERSE 0T
B R -

Administrative expenses THRAX
Cost of sales SHEKAR
Discontinued operation B E R T

2020
20204
RMB’000
AR®T T
2,910 2,210
2,180 1,470
— 239
5,090 3,919

(@) No intangible asset was restricted or pledged as security
for borrowings as at 31 December 2020 (31 December
2019: same).

(b)  The excess of the consideration transferred over the fair
value of the identifiable net assets of acquired
subsidiaries is recorded as goodwill. Goodwill was
comprised of the followings:

(@) F2020F12A31H - TEERLEES
B BR ) sk 1 A 1 SR IK R i F 3952 (2019
£12A318 : #A) -

(o) CEERKEBBMKENBIRNAH

MEEFENAABENSBEARIES
B HEREATEE:

2020

2020
RMB’000
AR TR

Acquisition of subsidiary A I BB BT B A AlA

25,640 25,640

Acquisition of subsidiary B (Note 28) U BE BT B A A1B (M 7E28) 12,361 —

Others HA

16,679 16,679

54,680 42,319

Impairment test for goodwill

Goodwill arises from the Group’s acquisition of subsidiaries
and was determined at the acquisition date respectively, being
the difference between the purchase consideration and the fair
value of net identifiable assets of acquirees. Goodwill has been
assessed based on the related acquiree’s cash-generated units
for impairment testing.
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(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (& BB HBASN - FrE @5 UAARE T TET)

15 Intangible assets (Continued) 15 BEEE®)
Impairment test for goodwill (Continued) EmERENR(E)
The recoverable amount of the cash-generated units are ReEEABUMARESBEHERNFERER
determined based on value-in-use calculations. These calculation FTEETE ZBAERARBEREMEZ
use pre-tax cash flow projections based on financial budgets hEHEVBBEmMEL 2T ARESR
approved by management covering a five-year period. E-ERERBRKESTNEBAERBE N
Management determined a projection period of five years based ITELR - BT T AEMIEAE - B F 5
on expected development trend of the acquiree and industry MRS R HRE T XAl MG Rmig R
experiences. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are RHETHE ZEWRETHBARSELEEN
extrapolated using the estimated terminal growth rates stated PSS RTENRBTHEBEEX - e
below. The growth rate does not exceed the long-term average ARARIRERRATR - R T EHBETES
growth rate for the related industry in which the cash- A ERRE

generated units operates. The discount rate used is pre-tax and
reflects specific risks relating to the relevant industry.

The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations as at 2020512 A318 - EAEBEEAEMEAD
31 December 2020 are as follows: FAREZRNT :
Acquisition
KE=EE
A B Others
A B Hity
Expected growth rate of revenue W N B T HR 3 R 5.0%-31.8% 10%-29.8% 2.5%-31.3%
Terminal growth rate after 5 years TEEMNRRERE 3.0% 3.0% 3.0%
Pre-tax discount rate IR R 23.9% 213% 20.0%-21.8%
The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations as at 31 20195124310 - FRBEAEMEAY
December 2019 are as follows: s R
Acquisition
WiEEE
A Others
A Ht
Expected growth rate of revenue U A H 78 B 38 = = 6.2%-30.0% 1.3%-31.3%
Terminal growth rate after 5 years FF &R R omiG R R 3.0% 3.0%
Pre-tax discount rate FiATAL IR & 23.7%  20.8%-21.9%
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15 Intangible assets (Continued) 15
Impairment test for goodwill (Continued)
According to the result of the impairment testing, the
estimated recoverable amounts of cash-generated units exceed
their carrying amount (i.e. the headroom) as below:

BELEE®

EERENR (&)

BEREARNER BoELBRMGLT
AU E 4 B B (BN Rt T

Y =IEA
Y iE =8B

Acquisition A
Acquisition B

2020

20205

RMB’000

ARBT
64,098 43,118
4,535  Not applicable
A

Management performed sensitivity analysis based on the
assumptions that expected growth rate of revenue or pre-tax
discount rate would be changed by taking into accounts the
volatility of the business and industry in which the acquirees
are engaged. Had the following estimated key assumption for
the forecast period been changed as below, the headroom
would decrease to the amounts:

= B O A A E R RT R R D)
i IR R AR R M\ PO T BB SR
BRABREE TS DN BRI TR
ST - it 3 X BB R MR U T
28 ABESALEATLE

2020
20204
RMB’000
AR TR
Acquisition A WiEEEA
— Expected growth rate of revenue decrease ~— W AFEHAE K X FH 1 15%
by 15% 20,003 16,776
— Pre-tax discount rate increase by 1% — RETFTS 5 Al AL 3R 2 18 N
1% 51,470 37,078
Acquisition B W iE =158
— Expected growth rate of revenue decrease ~— W ATFEHAE K XFH 1% Not applicable
by 1% 3,216 i
— Pre-tax discount rate increase by 1% — RETFT1S AT AL IR = 0 Not applicable
1% 1,971 TEA

Based on the above assessment and the historical result, our
Directors have not identified any reasonably possible change in
the key assumptions on which the recoverable amount is based
that would cause the carrying amounts of the cash-generated
units to exceed their respective recoverable amounts as at 31
December 2020 (31 December 2019: same).

Central China New Life Limited ¥4 FEBR QT
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

PSRBT RE (AE)

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (f& 2A#BASN » FIB S RBUARK T TEH)

16 Financial instruments by category 16 ZREHEINEMIA

2020
20204
RMB’000
AR®Tx
Financial assets at fair value through DAREBEFELGTABZN
profit or loss SREE 467,041 1,530
Financial assets at amortised cost BRBERANTENSREE
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 19) HeRIB2EEY (M:E19) 2,217,784 584,795
Trade and other receivables (excluding B 5 R HEAERGRIE (TR
prepayments) (Note 18) TEfRTRRIE) (MH3E18) 1,238,348 749,204
Restricted cash PR #I3E & 1,035 312

b

3,457,167 1,334,311

2020

20204
RMB’000
AR¥T T

Financial liabilities at amortised cost REBHEASTENERES
Trade and other payables (excluding accrued B 5 Kk H fth B4 2B (T8
payroll and other taxes payables) (Note 24) FE 5T 3 & B H A FE A0 B 300

(Mf5E24) 653,890 474,859
Lease liabilities (Note 23) HEaE(HE23) 21,209 3,142
675,099 478,001
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PSRBT RE (AE)

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (f& 2A #BASN » B S ZBUARK T LA

17 Financial assets at fair value through profit 17 LUIAREEHEIFABZNEEH
or loss BE

2020

20205

RMB’000

ARETx

Financial assets at fair value through DAREEFELGTABZN
profit or loss tREE
— Wealth management products — B EMR 383,785 1,530
— Senior note — BEAER 83,256 —
467,041 1,530
(@)  Amounts recognised in profit or loss: (a) MNIERWERNEHE:
During the year, the following gains were recognised in FA - UATHRER B ER

profit or loss:

2020

20204

RMB’000

AR¥T T
Fair value gains on debt instruments at REA W F R R R
fair value through profit or loss BE =T ABRE

recognised in other gains-net (Note 7) BLEMAREBEKS
(K&E7) 6,217 407
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

A5 R P ot ()

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (& BB HBASN - FrE @5 UAARE T TET)

18 Trade and other receivables and prepayments 18 ¥ 5 & H b U E & F& {4 K18

As at 31 December

M12H31H
2020 2019
20204 20195
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBT T
Trade receivables (Note (a)) 2 5 e E (fiaE(a))
— Related parties (Note 29(d)) — BAEE 75 (MF5E29(d)) 859,368 491,741
— Third parties — %=5 341,538 186,434
1,200,906 678,175
Note receivables FEW 5 4,500 —
Less: allowance for impairment of trade W B 5 W R IE R BB
receivables (28,775) (13,328)
1,176,631 664,847
Other receivables H h & R IE
— Amounts due from related parties — FEULRARE 75 7R
(Note 29) (P¥7E29) 40,190 40,807
— Receivables from the disposal group — Y S S EHKIE — 29,352
— Utilities — RAEEE 6,932 2,964
— Deposits — F& 8,355 4,319
— Others — HA 7,196 8,060
62,673 85,502
Less: allowance for impairment of other R+ L A S R TR R (B B
receivables (956) (1,145)
61,717 84,357
Prepayments TE T 5RIE
— Security charges and cleaning expenses — ZRERERAX 63,794 —
— Acquisition of equity interests — WEERR AN R = 62,000 —
— Listing expenses — WX — 10,767
— Others — Hfth 31,526 9,608
157,320 20,375
Total At 1,395,668 769,579
Less: non-current portion of prepayments B TR RIERIERE L H (67,127) (2,292)
Current portion of trade and other B 5 & H A FE WGRIE R FA AT
receivables and prepayments BRI BN E 1,328,541 767,287
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PSRBT RE (AE)

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (f& A AN - FTE SR UAARE TTsT)

18 Trade and other receivables and prepayments 18 ¥ 5 &kEthfEUTRE R FEFIE (@)

(Continued)

(@)  Trade receivables mainly arise from property management (@) EBIZEKFEFZREVESERBER
services and related value-added services. MRS ERT -
Property management services income are received in V5B IR RIS W AR IR AR BB AR 75 1 5 19
accordance with the terms of the relevant services TERFRUTER © (P 72 32 AP 2% I A Rl 0
agreements. Service income from property management ERTNIBMOWEEZRBEKA

service is due for payment by the residents upon the
issuance of demand note.

The related value-added services to property developers MY EREERENAREERBOE
are usually due for payment upon the issuance of AEFERMBLAE CHRIAE
document of settlement. o
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the aging analysis of the 2020 K% 20194128318 ERE S EYK
trade receivables based on recognition date of trade receivables FIBTER B BRI E 5 FE W R IE /Y BR e 9 AT 10
were as follows: 3

2020
20205
RMB’'000
AR®T T
0-180 days 0£180H 856,153 473,562
181-365 days 1812365H 200,751 162,567
1 to 2 years 1Z=2% 111,347 17,687
2 to 3 years 2E3F 17,325 14,126
3 to 4 years 3F4F 10,009 6,545
Over 4 years 4F P F 5,321 3,688
1,200,906 678,175
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, trade and other receivables R_B-_ZEFR-_F-NF+=-A=+—8"
are denominated in following currencies: B 5 REMEWFHIB T EEE -
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PSRBT RE (AE)

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (& 2A AN - FTE SR UAARE TTsT)

18 Trade and other receivables and prepayments 18 5 & H{thFEUWFRIE & B 7K\ (4) ‘L

(Continued)

2020
20204
RMB’000
AR TR
Denominated in RMB AAREEE
Trade and notes receivables E S REKFIE R EKREE 1,205,406 678,175
Other receivables W SR IR 61,191 85,493
1,266,597 763,668
Denominated in HK$ LAY TTEHE
Other receivables B e W kI8 1,482 9
As at 31 December 2020, the fair values of trade and other 2020512 A318 + &5 Rk H b FEUGRIER
receivables approximated their carrying amounts. AR EEREEREERS -
Information about the impairment of trade and other EHE S K H MG IR R B & A B
receivables and the Group’s exposure to credit risk was EERBAERPME325E -
disclosed in Note 3.1.2.
19 Cash and cash equivalents 19 RERASEEY

2020
20205
RMB’000
ARBT R
Denominated in RMB AAREE
Cash at bank RITRE 1,271,487 577,533
Cash on hand FHRE 34 68
1,271,521 577,601
Denominated in HK$ LA TEtE
Cash at bank RITRE 946,263 7,194
2,217,784 584,795
Cash and short-term deposits held in Mainland China are RPBEARFEENIRES RERFERZE
subject to local exchange control regulations. These regulations T B SO FTHR B o 3% 5 601 4 & 2R E A
provide for restrictions on exporting capital from Mainland Bl A (1F 8k S BRI VEHBR &

China, other than through normal dividends.

Annual Report 2020 4F & ¥ & 185



B | ) B

186

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BTSRRI RE (48)

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (f& A AN - FTE SR UAARE TTsT)

20 Share capital

Authorised

As at 1 January 2019

Increase of authorised shares
(Note (a))

As at 31 December 2019

As at 1 January 2020
Increase of authorised shares
(Note (b))

As at 31 December 2020

Issued

As at 1 January 2019

Issue of new ordinary shares to
new investor (Note (a))

As at 31 December 2019

As at 1 January 2020

Issue of shares in connection with
the capitalisation issue
(Note (b))

Issue of shares in connection with
the Company’s listing (Note (c))

Share option scheme-issued shares
(Note (d))

As at 31 December 2020

EE
R2019F 1418
5 EBR 0 1 00 (P 3E(a))

R2019%12HA31H

72020173 1H
VA TE B A7) 38 In (&£ (b))

R2020%12A31H

oEIT

H2019%F1 818

M A & 1T
B Ak (P EE(a))

72019412 A31H

202051 818
HEARNLEEITH AN
A% 17 817 (B 5E(b))

HARNR ETEEN
B2 317 (B ()
B E — B#T

et (B E(d))

72020412 H31H

20 B

38,000,000 380 335
339,000 3 3
38,339,000 383 338
38,339,000 383 338
4,961,661,000 49,617 42,457
5,000,000,000 50,000 42,795
38,000,000 — —
339,000 3 3
38,339,000 3 3
38,339,000 3 3
861,661,000 8,617 7,885
345,000,000 3,450 3,159
1,215,000 12 10
1,246,215,000 12,082 11,057
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A5 R P ot ()

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (f& 3 H =5 AN -

20 Share capital (Continued)

(a)

The Company was incorporated on 16 October 2018 with
an authorised share capital of HK$380,000 divided into
38,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each. On the
same date, 38,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
were issued, totalling HK$380,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB335,000), to Enjoy Start Limited, which
had not been paid yet.

On 15 March 2019, the Company issued 339,000 shares
with a cash consideration of HK$11,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB9,435,000) to OP Financial Limited
and the authorised number of ordinary shares of the
Company was increased to 38,339,000 with a par value
of HK$0.01 each.

On 29 April 2020, the authorised share capital of the
Company increased to 5,000,000,000 shares with par
value of HK$0.01 each.

Pursuant to the shareholder’'s written resolution on 29
April 2020, conditional upon the share premium account
of the Company being credited as a result of the Global
Offering, the Company capitalised an amount of
HK$8,617,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB7,885,000) standing as credit of its share premium
account in paying up in full of 861,661,000 shares at par
which were allotted and issued to shareholders of the
Company at close of business on 14 May 2020 in
proportion to their respective shareholdings.

On 15 May 2020, the Company issued a total of
300,000,000 ordinary shares at a price of HK$6.85 per
share. On 1 June 2020, the Company issued a total of
45,000,000 ordinary shares at a price of HK$6.85 by
exercising the over-allotment option in full. The net
proceeds of HK$2,280,826,000 (equivalent to
RMB2,088,694,000) were credited to share capital and
premium after deduction of the capitalised listing
expenses.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, 1,215,000
pre-IPO share options were exercised at a price of
HK$0.62 with received proceeds of HK$753,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB634,000). The related
price at the time of exercise was HK$6.74 per share.

20

A SRUARE T T

€N

(a)

NAFR2018%10 16 B sE Ak 37
% B 7R A£380,00008 7T - DK E K
0.017 JC #938,000,000 % & 3@ % [
B AXARMEIMEERAREITER
0.017 70 #938,000,000 % & i@ A% - &5t
380,0007% 7T (#HE M 49 A R #335,000
JL) R E AR AT o

M2019F3 815H » & A & K
11,000,000 T (HERHNARE
9,435,0007T) KRS HWERRASFE
R A A 3£ 17339,0000% A% 1 + A AR
7)Y i IR A TE Bl E 18 £38,339,000
i% - SR EE0.018 T »

R2020F4 A298 » NARIKETERKRA
# Z5,000,000,000 % A% 17 - & A% &
0.01787T °

RIERRE R 20205F4 A29 R BBHNER
RERE - FARRBRMDEERAZRE
EARE - AARIEET ARG HEER
R £%68,617,000/87C HEERHARE
7,885,0007T ) #1T & AN {t + 7202045
B14BE¥ERHERFIZARARBRES
B #9435 B b (91 32 T 1 10 10 S5 i B R BT
861,661,000R% B & f& 17 °

202058158 » N A E] A EFH%6.85
7 T 817 A $£300,000,000 0% X i A% -
M2020F6 A1H ARG BBEHT
BB M - A S R%6.8578 LB 1T
45,000,000/ @Ak - IR E AL LT
A X % 1% BT 18 3 1B F B
2,280,826,000 T (MHE R AR
2,088,694,0007T) it ABEAS K m (B ©

HZEZ2020F12A318EFE -
1,215,0005 17 & 720.62/ 8 TTHY & IR
AREERERERETE WS
FXIE753,0008 7 (FHEROARE
634,0007T) ° TR RIMERAER ATR
6.747% T °
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PSRBT RE (AE)

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (f& A AN - FTE SR UAARE TTsT)

21 Other reserves 21 HifREE

Balance at 1 January 2019 H20191 818 fAe 82,840 = = = = 82,840
Issue of new ordinary shares to new R A& BTHEBIR

investor (Note 20(a)) (H#E20()) = 9,432 = = — 9,432
Share option scheme-value of ERRIE 8 — EEMRY

employee services (Note 22) {BfE (F3522) = = 9,382 = = 9,382
Appropriation of statutory reserves AT B A E (i ()

(Note (a)) — — — 21,643 — 21,643
Balance at 31 December 2019 R2019512 831 B RS 82,840 9,432 9,382 21,643 - 123,297
Balance at 1 January 2020 202051818 HLE 82,840 9,432 9,382 21,603 . 123,207
Issue of shares in connection with the EEA{E{THBMNRH

capitalisation issue (Note 20(b) 347 (R20(0) — (7,885) — — — (7,885)
Issue of shares in connection with the EARF EHBEMARA

Company's listing (Note 20(c)) 247 (fit320(0) — 2,085,535 - — — 2,085,535
Share option scheme-value of ERESE — EERE

employee services (Note 22) {B1E (Ff3t22) - - 6,447 — - 6,447
Share option scheme-issued shares  BERRIERTE] — B&1TkMH

(Note 20(d) (Frit20() - 1,165 (541) - - 624
Curreny translation differences EBEHER — — — — (125,188) (125,188)
Acquisition of equity interest from B FERIRER U e

non-controlling interests (1,817) — - — — (1,817)
Dividend distribution to shareholders AR 7&K & (Hizk26)

(Note 26) - (73,455) - - - (73,455)
Appropriation of statutory reserves AT B A E (i ()

(Note () - — - 43,824 — 43,824
Balance at 31 December 2020 #2020 12831 B &84 81,023 2,014,792 15,288 65,467 (125,188) 2,051,382
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A5 R P ot ()

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (& BB HBASN - FrE @5 UAARE T TET)
21 Other reserves (Continued) 21 Hitf#EE @
(a) PRC statutory reserves () HBEEERE

In accordance with relevant rules and regulations in the RHEPEAERR B RIRG - BRI &
PRC, except for sino-foreign equity joint venture EIN FERBEARARHIZBHEH
enterprises, all PRC companies are required to transfer R RBOIFHEMEHREFRD
10% of their profit after taxation calculated under PRC 10%MRERZLEHEBES  BEEE
accounting rules and regulations to the statutory reserve MR AEEDNETMERES0% °
fund, until the accumulated total of the fund reaches EEREERER RNESHBEERE
50% of their registered capital. The statutory reserve fund BREREBAFERHESENEHAA
can only be used, upon approval by the relevant AIHE A o
authority, to offset losses carried forward from previous
years or to increase capital of the respective companies.

22 Share-based payments 22 DURGB/ERENTR

The Company approved and adopted the option scheme on
3 January 2019. Share options under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme (the “Option”) are granted to eligible participants (the
“Eligibles”) including directors and certain key employees.
Options are conditional on the Eligibles have served the Group
for certain period (the vesting period). Share Options are
granted for no consideration and carry no dividend or voting
right. When exercised, each Option is convertible into one
ordinary share. The Group has no legal or constructive
obligation to repurchase or settle the Option in cash.

Share options granted to employees under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

On 3 January 2019 and 10 January 2019, 31,680,000 and
13,320,000 Options were granted to the Eligibles with the
same exercise price of HK$0.62 per share.

For vesting schedule of the share options granted to directors
and certain key employees, the share options will be vested
within 24 months immediately following the listing date.

AR RIE 20194 1 A 3 Bt/ B 4 B8 A% 42
Bl A AAEEAERERTS THER
E(EREDEETEEESIETEZRE
BEANEGER2HEE([AERAL] - B
BREZTFHEGRAEBATEAALEER
BEIN—TFEMNEHR(EEH)  BREMNET
TUWEREE - TR B sk R R - 1T1(E
% B—HERETEREREER - ANE
3 4 AR & BR[O ok 4 B B IR 0 SR TE Bl I
ERE-

BALAHBRENBRESESI TORERER
TR RS IR R

2720191 A3H K&2019F1810HMAAE
AT F 4931,680,00015 K 13,320,00015
BE - SR{TTEESARARKG2TT -

RETEEREEEERANBRERBH

glimE  BRESNERE LB HE024(E
ARNERE -
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BTSRRI RE (48)

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (f& A AN - FTE SR UAARE TTsT)

22 Share-based payments (Continued) 22 DURGOBERNSTR @
Share options granted to employees under the BERETORERTHBRE®)
Option (Continued)
Movement in the number of share options granted to W{EEE LA ERES B K H G MEFH
employees and their related weighted average exercise prices TEENESHET

are as follows:

2020
20204

At the beginning of the year REF A HK$0.627% 7T 45,000,000 —
Granted BERT HK$0.627% 7T — 45,000,000
Exercised BE17{E HK$0.62% 7T, (1,215,000) —
Forfeited ST HK$0.627% 7T (1,575,000) —
At the end of the year RER HK$0.6278 7T 42,210,000 45,000,000
Currently exercisable B AT AT 1T HK$0.6278 7T 12,285,000 —
Fair value of share options granted under the Pre- R AERENERES S TES B
IPO Share Option Scheme BRENAALBE
The fair value of options granted on 3 January 2019 and 10 TR R RN BB FT R IR AEST 23 201948 1 A
January 2019 under Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme determined 3A%20194E1 B10 0 Py R iEsr @ — 18
using the Binomial option-pricing model was approximately AERETERHNETHALBEOSAR
RMB20.8 million. #208BEETT
The total expenses recognised in the consolidated statement of 2020 %2019E 12 A31H IFEE - 312
comprehensive income for share options granted to employees FEEHNERERNEASERNE TR
is RMB6,447,000 and RMB9,382,000 for the years ended 31 BRI DB A ARMGE 4470007 B A R
December 2020 and 2019 respectively. 9,382,0007T °

B | ) B
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PSRBT RE (AE)

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (f& 2A#BASN » FIB S RBUARK T TEH)

23 Leases 23 HE
(a) Amounts recognised in the consolidated (a) REECEEEBRIPERANSHE
balance sheet

2020
20204
RMB’000
AR®T T
Right-of-use assets EREEE
— Leased properties and equipment — THEWMERRME (HE14)
(Note 14) 27,103 3,452
Lease liabilities HEAR
— Current i) 10,876 1,886
— Non-current JEED 10,333 1,256
21,209 3,142
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PSRBT RE (AE)

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (f& A AN - FTE SR UAARE TTsT)

23 Leases (Continued) 23 HE®
(b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated (b) REEZEWRBERPEINESE

statement of comprehensive income

2020

2020
RMB’000

Depreciation charge

Continuing operations

— Leased properties and equipment
(Note 14)

Discontinued operations

— Leased properties

Interest expense (included in finance
income/(costs) — net)

— Continuing operations

— Discontinued operations

Rental expenses relating to short-term
and low-value leases (included in cost
of sales and selling expenses)

Cash outflows for lease payments
— Continuing operations
— Discontinued operations

TEER

— AEMEREE
(fzE14)

EARIEEE TS

— fHEwmE

RIS (BEEREKRA
(BA) FEF)

— RBEREEH

— BERUERERH

HERREEEEAERRD
HEX GFABERAR
HERMX)

MEMNFHR SR
— RHBREEY
— ERILERERE

ARBT

10,438 3,131
— 12,934
10,438 16,065
972 227
— 3,903
972 4,130
330 50
17,324 4,924
— 23,813
17,324 28,737
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PSRBT RE (AE)

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (f& 2A#BASN » FIB S RBUARK T TEH)

23 Leases (Continued) 23 #HE@®
(c) A maturity analysis of lease liabilities as at () 2020 %2019%F12H31H#E
31 December 2020 and 2019 is shown in the EEENIHBERIMBR TR

table below:

2020

20204

RMB’000

AR TR

The present value of lease liabilities is ~ FAE&ERELT
as follows:

Within 1 year —FLR 11,376 1,943
1 to 2 years =ZE =4 9,596 563
2 to 5 years —ERE 1,421 845
22,393 3,351
Future finance charge REERE R (1,184) (209)
21,209 3,142
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PSRBT RE (AE)

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (f& A AN - FTE SR UAARE TTsT)

24 Trade and other payables 24 BEZRHEMEMRIE

2020
20204
RMB’000
ARBTR
Trade payables (Note (a)) B 5 pEfT 538 (M)
— Related parties (Note 29(d)) — RBAEE 77 (M 5E29(d)) 9,658 11,953
— Third parties = E=7 297,919 165,466
307,577 177,419
Other payables (S 5RIE
— Deposits — &e 160,146 111,118
— Property maintenance funds — MEREES 98,587 99,831
— Utilities — RAEXE 20,311 15,143
— Amounts due to related parties (Note (b)) — — FEATEIESE 75 7IE (it 7 (b)) 23,770 22,938
— Payables due to the then shareholders of — — FEft Uk I B A 7] & B
newly-acquired subsidiaries A& R B IB 12,938 20,602
— Payables for acquisitions of subsidiaries — W EEHT B A R B 5,095 5,256
— Listing expenses — EWHREX — 7,367
— Others — H 25,466 15,185
346,313 297,440
Accrued payroll EstEe 237,144 151,793
Other taxes payables E fh pE 8 B IE 46,217 27,613
937,251 654,265
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the carrying amounts of 2020 K% 201941283180 EHREME
trade and other payables approximated their fair values. NHREMNEAEEZE AR EEES -
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PSRBT RE (AE)

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (f& 2A#BASN » FIB S RBUARK T TEH)

24 Trade and other payables (Continued) 24 BESZRHEHMEMARKIE @)
(@) As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the aging analysis of (a)  BE2020%F K%2019F12A31H « R
the trade payables based on invoice date were as HEAHMNE SENTREZ Rk TN
follows: N

2020

20204

RMB’000

AR TR
0-180 days 02 180H 282,175 170,413
181-365 days 181%365H 16,503 5,011
1 to 2 years 1824 7,286 462
2 to 3 years pEE:S 373 537
Over 3 years 3FEPLE 1,240 996
307,577 177,419

(b)  The amounts due to related parties were unsecured, (b) ENEBSIREERR 2ENEKRE
interest-free and repayable on demand. SKIEE o
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PSRBT RE (AE)

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (f& A AN - FTE SR UAARE TTsT)

25 Deferred income tax 25 EERBH
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, there was no offsetting of 20206 %2019 12 A31H  AI—HKEE
deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities RARIELERENEE REEMSHE GRS
balances within the same tax jurisdiction. The analysis of BRAFERENER BEERIBEE KRBT
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities is as follows: HIBEENTEOT

2020
20205
RMB’'000
AR T
Deferred tax assets: BEEFIAEE
— Deferred tax assets to be recovered after — R 121E A & W B H
more than 12 months RIEFIBE E 3,256 2,957
— Deferred tax assets to be recovered — BBR12ME A Ak E A
within 12 months REEFIBEE 7,493 4,005
10,749 6,962
Deferred tax liabilities: BEEFIEBE :
— Deferred tax liabilities to be recovered — 51218 B &4 Y
after more than 12 months EEFIEAE (3.157) (2,944)
— Deferred tax liabilities to be recovered — #1218 A AU [E A
within 12 months EEFIEAR (820) (773)
(3,977) (3,717)
6,772 3,245
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25 Deferred income tax (Continued) 25

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities
during the year of 2020 and 2019 is as follows:

EERESH @
R2020F E K2019FE  BEMBSMEE K
BENEBINT

Deferred tax

liabilities
— excess of
carrying
amount of
Deferred tax other
assets — Deferred tax intangible
allowance on assets — tax assets over the
doubtful debts losses tax bases Total
EEHEEE
— HttENEE
BEBELEE BEHEEE REEER
— RERER — HEER RENDS ait
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR
As at 1 January 2019 R2019F181AH 3,576 6,166 — 9,742
Credited/(charged) to the RiEA2ERERFA/
consolidated statement of (30k%)
comprehensive income 45 (6,427) 766 (5,616)
Acquisition of subsidiaries W BB BT/ A A) = 3,602 (4,483) (881)
At 31 December 2019 R2019%12A31H 3,621 3,341 (3,717) 3,245
As at 1 January 2020 R2020F181H 3,621 3,341 (3,717) 3,245
Credited to the consolidated RigA2ARERTA
statement of comprehensive
income 3,472 315 777 4,564
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 28)  WE—ZHE A
(FiiE28) — — (1,037) (1,037)
At 31 December 2020 R2020%12A31H 7,093 3,656 (3,977) 6,772

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group has not
recognised deferred tax assets in respect of cumulative tax
losses and temporary differences totaling of RMB23,872,000
and RMB21,593,000 as it is not probable that future taxable
profits against which the losses can be utilised will be available
in the relevant tax jurisdiction. The tax losses shall expire in five
years from year of occurrence under the CIT Law.

HZE2020F 2019128310 A&EET
Rt E A% A AR¥23,872,0000T B AR
21,593,000 T H) R 5T 18 518 K FRr = R T R
BEWIEAE  REZMEBENSEEERBET
AN A] 8E 6 0] A RO SR SR FE I B A LA &) FR AR 8
B 18 o RIBKEEMBEE) - BEBEBR
EEFERFTHNRAFEANER -
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25 Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax liabilities of RMB67,240,000 have not been
recognised for the withholding tax that would be payable on
the unremitted earnings amounted to RMB672,396,000 of
certain subsidiaries. Such earnings are expected to be retained
by the PRC subsidiaries for reinvestment purposes and would
not be remitted to the oversea intermediate holding companies
in the foreseeable future based on management’s estimation of
overseas funding requirements.

26 Dividends

25

26

EE BB ()

KoL E T M B R B RE B F A~ FE R
AR #672,396,000 THERIELEMESREEA
R#67,240,0007T - RIBEEEELFINESH
SkefhEr  ZSRBFNBEHBERTENEB AR
REBEBRERSE  ARATRARTEEA
NP R A R] o

g

Interim dividend paid of HK$0.066 per ordinary
share (Note (a))

(b)

An interim dividend in respect of the six months ended
30 June 2020 of HK$0.066 per ordinary share,
approximately HK$82,170,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB73,455,000) was declared by the
board of directors of the Company on 27 August 2020
(the corresponding period of 2019: nil) and paid in cash.

A final dividend in respect of year ended 31 December
2020 of HK$0.18 per ordinary share have been proposed
by the board of directors of the Company and are
subject to the approval of the shareholders at the Annual
General Meeting to be held on 7 May 2021. The final
dividend will be distributed out of the Company’s share
premium. These consolidated financial statements have
not reflected these dividends payable.

Central China New Life Limited 224 FER QT

(b)

KA AR B AR B AR I @ A% 0.066 78 T
(M 5E(a))

73,455

RATEEEN2020F8 727 A5 kA&
202056 A30H IE/NE AT HIR S
FREEK0.066B T A HY
82,170,000 T (HE R ARE L
73,455,0007T)(2019F R &9 : &) - I
LAIR &R -

ARAREZTEDEHELEZE2020F12
RA31BEFERERARESREBR
0.18%8 7T * AfFREM2021F5/87H
BITWREAFT ARG EHER F A {E
B o KR BB AR BN EEP
Dk o ZEREMBRRITARMREZE
FERHRZ B
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27 Cash flow information 27 REREEH
(a) Cash generated from operations () REFTBELENERS

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLLEE

2020 2019
2020%F 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTT
Profit before income tax Rt TS B AT RS
— Continuing operations — BEREER 556,909 307,541

Adjustments for continuing operations: 1 EL L EKHALIER ¢

— Depreciation of property, plant and — %% - BE M REFTE
equipment (Note 14) (FF7E14) 21,115 10,372
— Amortisation of other intangible — Hibm & E#E
assets (Note 15) (M$5E15) 5,090 3,680
— Allowance for impairment of trade — — & 5 K H b & I 5K IR (E
and other receivables A 15,258 182
— Losses from disposal of property, — LEYE BERZEZ
plant and equipment (Note 7) &8 (FF3E7) 13 65
— Net exchange losses/(gains) (Note 7) — [E X &8 (M) F58
(BEE7) 206 (191)
— Net fair value gains on financial AAREBEEWATAEBZE
assets at fair value through profit MemEENAREE
or loss (Note 7) Wz (FEE7) (6,217) (407)
— Share of loss of an associate — FE(EEEE A REE
(Note 11) (MHzE11) 1 29
— Finance cost (Note 8) — BERK A (F7E8) 972 17,219
— Interest income from loans to entities — [A)/8 JE A 12 HI A E 48 I
controlled by Mr. Hua and third FE=HEFRFFAMBWA
parties (Note 6) (PfF3E6) (455) (15,933)
— Share option scheme — value of — BRESE — BRERS
employee services (Note 10) fE1E (fTFE10) 6,447 9,382
— Remeasurement gains on investment — R—REE QTN ENE
in an associate (Note 7) et 2 W (BFEE7) — (3,563)
599,339 328,376
Changes in working capital from BEQEEBELENEE
continuing operations: B BE) -
— Trade and other receivables and — B REMEBGIER
prepayments TE I 5/ IE (629,810) (450,042)
— Contract liabilities — AKAaR 104,277 161,264
— Inventories — FE (3,717) (4,210)
— Contract assets — ANEE (733) (2,899)
— Trade and other payables — B 5 R H AR RIA 288,119 283,552
— Restricted Cash — XRHE e (723) 96
356,752 316,137
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27 Cash flow information (Continued)
(b) The reconciliation of liabilities arising from financial

activities is as follow:

As at 1 January 2019
Cash flows
Financing cash inflow
— Continuing operations
Financing cash outflow
— Continuing operations
— Discontinued operations
Non-cash changes
Acquisition — leases
— Continuing operations
— Discontinued operations
Disposals of subsidiaries
— Discontinued operations
Finance expense recognised
— Continuing operations
— Discontinued operations

As at 31 December 2019

As at 1 January 2020
Cash flows
Financing cash inflow
Financing cash outflow
Non-cash changes
Acquisition — leases
Finance expense recognised
Currency translation
difference

As at 31 December 2020

R2019F1 818
HERE
BREBESARA

— REREEY
RVE IR R

— BEREER
— BRI
FREBE
BE — HE

— REREEY
— BRIHEEET
i BT BB A A

— BRI
BRI B E R
— REREEY
— BRIHEE T

R2019412A31H

®2020%F1 818
BERE
BEBRSRKA
BVE IR R
FBREBE
g — e
ERAMERX
EMENZR

202012 A31H

27

BeEREER @)
(b) ¢REDELMBBOUENT :

451,598 203,155 10,387
— — 21,417
(468,590) (4,874) (8,866)
— (23,813) —

— 3,470 —

— 2,994 —

— (184,186) —
16,992 227 —
— 6,169 —

— 3,142 22,938

— 3,142 22,938

— — 832

— (16,994) —

— 35,021 —

— 972 —

— (932) —

— 21,209 23,770
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28 Business combination
(a) Summary of acquisition

@

Acquisition of Jiyuan Zhongbang

In September 2020, the Group acquired 51%
equity interest in Jiyuan Zhongbang, at a cash
consideration of RMB16,983,000. Jiyuan
Zhongbang is a waste treatment company located
in Jiyuan City, Henan Province, the PRC, which
provides environmental hygiene and cleaning
and possesses advanced
technology on the production and operation of

management services,

waste disposal equipment.

Details of the purchase considerations, the net
assets acquired and goodwill are as follows:

28

A SRUARE T T

KBt

(a) WEBHEEE

(1)

Wohg BRRE

M20206F 98 F REB AR & ¥
B AR #16,983,0007T U B 7R
BES1%ERE - BRZER—HE
{75 AR BR F & BRI EE W B
BAR RERREERERE
BRE  THELEERKEEY
R B AR 1 ) ST A BT o

WEHE MBANFEENRD
BEHBWT

Acquisition B
WiEE1EB
RMB’000
AR¥T T

Consideration #HE
— Cash paid — B RE 11,888
— Payable — EfRIE 5,095
16,983
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28 Business combination (Continued) 28 ¥E¥attem
(a) Summary of acquisition (Continued) (a) WEBEE)
() Acquisition of Jiyuan Zhongbang (Continued) () WEERRE(E)
The assets and liabilities recognised as a result of BANERKE R AERNAE
the acquisition on the acquisition date are as RagHImT :
follows:

Property, plant and equipment ME - BEREE 4,615
Intangible assets B AE
— Order-backlog — R E 6,822
Other current assets HihRBEE 2,337
Trade and other payables B 5 Rk H A FRIE (3,675)
Deferred tax liabilities RLEHIHEAE (1,037)
Net identifiable assets acquired FiT W B /O R 3 B B B R E 9,062
Less: Equity interest held by non-controlling W SRR e AT R AR A A
interests (4,440)
Add: Goodwill m: e 12,361
Net assets acquired T Wi B 1) & B2 3 RE 16,983
Net cash outflow arising on acquisitions during the HE2020F12A31B LFER
year ended 31 December 2020: WHEE MR &ML F5

Cash consideration paid BEfNBEeHE 11,888
Add: Brought forward unpaid cash e EEFRZAERS

considerations paid in the year RERE 5,256
Cash considerations paid during the year FREMNBSHE 17,144
Less: Cash and cash equivalents acquired B FTENR S RIREEEY —
Cash outflow during the year FRARESHRE 17,144
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28 Business combination (Continued)

(a) Summary of acquisition (Continued)
Acquisition of Jiyuan Zhongbang (Continued)

@

(1)

(iii)

A SRUARE T T

The goodwill is attributable to the workforce and
the high profitability of the acquired business. It

will not be deductible for tax purposes.

Accounting policy choice for non-controlling

interests

The Group recognises non-controlling interests in an
acquired entity either at fair value or at the

non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the

acquired entity’'s net identifiable assets.

This

decision is made on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis. For the non-controlling interests in acquisition
of lJiyuan Zhongbang, the Group elected to
recognise the non-controlling interests in at its

proportionate share of the acquired net identifiable

assets. See Note 2.3 for the Group’s accounting

policies for business combinations.

Revenue and profit contribution

The revenue and the results contributed from

Jiyuan Zhongbang for the year since respective

acquisition date were insignificant to the Group.
The Group’s revenue and results for the year would
not be materially different if these acquisitions had

occurred on 1 January 2020.

28

EKE6Em
(a) WHEEBHEE (&)

(1)

(1)

(i)

WHEERRE ()
BEBERMKRERBNSE N
Ee&aNgEn  ToiigE mE
IR ©

FEFEIR i s 49 B AT BB FE

REERR R BEIIRIEERE
SEMFTBIEE R 2 AT R & E
FEMLLOIERRATNEEES
IR RS o IR TE AR B ETEIR
BAEEEL HRKEERRE
PHIEERER  AEEIRER
FEME T BB RT BRI & EEFEM L
PITERIEIE R - BAER
E¥BEHOGITEER - E2HM
5F2.3°

WA K 78 & gt
BEaKEBESERE FREER
FRNEMNKATMEEEAEER
MELTEKN - BZRFREEAE
R2020F1 518 » XEEREA
HRAMEEB TS HRERE
B o

Annual Report 2020 & [Z &

203



Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

A5 R P ot ()

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (& A =AB5N - FTE & BUAARE T L)

29 BEEBARSH

29 Related party transactions

— (a) Name and relationship with related parties () BHATEBRERESNBE
Name Relationship with the Group
wE/ AB B2 2K 55 [ Y A 2
Mr. Wu* Controlling shareholder of the Company
[ e o RA B EARAR R
CCRE Group A group controlled by Mr. Wu
ExREE —XAAEEEFNEE

204

Zhengzhou lJianze Real Estate Co., Ltd.
BMNEEZEFXERAR

Henan Jianye Live-action Performance Culture
Development Co., Ltd.
MEREERRE L ERBR AR

Xinmi Di‘an Real Estate Co., Ltd.
SEmTLEEARAA

Henan CCRE Huayi Brothers Culture Tourism Industry
Co., Ltd.
M REEENBXLIREEXBFRA A

Zhoukou Zhonghang Real Estate Co., Ltd.
FARFRMEZXAERAA

Yichuan Jianye Green Base Development Co., Ltd.

FERGEEMERAR DA

BEERBEXARAA
Shanggiu Hesheng Real Estate Co., Ltd.

BN EEEFRAA
Luohe Jingde Real Estate Co., Ltd.

AEEREENREXRSBERAA
Henan Drawin Technology Industry Group Co., Ltd.

Central China New Life Limited 2 ¥4+ FER QT

A joint venture of CCRE Group
EEEENAELE

A joint venture of CCRE Group

BEEENRELE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
EEEENARLE

A joint venture of CCRE Group

BEEEMNREDLE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BESENAELE

A joint venture of CCRE Group
BEEEBENAELE

An associate of CCRE Group
BEEEENBERE

An associate of CCRE Group
EEEBENBERE

A company controlled by Mr. Wu
—KBEHAEEERE A A
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29 Related party transactions (Continued)
Transactions with related parties

(b)

A SRUARE T T

29 BEEMARS @)

(b)

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019,
the Group had the following significant transactions with
related parties. The transactions amounts disclosed
represent the transactions with relevant parties during the
periods when those parties were related parties of the

Group.

Provision of goods and services to companies controlled
by Mr. Wu, joint ventures and associates of CCRE Group:

EHEBLNXS

H 22020F %2019F12A318 It F
B AEEEUTEREB SRS - AT
BENZZSBEEEEST RAEER
B AREZETHRS -

ML EFMES QR ZEEBNEE
EERBERRRHANE MR

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLLEE

2020 2019

20204 20194

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT R ARBTT

Commission income fAE WA 325,160 184,582

Installation and decoration services 22 5 T 5 5 AR 75 278,891 116,009

Consulting services 5 AR 75 210,375 158,893

Property management and related Y R R A AR TS

services 98,927 77,429

Membership management income 2EEERA 94,340 47,170
Commercial property management and & E B2 KA ARE

consultation services income WA 81,167 97,945

Sales of goods EREE 74,450 25,692

Travel service income i 35 AR 75 A 28,307 38,738

1,191,617 746,458
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29 Related party transactions (Continued) 29 BBAERZ
(b) Transactions with related parties (Continued) (b) EERAEES VRS (&)
Receipt of goods and services from companies controlled WERSTEMESIN AR REEENE
by Mr. Wu, joint ventures and associates of CCRE Group: EERBENRWANEm KRR

2020
2020%F
RMB’000
AR TR
Cost of goods sold HEKA 13,256 —
Tourism service costs AR AR 7% & A 10,401 15,771
Others A 575 —
24,232 15,771
Addition of right-of-use assets NEGRAEEE
— Office rental — WAEMRSE 15,793 —
Interest expenses for lease liabilities HEBENNERX
— Office rental — WREMRSE 558 —
All of the transactions above were carried out in the TIFAAERGENALEENET XA
normal course of the Group’s business and on terms as BHEZS5ZTHENBRRAR

agreed between the transacting parties.

() Key management compensation (0 ETEEBEAEHM
Compensations for key management other than those for RIS BE U ETEETEA
directors as disclosed in Note 33 is set out below: BHHMEINAT

2020

2020
RMB’000
AR TR

Salaries and other short-term employee  ¥& M E MR HEEEF
benefits 20,485 20,659
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29 Related party transactions (Continued) 29 BBARS )
(d) Balances with related parties (d) EEESEE S MAEER
As at 31 December
M12831H
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR T ARBTT
Trade receivables B 5 WA
— CCRE Group and its joint — REEERHELE
ventures and associates (o YN8 LN 858,524 491,741
— Other companies controlled by — RS AR A A A
Mr. Wu 844 —
859,368 491,741
Note receivables e E &
— CCRE Group and its joint — BESERHESEMLE
ventures and associates PN 4,500 —
Other receivables H b fE W FRIE
— CCRE Group and its joint — EEEERESE
ventures and associates (Y5 AN 40,020 40,807
— Other companies controlled by — AR E AR
Mr. Wu 170 —
40,190 40,807
Trade payable 2 5 e IR
— CCRE Group and its joint — BEEBELHESE
ventures and associates EREE QA 9,515 11,953
— Other companies controlled by — MR EENEMA
Mr. Wu 143 —
9,658 11,953
Other payables H A FE A R
— CCRE Group and its joint <—E¥%I&EG§
ventures and associates (SN 23,770 22,938
Contract liability SREE
— CCRE Group and its joint — BEKERHEHAGE
ventures and associates TEREERNT 11,697 19,203
Lease liabilities HEBE
— CCRE Group — REE&E 12,065 —
Trade receivables, other receivables, note receivables, F’EH&/F’EH%H HRE S EWRGRIE -
trade payables, other payables, lease liabilities and fib FE U FRIE - PR B - E\%Vﬁ p74
contract liabilities due from/to related parties are 1B HMEMNKIE - HEBEREHEA
unsecured and interest free. BEHAEERKHFERS
30 Events occurring after the reporting period 30 HEHEEE

In January 2021,

the Group completed an acquisition of 51%

entity equity interest of certain property management company,

at a cash consideration of RMB100,000,000.

R2021F1A " AEEURERBEARE
100,000,000 L FEf T R E B A RIS 1% E

R -
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31 Balance sheet and reserve movement of the 31 XA EEAGBRLEH#EET

Company
As at 31 December
M12H31H
2020 2019
20204 20194
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR TR AREET T
Assets BE
Non-current assets RBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—RHBARMNIEE 34 107,797 109,381
Property, plant and equipment ME - WE REE 15,906 —
123,703 109,381
Current assets mEEE
Other receivables H b fE W GRIE 821,623 =
Prepayments for listing expenses R EMARIEA — 10,767
Financial assets at fair value through ~ BA R AR EEFFEWL AT ABZED
profit or loss CREE 83,256 —
Cash and cash equivalents RERBFEEED 945,288 6,941
1,850,167 17,708
Total assets EEHE 1,973,870 127,089
Equity =
Equity attributable to ARATRRELER
shareholders of the Company
Share capital &N 20 11,057 3
Other reserves (Note (a)) H b (M aE@)) 1,955,603 118,814
Retained earnings IR & A (10,821) 410
Total equity EREE 1,955,839 119,227
Liabilities =R
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Lease liabilities HEAE 6,534 —
Current liabilities =R
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEST I B A B R — 7,862
Other payables H h fE 3R 5,966 —
Lease liabilities HEAR 5,531 =
11,497 7,862
Total liabilities BEEEE 18,031 7,862
Total equity and liabilities EahkaEH8EE 1,973,870 127,089
The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the board ARAIEERERN2020F3 26 AKESE
of directors of the Company on 26 March 2020 and was Bk WHARRIEESRAESE -
signed on its behalf.
Wang Jun Wang Qian
EX: EX-7
Director Director
=2 EF
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31 Balance sheet and reserve movement of the 31 ZAAFEEEBREREERE &)
Company (Continued)
(a) Reserve movement of the Company

(a) ARFREEEEH

Employee
share-based Foreign
Capital Share compensation currency  Total other
reserves premium reserves  translation reserves
EEURA
REMBH
BEARGE AR E LA NEEYR HttREEESE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
ARETT AR%Tn AR¥Tr ARETx AR%ETx
Balance at 1 January 2019  2019%1A1H
& ER 100,000 = = = 100,000
Issue of new ordinary shares [T 1Z & & #1T
to new investor (Note 20) gk (fE20) = 9,432 = = 9,432
Share option scheme-value Bkt E — B8
of employee services PRI EE (FiiE22)
(Note 22) — — 9,382 — 9,382
Balance at 31 December R2019F12A31H
2019 ioFed 2 100,000 9,432 9,382 = 118,814
Balance at 1 January 2020  R2020F1818#
Eedos 100,000 9,432 9,382 — 118,814
Issue of shares in connection — EEA{LETHERN
with the capitalisation issue %47 (F15E20)
(Note 20) — (7,885) — — (7,885)
Issue of shares in connection ~ EZAAE] LA A
with the Company's listing %47 (F15E20)
(Note 20) — 2,085,535 — — 2,085,535
Share option scheme-value of  EERkIE:tEl — (B
employee services PRI B (FiE22)
(Note 22) — — 6,447 — 6,447
Share option scheme-issued BRENE — B
shares (Note 20) TR 17 (P 3E20) — 1,165 (541) — 624
Currency translation ERERER
differences — — — (174,477) (174,477)
Dividend distribution to MRS ER S
shareholders (Note 26) (Hi5E26) — (73,455) — — (73,455)
Balance at 31 December R2020%12A31H
2020 i0Eed oS 100,000 2,014,792 15,288 (174,477) 1,955,603
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32 Commitments and contingent liabilities
(a) Capital commitments
For the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the
Group’s capital commitments mainly related to the
development of the intelligent platform and financial
sharing system. The details are set as below:

32 AERDEEE
(a) EBEREE
H E2020F %2019F12A318 It F
o AEBENERFETEEEETS
LR ZZAOFREAE - FI15H7
m e

2020

2020
RMB’000

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

BEE

ARBT R
1,013 —

6,191 5,616

7,204 5,616

(b) Contingencies
The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities
as at 31 December 2020 (31 December 2019: same).
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33 Directors’ benefits and interests 33 ESEARMNE
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EE=EME

The directors received emoluments from the Group (in HE2020F12A31BLEFE - FF (R
their role as senior management and employee before HEZTAEFMURRERERES
their appointment as directors) for the year ended G EREEEGHMen T  BF
31 December 2020 as follows, and no director has N BEZREXRBERETMHNE -
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during the

year.

Executive directors HITES
Wang Jun (i) EX0) 3,152 — — 16 — 3,168
Cai Bin (ii) B0 (i) 1,352 3,000 884 31 2 5,269
Non-executive Directors FUTES
Wu Lam Li (i E3(7)] 57 — — — — 57
Min Huidong (i) BIZR (i) 57 — — — — 57
Independent Non-executive ~ BYFHTES

Directors
Leong Chong (i) 2 % A (i) 126 — — — — 126
Luo Laura Ying (iii) B & 20 (i) 126 — — — — 126
Xin Zhu (ii) FH L L) 126 — — — — 126

4,996 3,000 884 47 2 8,929
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

PSRBT RE (AE)

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (f& A AN - FTE SR UAARE TTsT)

33 Directors’ benefits and interests (Continued) 33 EEEMNRM=E @
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) ESEME(®

The directors received emoluments from the Group (in HE2019F12A31BLEFE - FF (R
their role as senior management and employee before HEZTAEFMURRERERES
their appointment as directors) for the year ended G EREEEGHMen T  BF
31 December 2019 as follows, and no director has N BEZREXRBERETMHNE -
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during the

year.

Executive directors HiTES

Wang Jun (i) F() 1,558 = = 8 = 1,566

Cai Bin (ii) B0 (i) 1,165 1,500 971 44 37 3,717

Non-executive Directors FHTES

Wu Lam Li (i) Z(i) — = — = — =

Min Huidong (ii R0 — = 1,230 = = 1,230
2,723 1,500 2,201 52 37 6,513

()  Wang Jun was the chairman of the board of () FEAEAQRRAEZFTEEXFEREAR
directors of the Company and the chief executive AEENITE -
officer of the Company.

(i) The directors, Cai Bin and Wu Lam Li were (i) EFZFHKRFWR2019F 10 HE
appointed as directors in October 2019. Min ZREAES - HEFRERN2019F10
Huidong joined the Group and was appointed as AMAREEVEZEARES -
director in October 2019.

(i) The directors, Leong Chong, Luo Laura Ying and Xin (i) ZBEZRA BERFIRN2020%F
Zhu were appointed as directors in April 2020. AREZERES -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (f& %A &% B35h »

33 Directors’ benefits and interests (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Directors’ retirement benefits and
termination benefits

There were no retirement benefits paid to or receivable
by directors during the years ended 31 December 2020
and 2019 by defined benefit pension plans operated by
the Group and there were no director's termination
benefits subsisted during the years ended 31 December
2020 and 2019.

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019,
the Group did not pay consideration to any third parties
for making available directors’ services.

Information about loans, quasi-loans and
other dealings in favor of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors

Saved as disclosed in note 29, during the years ended
31 December 2020 and 2019, there were no loans,
quasi-loans and other dealings entered into by the
Company or subsidiaries undertaking of the Company,
where applicable, in favor of directors.

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Saved as disclosed in note 29, no significant transactions,
arrangements and contracts in relation to the Group's
business to which the Company was a party and in which
a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly,
31 December 2020 and 2019.

subsisted as at

A SRUARE T T

33 ESE®ARMNZE @

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

EERKEANREBEFR
REE2020F 2 2019F 12 A31 B IEF
B BFUEBEHASEEENRTE
X B E SR EIE A S E WA AR R
B - BERE E20204 £2019412 A
BSTAEFENR T FEAMNESEHERE
HIE

RRHEEREMOE=SRM
¥ E

REZE 20209 K% 2019512 A318 1L F
B AEERRREEERE M AT
FEZREHEE-

MEE ZFESEHNEAR
BERZEESNHAERERREAN
EX EERRHMXZNESR

B B SE29FT #E #R & N - IRELE 20204
N2019F 12318 IEFE - NAF) K
AR BAR (EA) MENESEA
R AFIAMER EERRHEM
% °

EENRS  REIEGHHIWE
RiER=

bR MSFE29FT # 58 & H) - R20204F &
2019F12A31H  IER L AEH
¥%BHE  BARRALRESG RARAR]
EERHETEEBERAERN RSN
FAEARS  THRED -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated) (& BB HBASN - FrE @5 UARE T TET)

B B 2 =
REE 20204 K 20194F12 A 31 HR = Zfft
BARMFEBRIWNT -

34 Subsidiaries 34

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Group as at
31 December 2020 and 2019 are set out as below.

Attributable equity interest

214

Company name

Place of incorporation
and kind of legal entity

Registered/issued and
paid-up capital

Principal activities/
place of operation

of the Group
AEEELRE

31 December

LA ER S 3t 2 R AMER /BRITR
DRER EERRER HERE TEERTE EENY 12A31H
2020 2019
2020%F 2019%
Directly owned:
BEEEE:
Sky Joy Limited BVI, Limited liability US$1/Us$1 Investment holding in BVI
company 100% 100%
A ERRA RBERRHE (ETVAET REER
BERAH REBEBRES
Indirectly owned:
HEES
Central China New Life (Hong Hong Kong, Limited HK$10,000/HK$Nil Investment holding in Hong
Kong) Limited liability company Kong 100% 100%
BENEE(BB)BRAA A% ARAR 10,0007 7T,/ ST REZR  NEE
Henan Central China New Life The PRC, Limited liability RMB200,000,000/ Consultancy Services in
Service Co., Ltd. company RMB90,000,000 Henan Province 100% 100%
MEEENEERBERAF HE - BRATF AR#200,000,0000T/  HHARE  MAEE
AR #90,000,0007T
Henan Central China Property The PRC, Limited liability ~ RMB5,000,000/ Property management
Management Co., Ltd.* company RMB5,000,000 services in Henan
Province 100% 100%
EEENZEEERAF hE - BRAA AR #5,000,0007T,/ NEEBRSE  NUEE
AR #5,000,0007T
Henan Zhizun Housing Agency The PRC, Limited liability ~ RMB10,000,000/ Real estate marketing
Co., Ltd.* company RMB5,200,000 services in Henan
Province 100% 100%
MEZEERETNBRAR hE - BRAA AR #10,000,0007T,/ FHEZHERE  NAEE
AR #5,200,0007T
Henan Central China New Life The PRC, Limited liability RMB100,000,000/ Tourism services in Henan
Travel Service Co., Ltd.* company RMB 16,050,000 Province 100% 100%
AERENERREREERRR  RE FRAF AR¥100,000,0007/  HRERS  RAEE
AR %16,050,0007T
Henan Central China New Life The PRC, Limited liability RMB 10,000,000/ Hotel management services
Hotel Management Co., Ltd.* company RMB10,000,000 in Henan Province 100% 100%
MEREHEREEERERAR  FH BRAA AR #10,000,0007T,/ BEERRS - NAEE
AR #10,000,0007T
Henan Central China New Life The PRC, Limited liability RMB50,000,000/ Management Consulting
Agricultural Development Co., company RMB1,000,000 services in Henan
Ltd.* (formerly known as Henan Province
Songyan Agricultural
Development Co., Ltd.) 94% 94%
EREMEERERRARAR BB BRAA AR#50,000,0007T,/ ERBARS  RNAEE
(AT - IABRREZEER AR %1,000,0007C
NG 94% 94%
Henan Aiou Electronic Technology The PRC, Limited liability ~ RMB50,000,000/ Technology services in
Co., Ltd.* company RMB1,000,000 Henan Province 93.33% 93.33%
MENHEFREBRAR hE - BRAA AR #50,000,0007T,/ BT - R EA

AR #1,000,0007T
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34 Subsidiaries (Continued)

Company name

Place of incorporation
and kind of legal entity

Registered/issued and
paid-up capital

A SRUARE T T

34 MiIBATR (#®)

Principal activities/
place of operation

Attributable equity interest
of the Group
rEEEERE

31 December

AR S 3t B K% ZMER BRATR
AR ER EERRER BERE TEERES SR 12A31H
2020 2019
2020 20195
Indirectly owned: (Continued)
MEEs : (8)
Henan One Family Network The PRC, Limited liability ~ RMB30,000,000/ Technology services in
Technology Co., Ltd.* company RMB20,000,000 Henan Province 100% 100%
R BERRERAA HE ARAR ARH30,000,0007/  HIRE - RAEE
AR#20,000,0007T
Song Yun (Beijing) Information The PRC, Limited liability ~ RMB10,000,000/ Technology services in
Service Co., Ltd.* company RMB10,000,000/ Beijing 80% 80%
BEER)EERBERAR HE - BRAF AE#10,000,0007T,/ AR - AR
AR %10,000,0007T
Xinyang Nanhong Property Service  The PRC, Limited liability ~ RMB3,000,000/Nil Property management
Co., Ltd.* company services in Henan
Province 100% 100%
EEMEINERBER AR HE - BRAF AR#3,000,0007t/Z MEERRE - NAEE
Henan Central China New Life The PRC, Limited liability ~ RMB10,000,000/ Management Consulting
Business Management Co., company RMB6,000,000 services in Henan
Ltd.*(formerly known as Henan Province
Central China Jing Yuecheng
Commercial Management
Co., Ltd.) 100% 51%
AEEEHLLEEEEARAE FE ARAF AK¥10,000,0007T,/ EEHARS  NUEE
FETEEERNAAEER AR 6,000,000
BRAHF)
Linzhou Liuhe Property The PRC, Limited liability ~ RMB3,000,000/ Property management
Management Co., Ltd.* company RMB3,000,000 services in Henan
Province 51% 51%
MMTARENEREERAF HE - BRAF AK#3,000,0007T, MEERRSE - NTEE
AR %3,000,0007C
Zhengzhou Jiaxiang Property The PRC, Limited liability ~ RMB3,000,000/ Property management
Management Co., Ltd.* company RMB3,000,000 services in Henan
Province 51% 51%
BMERMERBERAR HE - BRAF AK#3,000,0007T, MEERRSE - NUEE
AR %3,000,0007C
Jiyuan City Zhongbang The PRC, Limited liability ~ RMB10,000,000/ Property management
Environmental Sanitation company RMB3,100,000 services in Henan
Co., Ltd.* Province 51% 51%

ERTREREREZERAF

HE - BRAR

AR #10,000,0007T,/
AR¥3,100,0007T

NEEBRE  RNABE

*

The English name of the subsidiaries represents the best effort by the management of the Group in translating their Chinese
names as they do not have an official English name.
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SUMMARY OF

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

B AR E

A summary of the consolidated results and of the consolidated assets,
liabilities and non-controlling interests of the Group for the last four

financial years prepared on the basis as hereunder stated is as set out | :

below:

Consolidated Results

REXE

For the year ended 31 December

BZ12A318LLEE

1

AREBIR T X PAT B AR R 38 = Ul 3 B R A
RERENGARAEE ABNMIFER

a2

2020 2019 2018 2017
20204 20194 20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Revenue A 2,654,499 1,754,402 693,988 460,532
Profit before taxation B F A A 556,909 307,541 71,867 52,901
Income tax FriS i (116,165) (74,702) (19,897) (13,775)
Profit from continuing operations K B #4848 & 2 75 K 7 )H 440,744 232,839 51,970 39,126
Loss from discontinued operation 2R [ B 4% [E 48 & 5 1) B 18 — (5,054) (69,737) (42,602)
Profit/(loss) for the year FRFE(EE) 440,744 227,785 (17,767) (3,476)
Attributable to: AR FEAh -
Equity shareholders of the PN S
Company 426,587 233,954 19,471 23,411
Non-controlling interests FEVE IR R A 14,157 (6,169) (37,238) (26,887)
Earnings per share (RMB cents) BREFN(AR%ES)
— Basic — HAK 0.38 0.26 1.35 1.03
— Diluted —#E 0.37 0.26 0.51 0.62
Consolidated Assets, Liabilities and Equity FEEE BEKRER
As at 31 December
MA12A31H
2020 2019 2018 2017
20204 20194 20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETRE ARBTT
Assets BE
Non-current assets EREEE 222,865 101,257 283,294 277,508
Current assets MBEE 4,027,114 1,362,187 1,040,548 1,062,312
Total assets BEEH#E 4,249,979 1,463,444 1,323,842 1,339,820
Liabilities =L
Current liabilities mEEE 1,467,882 1,017,667 625,941 452,282
Non-current liabilities EREBEE 64,747 64,128 600,586 787,954
Total liabilities EEHE 1,532,629 1,081,795 1,226,527 1,240,236
Net assets EEFE 2,717,350 381,649 97,315 99,584
Equity &
Total equity attributable to equity 7N FI4E 25 IR R EE HE RS
shareholders of the Company PR 2,691,344 369,442 116,671 109,360
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR A 2 26,006 12,207 (19,356) (9,776)
Total equity EREHE 2,717,350 381,649 97,315 99,584
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